CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
AUDIT COMMITTEE AGENDA
Tuesday, September 16, 2025

SPECIAL MEETING

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE- 3 P.M.

ALL PUBLIC MEETINGS HAVE RESUMED IN THE CITY COUNCIL
CHAMBER. MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC MAY PARTICIPATE IN-PERSON,
BY ZOOM, EMAIL OR eCOMMENT.

Audit Committee meetings are broadcast live through Spectrum Cable, Channel 8, and
Frontier Communications, Channel 41. Live streams and indexed archives of meetings are
available via internet. Visit the City’s office website at www.Redondo.org/rbtv.

TO WATCH MEETING LIVE ON CITY'S WEBSITE:
https://redondo.legistar.com/Calendar.aspx
*Click "In Progress" hyperlink under Video section of meeting

TO WATCH MEETING LIVE ON YOUTUBE:
https://www.youtube.com/c/CityofRedondoBeachIT

TO JOIN ZOOM MEETING (FOR PUBLIC COMMENT ONLY):

Register in advance for this meeting:
https://www.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_PcgNRIeTRjeheNAeksdT_Q

After registering, you will receive a confirmation email containing information about joining the
meeting.

If you are participating by phone, be sure to provide your phone # when registering. You will
be provided a Toll Free number and a Meeting ID to access the meeting. Note; press # to
bypass Participant ID. Attendees will be muted until the public participation period is opened.
When you are called on to speak, press *6 to unmute your line. Note, comments from the
public are limited to 3 minutes per speaker.

eCOMMENT: COMMENTS MAY BE ENTERED DIRECTLY ON WEBSITE AGENDA PAGE:
https://redondo.granicusideas.com/meetings

1) Public comments can be entered before and during the meeting.

2) Select a SPECIFIC AGENDA ITEM to enter your comment;

3) Public will be prompted to Sign-Up to create a free personal account (one-time) and then
comments may be added to each Agenda item of interest.

4) Public comments entered into eComment (up to 2200 characters; equal to approximately 3
minutes of oral comments) will become part of the official meeting record.

EMAIL: TO PARTICIPATE BY WRITTEN COMMUNICATION WITH ATTACHED
DOCUMENTS BEFORE 12 PM DAY OF MEETING:

Written materials that include attachments pertaining to matters listed on the posted agenda
received after the agenda has been published will be added as supplemental materials under
the relevant agenda item. Email: FinanceMail@redondo.org



CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
SALUTE TO THE FLAG AND INVOCATION

oo m p

APPROVE ORDER OF AGENDA
E. BLUE FOLDER ITEMS - ADDITIONAL BACK UP MATERIALS

Blue folder items are additional back up material to administrative reports and/or public comments received after
the printing and distribution of the agenda packet for receive and file.

E.1. For Blue Folder Documents Approved at the Audit Committee Meeting

F. CONSENT CALENDAR

Business items, except those formally noticed for public hearing, or discussion are assigned to the Consent
Calendar. The Committee Members may request that any Consent Calendar item(s) be removed, discussed, and
acted upon separately. Items removed from the Consent Calendar will be taken up under the “Excluded Consent
Calendar” section below. Those items remaining on the Consent Calendar will be approved in one motion
following Oral Communications.

F.1. APPROVAL OF AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE SPECIAL AUDIT COMMITTEE
MEETING OF SEPTEMBER 16, 2025.

CONTACT: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

G. EXCLUDED CONSENT CALENDAR ITEMS
ITEMS CONTINUED FROM PREVIOUS AGENDAS
l. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION PRIOR TO ACTION

1. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL
REPORTS FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

CONTACT: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

ITEMS FROM STAFF
K. ADJOURNMENT


https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=12249
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=12248
https://redondo.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=12247

Administrative
Report

E.1., File # AC25-1306 Meeting Date: 9/16/2025

TITLE
For Blue Folder Documents Approved at the Audit Committee Meeting
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Administrative
Report

F.1., File # 25-1305 Meeting Date: 9/16/2025

TITLE

APPROVAL OF AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING FOR THE SPECIAL AUDIT COMMITTEE MEETING OF
SEPTEMBER 16, 2025.
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Financial Services Tel: 310.697.3648

gERg”DO 415 Diamond Street
- Redondo Beach CA 90277 Redondo.org
STATE OF CALIFORNIA )

COUNTY OF LOS ANGELES ) SS
CITY OF REDONDO BEACH )

AFFIDAVIT OF POSTING

In compliance with the Brown Act, the following materials have been posted at the loca-
tions indicated below.

Legislative Body Audit Committee
Posting Type Special Meeting Agenda
Posting Locations 415 Diamond Street, Redondo Beach, CA 90277

v" Adjacent to Council Chambers
v City Clerk’s Counter, Door “1”

Meeting Date & Time September 16, 2025 3:00 p.m.

As the Finance Director of the City of Redondo Beach, | declare, under penalty of perjury,
the document noted above was posted at the date displayed below.

Stephanie Meyer, Finance Director

Date: September 15, 2025




Administrative
Report

I.1., File # 25-1304 Meeting Date: 9/16/2025
To: AUDIT COMMITTEE

From: STEPHANIE MEYER, FINANCE DIRECTOR

TITLE

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION REGARDING THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORTS FOR
THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The City’s independent auditors, CliftonLarsonAllen, LLP (CLA), have completed their annual audit of
the City’s fiscal activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. A CLA representative will present
audit results to the members of the Audit Committee. The report includes a draft of the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for the Audit Committee’s review and discussion, with
additional reports anticipated as supplemental material prior to the meeting. Staff will also present
the ACFR and additional listed reports to the City Council at the September 16, 2025 meeting.

¢ Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
e Inmate Trust Fund Financial Statement
e Audit Communication Letter

The City’s Single Audit Report for FY 2023-24 is also part of annual audit reports. This is in process,
with estimated completion at the end of the month.

The CLA Engagement Partner (lead for the City’s audit) presented the draft ACFR report at the
Budget and Finance Commission meeting on September 11, 2025 and responded to questions. The
Commission moved to receive and file with no additional comments.

Staff will subsequently submit the ACFR to the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) for
consideration in the Excellence in Financial Reporting program along with a request for extension of
review based on the extraordinary circumstances contributing to the delay in finalizing the report: the
introduction of a new audit firm and significant staff turnover.

BACKGROUND
The FY 2023-24 financial reports are briefly described below:

The ACFR is a comprehensive document reflecting the financial position of the City and its
component units for the prior fiscal year. The primary purpose of this report, as defined by the City
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1.1., File # 25-1304 Meeting Date: 9/16/2025

Charter, is to inform Mayor and City Council of all financial and administrative activities of the
previous fiscal year.

The Inmate Trust Fund Financial Statement is prepared and submitted as required by the state
penal code. This fund accounts for the money received by the City from the telephone company for
providing pay telephone service to City jail inmates. Monies received are to be used solely for the
benefit of the inmates.

The Audit Communication Letter summarizes significant changes in accounting practices which
were required by newly applicable accounting standards, describes sensitive accounting estimates
which the auditors found reasonable, lists the corrected misstatements identified during the audit,
and makes other similar disclosures.

The Single Audit Report is required for all federal and state funded programs. These programs are
audited in conformity with the provisions of the Single Audit Act of 1984 and the OMB Circular A-133,
Audits of State and Local Governments.

COORDINATION
The reports have been coordinated with the City’s independent auditors and all City departments.

FISCAL IMPACT
The total cost for this activity is included in the Financial Services Department’s portion of the FY
2023-24 Adopted Budget and is part of the department’s annual work program.

ATTACHMENTS

1. Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) for year ended June 30, 2024 (Draft)
2. PowerPoint Presentation

3. Inmate Trust Fund Financial Statement for year ended June 30, 2023

4 Audit Communication Letter

Page 2 of 2
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Financial Services Department Tel: 310.318.0683
REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
~ BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277

September XX, 2025

Honorable Mayor, City Council and Residents of the City of Redondo Beach:

We are happy to share the FY 2023-24 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The
report presents the City’s financial statements in conformance with generally accepted ac-
counting principles (GAAP) and as audited by an independent firm of licensed certified public
accountants, in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.

Typically, we deliver the ACFR by the second Council meeting in Dece ch year. The
FY 2023-24 ACFR was delayed as a result of the use of a new audit ollowing seven
years with the prior audit firm, and staff turnover in the Fina rt t. The FY 2023-24
ACFR is now complete and ready for presentation for the fi t ended on June 30,
2024.

—

According to the City Charter, the role of the ACFR is_to iRform the Mayor and City Council of
the financial and administrative activities of the Vi iscal year. In addition, the report
provides critical information to Redondo Beachgesi®ents aad the larger financial community.
For the residents, the report helps to correlate €it vices and accomplishments with the use
of resources. For the financial communit t provides information necessary to eval-
uate financial practices of the City, & thelfisoundness in accordance with GAAP, and de-
termine the financial capacity of th N ur and service debt for long-range capital plan-
ning.

L 4
he data presented and the completeness and fairness of

Responsibility for the ac x

the presentation, includj i sures, rests with the City. Consequently, management as-
sumes full responsibili e completeness and reliability of all information presented in this
report. To providey@ re able basis for making these representations, management of the
City has e edW@ comprehensive internal control framework that is designed to protect
the City’'sa rom loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable information for the
preparation of¥fe City’s financial statements in conformance with GAAP.

Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh the benefits, the City’s comprehen-
sive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than ab-
solute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
management, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is
complete and reliable in all material respects. GAAP requires that management provide a
narrative introduction, i.e., overview and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements

(1)
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Financial Services Department Tel: 310.318.0683
REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
~ BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277

known as Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal comple-
ments the MD&A and should be read together. The City’'s MD&A can be found immediately
following the report of the independent auditors in the financial section of the ACFR.

The annual audit may include findings regarding the City’s financial practices. The findings
pertain to areas that the auditors have identified for strengthening and improvement. For FY
2023-24, the City's new auditor identified grants, capital management, deposit management,
and year-end closing practices as areas of focus. Staff in the Financial Services Department
anticipated these findings and has already prepared improvements and injtiated processes
to address the cited concerns. It is worth noting that the findings are in that were re-
viewed by the City’s previous auditor and found to be of limited or no conc t time. The
findings pertain to financial practices that have remained the same for years in the City,
across the tenure of multiple Department Directors. Staff welcome Q or's thorough re-

view of these long-standing practices and view the findings ortunity to strengthen
internal controls and implement positive operational chan

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH PROFILE

The City of Redondo Beach, incorporated in 1892, is
geles County and spans 6.3 square miles. The Cit o Beach has a population of ap-
proximately 71,576 per the latest census (2020 ins a highly residential, non-industrial
community. The City is highly educated I upscale, with a median home cost of
$1,410,000 in fiscal year 2023-24, pegHdiTh edian income for a household in 2020 in the
City was $113,499.

in the South Bay region of Los An-

Redondo Beach has signif'@o
City anchored by North

entrations of employment in the northern portion of the
. It also has a vibrant hospitality sector near the Har-
bor/Pier areq, an eclectic cialty shops, restaurants and services in the Riviera Village,
at the south end of th f maintains retail centers at the South Bay Galleria, on the east
end of the City. Bd& the' number of full-time employees, the top ten employers in Redondo

Beach are rumman, Redondo Beach Unified School District, City of Redondo Beach,
The Chee$§ Factory, Macy's, Target Stores, Frontier, United States Post Office, Silverado
Beach Cities,'@nd Civic Financial Services.

The City is divided into five Council Districts and operates under a Council-Manager form of
government. One councilperson is elected from each district and serves a term of four years,
with a limit of two full terms. The Mayor is elected by the City at-large and is also limited to
serving two four-year terms. Other elected officials are the City Attorney, City Clerk, and City
Treasurer. Each of these elected offices serves a term of four years, but differ from the Mayor
and City Council in that individuals can be re-elected an unlimited number of times. The City
Council is responsible for City policy, including passing Municipal Code Ordinances, adopting

(i)
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Financial Services Department Tel: 310.318.0683
REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
~ BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277

the budget, and appointing the City Manager along with various other Board, Commission, and
Committee members.

In addition to serving as the governing board of the City, the Mayor and City Council act as the
Board of Directors for various component units of the City, including: the Redondo Beach Hous-
ing Authority, the Redondo Beach Public Financing Authority, the Redondo Beach Community
Financing Authority, the Parking Authority of the City of Redondo Beach, and the Redevelop-
ment/Successor Agency of the City of Redondo Beach. The City Manager is responsible for
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City Council and for selecting,the non-elected
heads of the City’s various departments. In May 2008, the Mayor and City il established
an audit committee to enhance the City’'s communication with its indep
firm, ensuring increased involvement by the governing board in the g aceounting pro-
cesses. Also, in September 2015, the City Council adopted a resoluti
ship of the audit committee to include the elected City Clerk

O
ected City Treasurer.

G

()

The City is classified as a full-service City, providing public rough its Police and Fire
Departments, along with a host of other services, including recredtfon and community services,
libraries, parks, maintenance and improvement of and infrastructure, planning and
zoning, housing, economic development, transit, afid ge | government services. The City

also operates and maintains a recreational h er atrust agreement with the State of
California.

The annual budget serves as the fou’ n for the City's fiscal plan and policy prioritization.
The City Council is required to ad al budget on or before June 30 of each year for
the General Fund, Special Reve unds, Enterprise Funds, Capital Projects Fund, and Internal

Service Funds. The City B ts Afive-year capital improvement program and a Redevel-
opment/Successor Agew :

The total adopted t Fepresents the level of appropriated budgetary control, which is
defined as th b t for all funds and divisions, and all revisions and amendments,
which mug @ pproyed by the City Council subsequent to the initial budget adoption. The
City Managegmnay authorize transfers within each fund and between line items or programs
within each department, however, supplemental appropriations and transfers between funds
or departments during the budget year must be approved with four affirmative votes of the
City Council. Unexpended or unencumbered appropriations expire at the end of each fiscal
year. Encumbered appropriations and appropriations related to grants and donations are re-
appropriated in the ensuing year's budget by action of the City Council. The City uses an
encumbrance system, whereby commitments, such as purchase orders and unperformed
contracts, are recorded as assigned fund balances at year end.

(iii)
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Financial Services Department Tel: 310.318.0683
REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
~ BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277

Significant Events, Accomplishments and Economic Development Activities

Redondo Beach has historically remained fiscally sound through proactive management, dis-
ciplined expenditure oversight, development of a diversified revenue base, and by inviting pub-
lic/private partnerships that reduce City costs, create new public amenities and increase rev-
enues. These financial practices have enabled the City to maintain healthy reserves and
achieve an Aal credit rating. The City’s Property Tax revenue continues to be its strongest rev-
enue stream, increasing by approximately five percent annually over the past five years. Two
other major revenue sources, sales tax and transient occupancy tax (TOT) flattened in FY 2023-

24 following strong post-COVID recovery in FY 2022-23. Transient Occup Tax lagged in
recovery due to the City’'s site-specific tax pledge impacting TOT reven r three hotel
properties. As those properties continue to recover from COVID and its term impacts,
the City has been delayed in receiving TOT generated from the sites. Eor, s Tax, Redondo

lat online sales and
ertainty at the South
Obe a negative factor im-

Beach experienced flattening trends similar to the state and region,
slower consumer spending following the COVID recovery.
Bay Galleria site, one of the City’s major retail centers, con
pacting sales tax revenue growth.

For most of FY 2023-24, the City’s economic develop orts focused on strengthening and
supporting the three commercial zones within the - theArtesia/Aviation Commercial Cor-
1%,

ridor (inclusive of the South Bay Social District the Riviera Village Business Improve-

r
ment District (BID), and the Redondo BeachaWa t.
L 4
Within the Riviera Village, the City WOXS ith members of the Riviera Village Business Im-
C

provement District to continue thg's of the parklet program, which provided outdoor

space for local business tgo ateand bring additional life and commercial activity to the

already vibrant area. While X lly €énvisioned as temporary outdoor dining locations for use
velpe

during COVID, the parklets n approved by the City and California Coastal Commission
for continued operati ly 1 of 2026 as a result of their visitor popularity and success.

Within the ORE, the City continued its storefront improvement program for businesses
located a ernational Boardwalk. Grant funding, ranging from $2,500 to $50,000, was
made availablg to support improvements/upgrades to storefronts and facades. The pro-
gram aims to encourage private investment in the International Boardwalk commercial corri-
dor, enhance the appearance of the storefronts, and to reduce vacancies.

The City made significant progress in improving the Waterfront as a destination for visitors.
The City and its event partner have successfully implemented an annual Beach Life concert
festival that brings tens of thousands of people to the area. The Waterfront is also in the pro-
cess of executing its Public Amenities Plan, which was approved in 2022 and identifies more
than 40 projects to enhance the pubilic facilities offered to waterfront visitors. In FY 2023-24,
staff secured State Grant Funding to renovate Seaside Lagoon and is working with the State

(iv)
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Financial Services Department Tel: 310.318.0683
REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
~ BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277

Division of Boating and Waterways to prepare a grant application for a new public boat
launch on Mole D.

Elsewhere in the City, the most significant approved projects were along Artesia Boulevard.
The Grubhaus restaurant project, located at 2400 Artesia Boulevard, was approved by the
Planning Commission in December of 2022 and completed demolition and the substantive
components of the Plan Check review process in FY 2023-24. Construction is expected to
begin in 2025. This project consists of a 7,892 square foot building with up to 16 restaurant
operators and 1,785 square feet of outdoor seating with 200 seats; 320 square feet of ground
floor retail space; 1,560 square feet of office on the second floor; and a su ean garage
with 42 parking spaces. This project is expected to bring energy and econ
tesia Boulevard that will serve to revitalize the Boulevard.

0 residential units and 8,000
enade was also later approved.

residential buildings. A second Phase, inclusive of @ihoth
square feet of retail, along with a nearly 20,00 pr

These additions to the Boulevard are exp ing significant economic development
and revitalization to North Redondo.

The number of development pr er construction, or preparing for construction, re-
flect the City’s strong pro 8r nd signal the potential for increased tax revenues in
the City, driven in large pdgt b ndo Beach'’s high quality of life, the continued excellence

of the Redondo Beach i chool District, and the City’s close proximity to the LAX airport

and Silicon Beach t ogy hub.
Property (
Property tax iSighe City’s largest single revenue source. It is imposed on real property (land

and permanently attached improvements, such as buildings) and tangible personal property
(moveable property) located within the City. Property is initially assessed by the County As-
sessor at a tax rate of 1.0% of the value, and can rise no more than 2.0% each year. The City
receives revenues equal to 16.5% of the tax rate from the County of Los Angeles Auditor/Con-
troller’s Office. This equals 16.5 cents out of each dollar of property tax collected by Los Ange-
les County for property in the City.

For FY 2023-24, property tax revenue was based on calendar year 2022 property values. Ac-
tual revenues were higher than budgeted. The City’s FY 2023-24 citywide assessed valuation

(v)
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“ REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
~ BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277

was $21.6 billion, $1.1 billion (5.4%) over the prior fiscal year. The City’s assessed valuation
amount is derived 82.5% from residential properties, 7.8% fromm commercial properties, 3.7%
from industrial properties, and the remaining 6.0% from vacant, institutional, and other prop-
erties.

Fiscal year 2023-24 property tax revenue (including homeowners’ exemptions) was $38.1 mil-
lion, a $1.3 million, a 4.6% increase over the prior year, consistent with the assessed valuation
increases.

Property Tax

SUOI||IIN Ul stejjoq

@ Fiscal Year

(vi)
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P N
REDONDO 415 Diamond Street Redondo.org
h——t BEACH Redondo Beach, CA 90277
Sales Tax

Sales tax is the City’'s second largest revenue source. The sales tax rate in Los Angeles County
was 9.50% for FY 2023-24. Redondo Beach receives 1% of taxable sales from the California De-
partment of Tax and Fee Administration. Until FY 2015-16, the data below includes revenue from
the triple flip revenue swap procedure, whereby 25 percent of the City’s traditional sales tax
base was committed to the State for deficit reduction bonds, and then reimbursed in the same
amount as additional property tax revenue to the City. Starting FY 2016-17, the data reflects the
City’s sales tax proportion only.

Fiscal year 2023-24 sales tax revenue was $10.8 million, a $0.2 million or 4 rease from

prior year receipts as economic challenges including high inflation an degl Reserve rate
increases drove decreases in consumer spending, combined with the @n rend towards
online purchasing. The City’s largest business structures, including re ants and hotels,

showed some declines, and the fuel sector continued to sho
These declines are consistent with state and nation-wide trep

ipts related to pricing.

Sa a

Fiscal Year
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Transient Occupancy Tax (TOT)

Transient Occupancy Tax, the City’s third largest single revenue source, is imposed on short-
term occupants of hotels, motels, inns, tourist homes or other lodging facilities (those staying
for 30 or fewer days). The current tax rate of 12% is applied to the customer’s lodging bill. The
rate was last increased in 2005 by 2%.

The figures below show the net revenue the City retains from Transient Occupancy Tax. Prior
to FY 2016-17, the City contributed 10% of TOT revenue to the Redondo Beach Chamber of Com-

merce and Visitors Bureau to support marketing and tourism in the City, offgetiing the revenue
received. Since 2020, the City has paid TOT revenue generated from three erties into
a lender-held reserve account according to the terms of a site-specifiggta reement be-
tween the City and the property developer. This has effectively reduce 'S retained TOT

by the amount of that revenue.

Fiscal year 2023-24 revenue, net of related payments, waS§ lion, a $0.3 million or 5%
increase over the prior fiscal year.

Transi @cupancy Tax

SUol||IIN Ul sJejjoq
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Vehicle License Fees (VLF)

Vehicle license fee revenue, the City’s fourth largest revenue source, comes from a State-im-
posed tax on owners of registered vehicles for the privilege of operating a vehicle on public
highways. The revenue reflects 2% of the market value of the motor vehicle, which the City
receives as a motor vehicle in-lieu tax and through Property Tax receipts as property tax in lieu
of vehicle license fees.

Vehicle License Fee revenue has increased consistently over the past 10 years, with an average
annual increase of about 5%. Fiscal year 2023-24 revenue was $9.6 milli 3.7% increase
over the prior year.

Vehicle License

LA, Y SUEIOG ,

—_—
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Fiscal Year
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Utility Users’ Tax (UUT)

Utility users’ tax (UUT), the City’s fifth largest revenue source, is imposed on consumers of elec-
tric, gas, cable services, water and telephone services. Redondo Beach'’s UUT rate is set at
4.75%. In the last 10 years, the City’s UUT revenue has declined or remained relatively flat, as
more consumers move away from cable to internet based streaming services which are not
taxed. This trend reversed during FY 2021-22 and 2022-23, with increases in UUT driven by gen-
eral rate increases, population growth, more remote workers, inflation and natural gas prices.

Fiscal year FY 2023-24 revenue was $8.5 million, a $0.7 million or 7.5% decr from the prior
year. The decrease primarily reflects a retreat from an unusually high FY -28 total, which

was driven by historic spikes in energy costs.
Utility UserQ
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CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT PLANNING, ACCOMPLISHMENTS AND ACTIVITIES

In FY 2023-24, the City continued to plan, design, and construct a significant number of capital
improvement projects. Street improvement projects, with the greatest variety of funding
sources, continued to represent a large portion of the work plan, however, projects in other
categories were completed throughout the City as well.

The City officially completed the Transit Center Project (~$15M), which consisted of both the
Transit Center Building and Depot and the subsequent Kingsdale Avenue Widening. This was
the City’s largest CIP over the last two decades and it was funded entirely wi rants and re-
stricted transportation funds. K

The City made progress on several Regional Measure R and Measure M ransportation-
related capital projects. Design of the right turn lane project locateglon ion Boulevard at
Artesia Boulevard ($1.4 million) was completed, and the Cit avorable ruling in the
eminent domain case, allowing the project to move forware uction for Phase 2 of the
southbound right turn lane on Inglewood Avenue at Manhattdy B€ach Boulevard Project, in-
cluding modifications to the signals ($2.6 million) was§approved by the City Council. The
Anita/Herondo St. and Pacific Coast Highway lef odifications project ($2.5M) was
awarded with construction later completed in FY 4-25,

The Grant Avenue Signal Improvement Project and the Torrance Boulevard Resurfacing
and Signal Improvement Project ($63 wergysubstantially completed. Citywide Slurry Seal
Phase 3 was completed in the first h 23-34 ($750,000) and Phase 4 was awarded a
construction contract ($485,000)

The Franklin Park Repair: :
courts completed and the'SRadg structure installed in the subsequent months. The Alta Vista
Field Improvements ( as completed in the first half of FY 2023-24. The rubberized
play surface ($163 eplaced at Anderson Park. The roofs at the Alta Vista Community
Center and ilderness Park Community Center ($200,000) were replaced in the spring of
FY 2023-2 ess Was made on the design of the Southern California Edison (SCE) right of
way (ROW) t of PCH Landscape Improvements ($786,000) Project. The Dominguez Park
Play Equipment, Yandscape and Walkways Project ($2 million) entered into construction during
the FY as well.

The City continued to devote significant resources to the maintenance and improvement of its
wastewater infrastructure. The Basin 2 Pump Out Station ($1.95M) was completed in February
2024. Construction commenced for the Portofino Sewer Pump Station ($5.12 million). In addi-
tion, improvements and maintenance, including the re-lining of sewer pipes and root foaming,
were executed citywide as part of the Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project ($700,000).

(xi)
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In the waterfront, the Harbor Patrol Docks ($1.8M) were replaced with the project completed in
February 2024. The Harbor Dredging Project ($3M) was awarded and substantially completed
by the end of the fiscal year. The Sports Fishing Pier ($1.2M) was demolished due to safety
concerns in FY 2023-24. Also, several repairs were made to the Horseshoe Pier, following heavy
storm activity, through the ongoing Pier Structure Repair Project ($600,000). Additionally, City
staff continued with Pier restroom improvements ($50,000) and progress was made on the
design plans for reconstruction of the Seaside Lagoon ($3.1 million).

The above is a snapshot of the year’s highlights and is not inclusive of all of thg progress made
on capital projects. In summary, the City officially or substantially compléte CIP projects
in FY 2023-24 and designed and/or awarded contracts for construction itional 20
projects, for a total capital expenditure of $24.6 million.

CASH MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND PRACTICES

The City invests all idle cash in various investment instrumeé duithorized within the City’s

non-discretionary investment management servi to the\City Treasurer. The City’s invest-
ment portfolio consists of a well-diversified easury securities, Federal Agency se-
curities, FDIC insured collateralized deposij n end of A-AAA rated Corporate Medium-
Term Notes, all of which are structurgd al@ng @five-year laddered maturity schedule. In addi-
tion, sufficient portfolio liquidity is moi& through continued maintenance of a significant
portion of the investment portfoli itien in the State managed Local Agency Investment
Fund, or LAIF.

L 4

The City maintains an Inv t Policy certified for reporting excellence by the Government
Investment Officers Ag yr 0tioh (GIOA) and has established both a written investment policy
and investment prg€et «@ anual. The Investment Policy is reviewed by both the City Coun-

cil and the t @pd Finance Commission on an annual basis. The investment policy’s es-
tablished ance benchmark is the thirty-month moving average of the ICE B of A zero
to five-year sury index.

The level of investments maintained with LAIF fluctuates in accordance with variations in both
the City’'s operational and capital improvement program cash flow requirements. The LAIF bal-
ance is maintained at a level of $5 to $25 million, or a range of 5% to 25% of the general port-
folio’s assets on average, ensuring maintenance of sufficient investment portfolio liquidity. The
yield provided by LAIF has increased over the past year as short-term market interest rates in-
creased. Idle investment funds above the liquidity threshold have been placed primarily in
Federal Agency investments within the two to five-year investment maturity range. The in-
crease in market interest rates experienced over the past year have been both anticipated and

(xii)
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well managed, proactively responding to both the City’s operating and capital improvement
cash flow requirements. The City’'s investment portfolio consistently meets the primary objec-
tives set forth in the City’s investment policy.

As of June 30, 2024, the City's general portfolio was invested as follows:

Comparison of Investment Portfolio Positions F.Y. 2023-2024

1st Quarter 2nd Quarter 3rd Quarter 4th Quarter
Investment Type %
Cash in Banks $6,469,818 = 13,256,219 * §11,755,717 * $ 10,560,379.31 *
Money Market $8,733,993 8.78% $19,612,340 19.53% | $15,881,678 | 15.37% 2@2,927.12 16.95%

Local Agency Investment Fund $98,106 10.00% $100,842 0.10% $101,853 0.10% 041.43 0.10%

Federal Agency Issues $49,969,031 50.24% | $48,017,978 47.81% | $48,065,986 | 46.52% 43.42%
Commercial Paper 50 0.00% S0 0.00% 50 ; 0.00%
Corporate Medium Term Notes $6,905,358 65.94% $2,921,402 2.91% 54,468,652 A 7.83%
Bank Certificates of Deposit $991,797 1.00% $991,856 0.99% $991,914 9€5 ‘a 47,964.77 0.23%
Treasuries $32,755,612 32.94% | $28,785,152 28.66% | g7 3,785,808.60 31.47%

Total: Investment Portfolio $99,453,897 100% [$100,429,570 | 100.0% $107,360,637.83 100.00%
Weighted Average Maturity (Yrs) 1.96 173 1.39

Portfolio Effective Rate of Return (YTD) 2.82% 2.96% 2.78%

LALF. Yield 3.55% 3.93% 4.33%

Yield on Benchmark 2.66% 3.10% 3.95%

Interest earned YTD $675,178.00 $1,260,353.00 $2,023,050 $2,773,041

General Fund Contribution (60%) $405,107 $756,212 $1,213,830 $1,663,824.86

As required by GASB 3], the City recorded the
account for the market value on June 30
dropped below the book value of $101,3

e portfolio market value, $105,058,799,
-2,301,839 of the current market value of the
investments within the City’s investmdpt Pertfolio. This unrealized loss in the value of invest-
ments results from structural fact Xt rest rate movements within the financial market-
place over the past year impac he Market valuation of the City’s investments in both Fed-

eral Agency issues and Co K Medium-Term Notes

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City maintai —ifisurance program for workers’ compensation and liability claims.
uMllates resources in the Self-Insurance Program internal service fund to

workers’ compensation claim is provided by a third-party private insurer, and excess liability
of up to $30 million for each occurrence is covered by Public Risk Innovation, Solutions, and
Management (PRISM), formally the California State Association of Counties — Excess Insurance
Authority (CSAC-EIA).
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PRISM is a joint powers authority for 95% of California counties as well as 68% of California mu-
nicipalities where risks and losses are pooled together to keep annual premiums low. Both the
workers’ compensation and liability claim programs are managed by a third-party claims ad-
ministrator under the direction of the Risk Management Division of the Human Resources De-
partment.

The amounts included in the Self-Insurance Program internal service fund are significant,

partly due to requirements of GASB 10. In complying with GASB 10, the Cit st record as a

liability and expenditure not only actual risk/loss experienced in the areas rs’ compen-

sation and liability, but also claims incurred but not reported (IBNR). IBNR cl de expo-

sure for losses the city is not yet aware, as well as any statistically pro inCfease in costs

for accidents that are already known to the City. The oppropriateq O include on the
t

financial statements for IBNR claims is typically developed b y.
As of June 30, 2024, the City recorded the following:

Workers’ Compensation Claims

Claims payable totaled $14.7 million, an increase of k4 milli@n, or 11% over the prior period. This
increase is attributable to increased claims. Iyl eflects a return to a regular year of claims
following a significant decrease in FY 202 d COVID.

L 4

Liability Claims

Claims payable totaled $9.7 milli
increase reflects a return t@®re
in claims related to COV

anligcrease of $2 million, or 26% over the prior period. This
ims activity in FY 2023-24 following the prior year's drop
0QJaims settlement.

Unemployment Ins

The City partigi S i irect-cost reimbursement method for unemployment insurance.
This progr, d istered by the State Employment Development Department (EDD) to
provide sal ontinuance for terminated employees. For FY 2023-24, reimbursement to EDD
was $42,592.

PENSION AND OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (OPEB)

The City provides three Tier 1 defined benefit pension plans — two for safety employees (3% at
55 for Fire and 3% at 50 for Police) and one for miscellaneous employees (2% at 55). Beginning
July 2012, two additional Tier 2 defined benefit pension plans were provided — one for safety
employees (3% at 55 for both Fire and Police) and one for miscellaneous employees (2% at 60).
Beginning January 2013, pursuant to the California Public Employee’s Pension Reform Act of
2013 (PEPRA), Tier 3 defined benefit pension plans were added, 2.7% at 57 for safety employees
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and 2% at 62 for miscellaneous employees. These plans are part of the California Public Em-
ployees Retirement System (CalPERS), which acts as a common investment and administrative
agent for participating public employers within the State of California. The City makes contri-
butions to the plans based on amounts determined by CalPERS actuaries. Employees of some
bargaining groups pay a portion of the employee and/or employer contribution to CalPERS.

CalPERS began to separately identify the City’s employer contributions as normal cost and un-
funded liability in FY 2017-18. The City pays the normal cost portion — ongoing contribution
reflecting the amount estimated to fully fund future benefits under investment and plan as-
sumptions - as a percentage of payroll. The required unfunded liability p@tti@fy- the amount
that the City must contribute to cover the gap between the value of the Ci
and the estimated amount required to fund future benefits — is pregén a flat dollar
amount. In FY 2023-24, the normal cost increased from 9.23% to 10.38% f miscellaneous
group and from 31.91% to 33.73% for public safety. The City hg uired unfunded liability
payment in FY 2023-24, as a result of an FY 2021-22 unfund€d payoff of approximately
$220 million.

Pension benefit payments for employer contributioas, aRd City-paid member contributions
were $7.3 million. Approximately $6.1 million, or , wad arged to the General Fund. The
City’s budgeted amount of $7.4 million in all fu eded’actual spending.

Aside from contributing to CalPERS, the Ci (¢} tributes to Social Security. The FY 2023-24
total cost for Social Security and Medigare,covérage was $2.6 million, of which $1.5 million, or
68.8%, was from the General Fund. e ployees do not participate in Social Security and
Medicare, except for those emp es d after 1986, who are required to participate in Med-
icare. *

The City also provide tirement health care benefits to its employees in accordance
with agreements re h various employee bargaining groups. The City pays for retirees’
health care S ese plans up to limits established in the agreements with the bar-
gaining u er 64, only the City’s minimum health premium contribution under the

Public Empl s’ Medical and Hospital Care Act (PEHMCA) is paid. These payments are paid
via an Other PO8t-Employment Benefits (OPEB) trust, which was established by the City in FY
2009-2010 to comply with GASB 45. The OPEB trust allows the City to prefund actuarially derived
OPEB costs that are expected to be incurred in future periods. In FY 2023-24, the City contrib-
uted $2.0 million to the OPEB trust to cover current and future retiree medical benefits, with $1.6
million or 80.9% in the General Fund. Future contributions will vary based on updated actuarial
studies. As of June 30, 2023 (the measurement date in the most recent actuarial report), the
City provided full benefits to 184 participants.
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AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement
for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Redondo Beach for its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report (ACFR) for the year ended June 30,2023. This makes 31 consecutive years that
the City has been awarded this achievement. To be awarded this certificate, a government
must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial re-
port. This report must satisfy both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable
legal requirements.

For FY 2023-24, the City will again apply to the GFOA for the Certificate of e nt for Ex-
cellence in Financial Reporting. We believe that our current annual co ehensive financial
report continues to meet and exceed the criteria to receive this certificdte we will be sub-

mitting it to GFOA for consideration.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach
Redondo Beach, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements ernmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate ré nd information of the City of
Redondo Beach (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30 and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the City’s cial statements, as listed in the
table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to at&pre nt fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental 188, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund informatio City as of June 30, 2024, and the respective
changes in financial position and, where a I ash flows thereof for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles g&\ accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accgrdagice
of America (GAAS) and the gta
Standards, issued by the Co

ith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
eneral of the United States. Our responsibilities under those
n the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial

standards are further d
Statements section of (0] e are required to be independent of the City and to meet our other
ethical responsibiliti % ance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We

nce we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

Emphasis of Matt

As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statements, the City made restatements to beginning fund
balance/net position resulting from corrections of errors. Our opinions are not modified with respect to
this matter.

(1
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whetheg there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the ability to continue
as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, any currently
known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

ial statements as a whole
issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of as g/but is not absolute assurance
and, therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted i
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatemen

hen it exists. The risk of not detecting a
ne resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misre ns, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there i likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

L 2

In performing an audit in accordance wit nd Government Auditing Standards, we:

o Exercise professional judg d maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

L 2
e Identify and assess s 'of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and nd perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures mclud g on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial
e Obtain d tandlng of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit

proced @ at are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion Ofthe effectiveness of City’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

¢ Evaluate the*appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,

the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related
matters that we identified during the audit.

(1
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison schedule for the General Fund and
major special revenue funds, the modified approach for the City’s infrastructure assets, and the
required pension and other postemployment benefits schedules, as listed on the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operationalffecg@homic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supple information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the ion and comparing
the information for consistency with management’s responses to ougfing , the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of 3 inancial statements. We do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the informa s&the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or p assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formi idlons on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial stateme The c@mbining and individual nonmajor fund
financial statements are presented for purposes of gdditional an@lysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is thefrggpahsibility of management and was derived from
and relates directly to the underlying accountj dhether records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. The information has been sfibje8led tOWhe auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and certain a d&g rocedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying and other records used to prepare the basic financial
' tat@ments themselves, and other additional procedures in
, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
chedules are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to

accordance with GAAS. In 8 ini
statements and budgetary co &

the basic financial stateme

Other Information
Management g ponsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other
information cdm the¥introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial
statements and '@ltir auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not
cover the other infofgnation, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the
basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

)
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
REPORT DATE, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and
other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control
over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
the effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is
an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance. K

Irvine, California
REPORT DATE

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP :@

@)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
ASSETS
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 96,773,956 $ 28,104,520 124,878,476
Receivables:

Accounts 1,081,745 1,482,244 2,563,989
Taxes 5,395,414 178,672 5,574,086
Accrued Interest 453,922 321,953 775,875
Notes and Loans 2,405,808 2,405,808
Leases 5,812,597 69,83 75,642,634
Internal Balances 1,292,629 (1,292 -
Prepaid Costs 152,736 - 152,736
Due from Other Governments 14,336,265 14,418,940
Advances to Successor Agency 535,731 - 535,731

Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agent 873 56,119
Deposits Receivable - 1,574,054
Capital Assets, Not Being Depreciated 31,676,591 129,380,144
Capital Assets, Net of Depreciation 45,703,720 143,517,523
Total Current Assets 176,088,656 501,476,115

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred Charge on Refunding - 257,077 257,077
Deferred Pension Related ltems 46,272,661 5,172,436 51,445,097
3,931,106 461,455 4,392,561
50,203,767 5,890,968 56,094,735

Deferred OPEB Related Items
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources * Q

<z“

N\

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
JUNE 30, 2024

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Accrued Liabilities
Accrued Interest
Unearned Revenue
Deposits Payable
Due to Other Governments
Pollution Remediation Liability
Compensated Absences Due in One Year
Claims Payable Due in One Year
Long-Term Obligations Due in One Year

Total Current Liabilities

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences Due in More than One Year
Claims Payable Due in More than One Year
Long-Term Obligations Due in More than One Year
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Liability
Total Current Liabilities

Total Liabilities

Deferred Pension Related Items
Deferred OPEB Related Items
Deferred Leases Related ltems

Total Deferred Inflows of Resbur

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES ’\

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Ass,

Restricted for:
Housing and Communi
Public Safety
Public Work;
Debt Service
Low and Moder

Unrestricted

ent

ncome Housing

Total Net Position

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 7,939,117  $ 3,073,608 $ 11,012,725
4,898,642 - 4,898,642
1,017,143 106,784 1,123,927
1,005,960 43,243 1,049,203
4,000,601 22 4,226,235
- 26 266,467
150,000 150,000
1,011,470 1,136,793
1,203,177 1,203,177
8,645,932 4 9,632,216
29,872,0 ,827,343 34,699,385
3,034,40 375,954 3,410,360
- 23,199,925
21,170,637 233,927,907
3,883,837 42,305,397
1,435,795 13,667,248
26,866,223 316,510,837
19,516,656 31,693,566 351,210,222
1,649,716 248,816 1,898,532
3,271,474 384,023 3,655,497
5,716,656 68,266,390 73,983,046
10,637,846 68,899,229 79,537,075
201,454,388 71,887,538 273,341,926
12,519,783 - 12,519,783
423,133 - 423,133
7,810,731 - 7,810,731
4,639,885 - 4,639,885
4,864,048 - 4,864,048
(186,275,244) 9,499,291 (176,775,953)
$ 45436724 _$ 81,386,829 _$ 126,823,553

(24)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Program Revenues

Charges Operating Capital
for Grants and Grants and
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:

General Government $ 14,502,522 16,077,714 $ - $ -
Public Safety 84,041,046 5,754,175 1,654,953 -
Housing and Community Development 15,740,380 4,331,471 Y -
Cultural and Leisure Services 13,367,162 10,169,027 2,462,965
Public Works 18,203,045 3,441,632 5,888,527

Interest on Long-Term Debt and
Fiscal Charges 6,374,469 - -
Total Governmental Activities 152,228,624 39,774,019 8,351,492

Business-Type Activities:

Harbor Tidelands 12,302,254 -
Harbor Uplands 7,231,353 - -
Wastewater 4,081,219 - -
Solid Waste 6,632,516 27,206 -
Transit 5,967,261 3,343,088 -
Total Business-Type Activities 36,214,603 3,382,921 -
Total Primary Government 3 188,443,227 3 18,926,971 3 8,351,492

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Net (Expenses) Revenues and

Changes in Net Position
Primary Government

Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Activities Activities Total
PRIMARY GOVERNMENT
Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 1,575,192 $ - $ 1,575,192
Public Safety (76,631,918) - (76,631,918)
Housing and Community Development (10,597,543) -
Cultural and Leisure Services 8,160,856 -
Public Works (4,691,181) -
Interest on Long-Term Debt and
Fiscal Charges (6,374,469) -
Total Governmental Activities (88,559,063) -
Business-Type Activities:
Harbor Tidelands - (3,679,207)
Harbor Uplands - 75,330
Wastewater - 1,563,059
Solid Waste - ) 385,462
Transit - (2,407,066) (2,407,066)
Total Business-Type Activities - (4,062,422) (4,062,422)
Total Primary Government (88,559,063) ,062,422) (92,621,485)
GENERAL REVENUES
Taxes:
Property Taxes, Levied for General
Purposes - 48,021,316
Transient Occupancy Taxes - 9,114,545
Sales Taxes - 10,822,480
Franchise Taxes - 1,964,410
Business Licenses Taxes TS 1,266,051 - 1,266,051
Utility Users Tax 8,481,267 - 8,481,267
Other Taxes 1,118,398 - 1,118,398
Motor Vehicle In Lieu - Unrestricted 86,764 - 86,764
Investment Income 6,551,406 2,427,116 8,978,522
Gain on Sale of Capital Asset 115,613 - 115,613
Transfers (487,401) 487,401 -
Total Gener and
Transfer; 87,054,849 2,914,517 89,969,366
CHANGE IN NET PO (1,504,214) (1,147,905) (2,652,119)
Net Position - Beginning of Year,
as Previously Reported 54,191,573 82,449,722 136,641,295
Error Corrections (7,250,635) 85,012 (7,165,623)
Net Position - Beginning of Year,
as Restated 46,940,938 82,534,734 129,475,672
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 45.436.724 $ 81,386,829 3 126,823,553

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Other Other Total
Intergovernmental Low-Mod Income Governmental Governmental
General Grants Housing Funds Funds
ASSETS
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 28,233,374 $ - 8 1,898,524  § 35,840,443  § 65,972,341
Receivables:
Accounts 399,354 502,174 - 125,763 1,027,291
Taxes 5,205,519 - - 189,895 5,395,414
Accrued Interest 369,305 - - 84,617 453,922
Notes and Loans 15,616 - 2,078,965 1,227 2,405,808
Leases 4,785,455 - - 1, 5,812,597
Prepaid Costs 152,736 - - 152,736
Due from Other Governments 1,649,840 6,949,747 - 6,678 14,336,265
Due from Other Funds 9,586,431 - - 5,222,879 14,809,310
Advances to Successor Agency - - - 535,731
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents - - 55,246 55,246
Deposits Receivable 1,574,054 - - 1,574,054
Total Assets $ 51,971,684 $ 7,451,921 $ 48593890 _$ 112,530,715

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable $ 1,686,301 $ 97,925 28,563 $ 2,190,159 $ 5,502,948
Accrued Liabilities 4,814,108 534 - - 4,898,642
Unearned Revenue 340,529 1 - - 1,005,960
Deposits Payable 4,000,601 - - - 4,000,601
Due to Other Funds 8,098 861,213 6,787,370 13,516,681
Pollution Remediation Liability - - - 150,000
Total Liabilities 8,215,988 889,776 8,977,529 29,074,832
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues 5,969,180 389,992 311,230 6,670,402
Deferred Leases Related Items - - 1,003,403 5,716,656
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources ’ 5,969,180 389,992 1,314,633 12,387,058
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Prepaid Costs - - - 152,736
Notes and Loans - - - 15,616
Restricted for:
Housing and Community Development - - - 12,195,736 12,195,736
Public Safety - - - 423,133 423,133
Public Works - - - 7,810,731 7,810,731
Debt Service - - - 5,608,337 5,608,337
Low and Moderate Inco sing - - 3,233,452 1,240,604 4,474,056
Committed to:
Contingency 8,599,208 - - - 8,599,208
Assigned to: -
Capital Projects - - - 11,118,944 11,118,944
Compensated Absences 785,832 - - - 785,832
Future Pension Payments 7,975,721 - - - 7,975,721
Continuing Operations 17,206,519 - - - 17,206,519
Unassigned 1,531,260 (6,733,247) - (95,757) (5,297,744)
Total Fund Balances 36,266,892 (6,733,247) 3,233,452 38,301,728 71,068,825
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 51971684 $ 7451921  _$ 4.513,220 $ 48,593,890 $ 112.530.715

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2024

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds $ 71,068,825
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:
Capital assets, net of depreciation have not been included as financial
resources in governmental fund activity. 184,580,801
Long-term debt and compensated absences that have not been included
in the governmental fund activity:
Bonds Payable (208,713,498)
Leases and Subscriptions (2,456,226)
Net OPEB Liability (11,466,108)
Net Pension Liability (36,533,607)
Compensated Absences (3,722,950)
Accrued interest payable for the current portion of interest due
on bonds are not reported in the governmental funds. (968,452)
Revenues reported as unavailable revenue in the govern tal and
recognized in the Statement of Activities. These are include the
intergovernmental revenues in the governmental fun i 6,670,402
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources in er activities are not
financial resources and, therefore, are not% lo) in governmental funds:
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Pensj k Items 43,748,421
Deferred Inflows of Resources - Pensi ltems (1,527,125)
Deferred Outflows of Resources - Related Items 3,685,130
Deferred Inflows of Resource®-,0 ted Items (3,066,773)
Internal service funds are us xgement to charge the costs of certain
activities, such as equipm agement and self-insurance, to individual
funds. The assets and li s of the internal service funds must be added
to the Statemen osl 4,137,884
Net Position of mental Activities $ 45436724

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Other Other Total
Intergovernmental Low-Mod Income Governmental Governmental
General Grants Housing Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ 80,645,193 $ - 8 - 98 143,274  $ 80,788,467
Interdepartmental 13,821,750 - - - 13,821,750
Licenses and Permits 2,386,229 - - - 2,386,229
Intergovernmental 186,830 10,292,835 - 20,259,672 30,739,337
Charges for Services 10,078,596 - - 1,924,566 12,003,162
Use of Money and Property 5,265,301 - 54,897 1,183,824 6,504,022
Fines and Forfeitures 1,230,559 - - 72,107 1,302,666
Miscellaneous 3,189,908 - - ;087 4,086,995
Total Revenues 116,804,366 10,292,835 54,89 ,480,530 151,632,628
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government 14,492,509 754,748 - 3,937 15,251,194
Public Safety 62,610,870 391,521 154,515 63,156,906
Housing and Community Development 3,453,461 - ,159 9,465,472 12,959,092
Cultural and Leisure Services 12,019,487 - ,000 - 12,298,487
Public Works 7,608,906 - 4,369,383 12,308,415
Capital Outlay 235,704 - 9,391,848 18,804,835
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 593,041 - 7,227,940 7,879,970
Interest and Fiscal Charges 15,322 - 5,883,179 5,907,255
Total Expenditures 101,029,300 319,159 36,496,274 148,566,154
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 15,775, (428,586) (264,262) (12,015,744) 3,066,474
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers In - - 14,785,204 16,438,383
Transfers Out - - (2,951,946) (16,925,784)
Subscription Financing - - 10,500 629,752
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) - - 11,843,758 142,351
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES ¢ (428,586) (264,262) (171,986) 3,208,825
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Beginning of Year
as Previously Presented 33,188,418 (6,053,354) 3,497,714 38,473,714 69,106,492
Error Corrections (995,185) (251,307) - - (1,246,492)
Fund Balances (Deficits) - Beg Ye:
as Restated @ 32,193,233 (6,304,661) 3,497,714 38,473,714 67,860,000
FUND BALANCES (DEFICITS) D OF YEAR $ 36,266,892 _$ (6,733.247) _$ 3233452 _$ 38,301,728 _$ 71,068,825

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Net Change in Fund Balances - Total Governmental Funds $ 3,208,825

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
Statement of Activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over the estimated
useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which capital outlay
exceeded depreciation and disposals in the current period.

Capital Outlay 14,010,487
Depreciation (6,098,819)
Loss on Disposal of Capital Assets (447,226)

Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the

repayment reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.
Principal Repayments 7,194,296
Leases and Subscriptions Principal Repayments 685,674
Subscriptions Financing (629,752)
Amortization of Bond Premium / Discounts (24,902)

Accrued interest for long-term liabilities. This is the net change in
interest for the current period. (180,987)

expenditures in the governmental funds. (236,250)
Governmental funds report all contributions in
contribution for pensions as expenditures, h
pension expense is actually determined
are deferred to future periods. (12,917,021)

Governmental funds report all con ti in relation to the annual required

contribution for OPEB as exp eSWhowever, in the Statement of Activities,

OPEB expense is actually nédl and certain pension related adjustments

are deferred to future pegi@ds. 787,610

Revenues repg inavailable revenue in the governmental funds and recognized

in the Statemen ivities. These are included in the intergovernmental revenues

in the governmentalifund activity. (583,815)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of certain

activities, such as equipment management and self-insurance, to individual funds.

The net revenues (expenses) of the internal service fund is reported with

governmental activities. (6,272,334)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ (1,504,214)

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
(31)



CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Harbor Harbor
Tidela_nds Uplands Wastewater
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments $ 6,435,936 954,289 $ 17,328,654
Receivables:
Accounts 754,193 350,950 27,199
Taxes - - 77,922
Accrued Interest 154,763 77 89,806
Leases 1,835,890 2,2, 27, -
Due from Other Governments - -
Due from Other Funds 175,000 -
Restricted:
Cash with Fiscal Agent - 810
Total Current Assets 9,355,782 17,524,391
Noncurrent Assets:
Leases Receivable 41,618,323, -
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 24,793, 27,472,177
Total Noncurrent Assets 47,406,484 27,472,177
Total Assets 51,069,134 44,996,568
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding - 257,077
Deferred Pension Related ltems 1,313,039 747,421
Deferred OPEB Related Items 111,557 79,708
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 1,424,596 1,084,206
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 1,495,696 88,566 744,147
Accrued Interest 39,603 13,140 44,460
Unearned Revenues ‘ - - -
Deposits Payable 142,879 82,755 -
Due to Other Funds 544,986 - -
Due to Other Governments - - -
Accrued Compensated Absences 43,910 15,664 34,641
Accrued Claims and Judgments - - -
Long-Term Debt - Due within One Year 330,491 109,656 466,179
Total Current Liabilities 2,597,565 309,781 1,289,427
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Compensates Absences 131,729 46,992 103,921
Accrued Claims and Judgments - - -
Long-Term Debt - Due in More than, 8,830,815 2,930,040 7,273,294
Net Pension Liability 1,973,255 1,009,957 477,985
Net OPEB Liability 640,895 347,104 248,008
Total Noncurrg 11,576,694 4,334,093 8,103,208
Total Liabilities 14,174,259 4,643,874 9,392,635
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Pension Related Items’ 97,097 59,396 48,998
Deferred OPEB Related Items 171,416 92,838 66,333
Deferred Leases Related Items 42,539,439 25,726,951 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 42,807,952 25,879,185 115,331
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 24,651,273 23,310,687 22,132,980
Unassigned (3,209,154) (1,340,016) 14,439,828
Total Net Position S 21442119 $ 21970671 $ 36,572,808

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Funds Tota_ls Service Funds
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Investments $ 3,385,641 $ 28,104,520 $ 30,801,615
Receivables:
Accounts 349,902 1,482,244 54,454
Taxes 100,750 178,672 -
Accrued Interest - 321 -
Leases - 4,118,91 -
Due from Other Governments 82,675 -
Due from Other Funds - -
Restricted:
Cash with Fiscal Agent 63 -
Total Current Assets 3,919,031 30,856,069
Noncurrent Assets:
Leases Receivable -
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 1,804, 10,936,555
Total Noncurrent Assets 143,094,431 10,936,555
Total Assets 5,723,329 177,556,285 41,792,624
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Charge on Refunding - 257,077 -
Deferred Pension Related ltems 80 5,172,436 2,524,240
Deferred OPEB Related Items 0 461,455 245,976
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 725, 5,890,968 2,770,216
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 745,199 3,073,608 2,436,169
Accrued Interest 9,581 106,784 48,691
Unearned Revenues ‘ 43,243 43,243 -
Deposits Payable - 225,634 -
Due to Other Funds 922,643 1,467,629 -
Due to Other Governments 266,467 266,467 -
Accrued Compensated Absences 31,108 125,323 80,732
Accrued Claims and Judgments - - 1,203,177
Long-Term Debt - Due within One Year ’ 79,958 986,284 573,852
Total Current Liabilities 2,098,199 6,294,972 4,342,621
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Compensates Absences 93,312 375,954 242,194
Accrued Claims and Judgments - - 23,199,925
Long-Term Debt - Due in More than, 2,136,488 21,170,637 9,659,626
Net Pension Liability 422,640 3,883,837 1,887,953
Net OPEB Liability 199,788 1,435,795 765,345
Total Noncurrg 2,852,228 26,866,223 35,755,043
Total Liabilities 4,950,427 33,161,195 40,097,664
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Deferred Pension Related Items’ 43,325 248,816 122,591
Deferred OPEB Related Items 53,436 384,023 204,701
Deferred Leases Related Items - 68,266,390 -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 96,761 68,899,229 327,292
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 1,792,598 71,887,538 10,202,312
Unassigned (391,367) 9,499,291 (6,064,428)
Total Net Position S 1401231 8 81386820 0§ 4.187.884

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Harbor Harbor
Tidelands Uplands Wastewater
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Service Charges $ 976,667 $ 1,871,509 $ 5,642,079
Harbor Rentals 7,612,688 5,435,174 -
Miscellaneous 21,065 2,199
Total Operating Revenues 8,610,420 5,644,278
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and General 5,350,529 164,666
Personnel Services 4,431,588 1,788,490
Contractual Services 500,772 559,421
Internal Service Charges 1,214,436 523,564
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 565,103 728,479
Total Operating Expenses 12,062,4 3,764,620
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (3,452,008) 154,840 1,879,658
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental - -
Interest Revenue 1,200, 492,302 734,536
Interest Expense 39,82 (79,510) (316,599)
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets - - -
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 973,079 412,792 417,937
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS 'Y (2,478,929) 567,632 2,297,595
Transfers In 567,515 188,208 190,822
Transfers Out (567,515) (1,841,387) (190,822)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION ¢ (2,478,929) (1,085,547) 2,297,595
Net Position - Beginning of year, as Pre N 24,411,236 23,056,218 33,700,013
Error Corrections (490,188) - 575,200
Fund Balances (Deficits) - innin r, as Restated 23,921,048 23,056,218 34,275,213
NET POSITION - E AR 3 21,442 119 3 21,970,671 3 36,572,808

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Service Charges
Harbor Rentals
Miscellaneous
Total Operating Revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and General
Personnel Services
Contractual Services
Internal Service Charges
Depreciation and Amortization Expense
Total Operating Expenses

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental
Interest Revenue
Interest Expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of capital assets
Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS ¢

Transfers In
Transfers Out

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 2 3

Net Position - Beginning of year, as Pre N
Error Corrections
eﬁ r, as Restated
AR

Fund Balances (Deficits) -

NET POSITION - E

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Funds Totals Service Funds

$ 7,041,104 $ 15,531,359 $ 16,910,807
- 13,047,862 -

166,775 5,296,111
7,207,879 22,206,918
578,447 14,868,615
1,643,399 6,327,360
9,320,936 2,896,111
738,505 2,497,069

260,62 1,791,770

12,541,9 35,520,802 28,380,925
(5,334,032) (6,751,542) (6,174,007)

; 3,382,921 -
2,427,116 47,385
(57,86 (693,801) (261,325)

- - 115,613
,312,428 5,116,236 (98,327)
(2,021,604) (1,635,306) (6,272,334)
2,277,815 3,224,360 594,409
(137,235) (2,736,959) (594,409)
118,976 (1,147,905) (6,272,334)
1,282,255 82,449,722 10,410,218

- 85,012 -

1,282,255 82,534,734 10,410,218

3 1,401,231 $ 81,386,829 $ 4,137,884

(35)
54



CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds

Harbor Harbor
Tidelands Uplands Wastewater
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers and Users $ 8,178,061 $ 7,132,652 $ 5,642,768
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (6,945,059) (4,126,923) (1,904,813)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (4,468,717) (2,406,5 (1,791,874)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (3,235,715) 599714 1,946,081
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Transfers Out (567,515) (190,822)
Cash Transfers In 567,515 190,822
Repayments Received from Other Funds 117,17 -
Payments Made to Other Funds - -
Proceeds from Noncapital Debt - -
Principal Paid on Noncapital Debt Issues (328,1 (108,864) (110,376)
Payment for Cost of Issuance - - -
Interest Paid on Noncapital Debt (289,650) (79,452) (80,462)
GASB Lease Incentive (25,000) -
Cash Received from Other Governments 627 - -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities (1,866,495) (190,838)
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets ¢ Q (1,114,811) (55,464) (3,666,455)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt - - (340,000)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt \ - - (205,488)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - - -
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities 2 3 (1,114,811) (55,464) (4,211,943)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AC 'N
Interest Received 1,161,095 456,566 741,795
Net Cash Provided (Used ting Activities 1,161,095 456,566 741,795
NET INCREASE (DECREASE)'IN D
CASH EQUIVALE (3,607,385) (866,253) (1,714,905)
Cash and Cash Eq - Beginning of Year 10,043,321 1,820,542 19,044,369
CASH AND CASH EQUI ENTS - END OF YEAR 3 6,435,936 $ 954289 _$ 17,329,464

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
(36)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Funds Totals Service Funds
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash Received from Customers and Users $ 7,181,836 $ 28,135,317 $ 25,697,446
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (10,853,421) (23,830,216) (20,882,982)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (1,664,641) (10,331,8 (6,307,261)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (5,336,226) (6,0 (1,492,797)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash Transfers Out (137,235) (594,409)
Cash Transfers In 2,277,815 594,409
Repayments Received from Other Funds - -
Payments Made to Other Funds -
Proceeds from Noncapital Debt - 646,240
Principal Paid on Noncapital Debt Issues (626,724) (488,387)
Payment for Cost of Issuance - -
Interest Paid on Noncapital Debt (457,386) (167,258)
GASB Lease Incentive (25,000) -
Cash Received from Other Governments 5,065,162 -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities 4,560,626 (9,405)

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED

FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets ¢ (639,309) (5,476,039) (3,493,845)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt - (340,000) (123,139)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt \ - (205,488) (90,200)

Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - - 115,613

Net Cash Used by Capital and Related

Financing Activities 2 3 (639,309) (6,021,527) (3,591,571)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING AC TI\
Interest Received - 2,359,456 47,385
Net Cash Provided (Used ting Activities - 2,359,456 47,385

NET INCREASE (DECREASE)'IN D

CASH EQUIVALE 1,060,378 (5,128,165) (5,046,388)
Cash and Cash Eq - Beginning of Year 2,325,326 33,233,558 35,848,003
CASH AND CASH EQUI ENTS - END OF YEAR $ 3,385,704 $ 28,105,393 $ 30,801,615

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Harbor Harbor
Tidelands Uplands Wastewater

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Operating Income (Loss) $ (3,452,008) $ 154,840 $ 1,879,658
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:

Depreciation and Amortization 565,103 38 728,479
Loss on CIP write-off - -
(Increase) Decrease In:

Accounts Receivable (129,169) (6,151)
Taxes Receivable - - 4,641
Leases Receivable 1,742,779 (2,5497458) -
Deferred Outflow Pension Related Iltems 430,9 34,561 209,706
Deferred Outflow OPEB Related ltems (10 (19,118) (7,512)
Prepaid Expense - -
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts Payable (941,971) (62,855) (848,482)
Deposits Payable - (15,483) -
Unearned Revenue - - -
Claims and Judgments - - -
Net Pension Liability 436,887 317,051 74,268
OPEB Liability (5,338) 41,951 9,677
Deferred Pension Related Items (123,600) (55,590) (73,582)
Deferred OPEB Related ltems (66,029) (19,284) (21,237)
Deferred Inflow Lease Related ltems ® (2,045,969) 2,372,327 -
Compensated Absences (37,129) 14,108 (3,384)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Actiyiti \ 3 (3.235,715) 3 599,140 $ 1,946,081

Qﬁ

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Business-Type Activities -

Enterprise Funds Governmental
Other Activities -
Nonmajor Internal
Enterprise Funds Totals Service Funds

Operating Income (Loss) $ (5,334,032) $ (6,751,542) (6,174,007)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to Net
Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities:
Depreciation and Amortization 260,624 1,93 1,791,770
Loss on CIP write-off - 45,362
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts Receivable (24,927) (1 8,812
Taxes Receivable (1,116) -
Leases Receivable - (8067679) -
Deferred Outflow Pension Related Items 188, 863,609 (54,210)
Deferred Outflow OPEB Related ltems ( (39,372) (44,430)
Prepaid Expense - 11,910
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts Payable 4,652) (1,827,960) (1,243,798)
Deposits Payable - (15,483) -
Unearned Revenue 469) (469) -
Claims and Judgments - - 3,481,716
Net Pension Liability 64 437 892,593 755,597
OPEB Liability (3,849) 42,441 100,016
Deferred Pension Related Items (65,436) (318,208) (151,874)
Deferred OPEB Related ltems (21,385) (127,935) (39,760)
Deferred Inflow Lease Related Items ® - 326,358 -
Compensated Absences (21,242) (47,647) 20,099

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Actiyiti

Qﬁ

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund
Redevelopment
Custodial Obligation
Funds Retirement Fund
ASSETS
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 178,012 $ 1,717,335
Receivables:
Accounts 37,75 67,571
Accrued Interest - 22,189
Total Assets 215, 1,807,095
LIABILITIES
Accrued Interest 94,870
Due to Other Governments 3,254,988
Long-Term Liabilities:
Due in One Year - 1,790,275
Due in More than One Year - 9,238,750
Advances from City - 535,731
Total Liabilities - 14,914,614

NET POSITION
Restricted for Other Purposes 215,770 (13,107,519)
Total Net Position K $ 215,770 $ (13,107,519)
‘\Q

Q\

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
FIDUCIARY FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Private-Purpose

Trust Fund
Redevelopment
Custodial Obligation
Funds Retirement Fund
ADDITIONS
Charges for Services $ - $ 267,634
RRTTF Distributions - 2,142,756
Investment Earnings 122,024
Total Additions - 2,532,414
DEDUCTIONS
Interest Expense - 189,742
Contributions to Other Governments 811,366
Total Deductions 1,001,108
CHANGES IN NET POSITION - 1,531,306
Net Position - Beginning of year 215,770 (14,638,825)

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR % 215,770 $ (13.107.519)
‘\Q

) 2

N\

Q\

See accompanying Notes to Basic Financial Statements.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the City of Redondo Beach, California (City) have been
prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to
governmental agencies. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepted standard setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles. The more significant of the City's accounting policies are described

below.
A. Financial Reporting Entity \

The City was incorporated on April 29, 1892, under the Iaw tate of California

and enjoys all the rights and privileges applicable to a C t is governed by an
elected Mayor and a five-member council.

As required by GAAP, the financial statements pr City and its component units,
entities for which the City is substantively the sam rning body of the component
unit's governing body and there is either aWfinancial benefit or burden relationship
between the City and the component uni ded component units, although legally
separate entities are, in substance, pasiiof th ity's operations and data from these

units are combined with data of the @ity. nded component unit has a June 30
year-end. The City had no discrete ed component units. The following entities
u

are reported as blended compo

The Parking Authority of tz
on March 3, 1969, pur he provisions of the Streets and Highway Code of the
State of California. T [ purpose of the Parking Authority is to provide public off-
street parking with

government ovierned by a board comprised of the government's elected council.
The Parking A is considered a blended component unit due to the financial
benefit or tionship the Parking Authority shares with the City as its financial
transacti e feported in a Debt Service Fund. Separate financial statements are not
pr or lended component unit.

edondo Beach Housing Authority (Housing Authority) was formed on June 2,
1979, for the purpose of providing affordable, decent housing for lower income residents
of the€” City. The Housing Authority operates the Fair Housing and Section 8 housing
programs. The Housing Authority serves all the citizens of the government and is
governed by a board comprised of the government's elected council. The Housing
Authority is considered a blended component unit due to the financial benefit or burden
relationship the Housing Authority shares with the City as its financial transactions are
reported in a Special Revenue Fund. Separate financial statements are not prepared for
this blended component unit.

(43)
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
A. Financial Reporting Entity (Continued)

The Redondo Beach Public Financing Authority (Public Financing Authority), a joint
powers authority, was formed on June 25, 1996, to provide financing for capital
improvement projects. The Redevelopment Agency joined with the City to form the

Public Financing Authority to operate rental property and issue bonds to provide funds
Xe

for public capital improvements. The Public Financing Authority hi@és3fie same governing
board as the City, which also performs all accounting and admini ctions for the
Public Financing Authority. The Public Financing Authority ispcofsidered a blended
component unit due to the financial benefit or burden relatiofis Public Financing
Authority shares with the City as its financial transactions :
Fund. Separate financial statements are not prepar

of the Redevelopment Agency, which
created the need for a new financing
ity to form the Community Financing
s the same governing board as the
administrative functions for the Community

improvement projects as the State's eliminati
was a member of the Public Financing i
authority. The Parking Authority joined
Authority. The Community Financin
City, which also performs all accoudti

Financing Authority. The Co Ni nancing Authority is considered a blended
component unit due to the €ihan enefit or burden relationship the Community
Financing Authority shares WithNhe City as its financial transactions are combined with
the Public Financing A i reported in a Debt Service Fund. The Community

Financing Authority d no ue separate financial statements.

consider, eparate accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for
withea ar et of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund
re¥enues, and expenditures or expenses, as appropriate. Governmental
ces are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the
oses for which they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are

B. Basis of Acc n& d Measurement Focus
The accou@ City are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is

(44)
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The City's government-wide financial statements include a statement of net position and
a statement of activities. These statements present summaries of governmental and
business-type activities for the City accompanied by a total colump. Fiduciary activities
of the City are not included in these statements. These basic ial statements are
presented on an "economic resources" measurement focus a rual basis of
accounting. Accordingly, all of the City's assets, deferred outfl 0 ources, deferred
inflows of resources, and liabilities, including capital ass ( Il as infrastructure
assets) and long-term liabilities, are included in the aggom ng statement of net
position. The statement of activities presents chang osition. Under the accrual
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized i e n which they are earned
while expenses are recognized in the period in he liability is incurred. The
statement of activities demonstrates the degreg to whigh the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revehues. Direct expenses are those that are
clearly identifiable with a specific function

in the program expenses reported for sp&gi

Certain types of transactions are as program revenues for the City in three
categories:
L 2
e Charges for services
e Operating grant
o Capital g’rant

comtributions

N been made in regard to interfund activities, payables and
receivables. Alhi | balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated
except tho @ epreésenting balances between the governmental activities and the
businesg-type, agtivities, which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the
imary government column. In the Statement of Activities, internal service fund
tion® have been eliminated; however, those transactions between governmental
usiness-type activities have not been eliminated. The following interfund activities

¢ Due to/from other funds
e Advances to/from other funds
e Transfers in/out

(45)
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

Governmental fund financial statements include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all major governmental funds
and nonmajor funds aggregated. The City has presented all major@hat have met

the applicable criteria.

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending, or " ancial resources”
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of Accordingly, only
current assets and current liabilities are included on the balan eet. the statement of

revenues, expenditures and changes in fund ba ents increases (revenues
afd other financing uses) in

and other financing sources) and decreases (exgg S

net current assets. Under the modified accrual™ba of accounting, revenues are
recognized in the accounting period in which theYybecome both measurable and
available to finance expenditures of the current\geriod.

Revenues are recorded when received 9\ cash, @xcept for revenues subject to accrual
(generally 60 days after year-end icly, are®recognized when due. The primary
revenue sources, which have bee as susceptible to accrual by the City, are
property taxes, sales taxes, fr i xes, special assessments, intergovernmental
revenues and other taxes®Expenditiges are recorded in the accounting period in which

the related fund liability is in&

Unavailable revenue e n potential revenues do not meet both the "measurable”
and "available" rjt fomyrecognition in the current period. Unearned revenues also
arise when th c& nt receives resources before it has a legal claim to them, as
when grant 18§, are received prior to incurring qualifying expenditures. In subsequent

periods, w h¥evenue recognition criteria are met or when the government has a
legal cl resources, the unavailable or unearned revenue is removed, and
r recognized.

econciliations of the Fund Financial Statements to the Government-Wide Financial
Statements are provided to explain the differences created by the integrated approach of
GASB Statement No. 34.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The City reports the following major governmental funds:

resources of the general government except those require accounted for in

e General Fund — The City's primary operating fund that ac ts for all financial
another fund. c&

e Other Intergovernmental Grants Special Revenue Fund account for federal,
state and other governmental agencies grant funding t ents local funding.

nd — To account for all
lopment Agency and funds

e Low-Mod Income Housing Asset Special
transferred housing assets of the dissolve
generated from those housing assets.

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

tement of net position, a statement of
, and a statement of cash flows for
presenting internal service funds is also
nternal service balances and activities have
activities in the government-wide financial

each proprietary fund. A separate
presented in these statements.
been combined with the g
statements. ¢

Proprietary funds are
and the accru baSis
resources, li

aCcounting. Accordingly, all assets, deferred outflows of
ferred inflows of resources (whether current or noncurrent)
ent of net position. The statement of revenues, expenses, and

ili ,
are included o %
changes in % jon presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total

r the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the

ey are earned while expenses are recognized in the period in which
is incurred. In these funds, receivables have been recorded as revenue and
ve been made for uncollectible amounts.

Operating revenues in the proprietary funds are those revenues that are generated from
the primary operations of the fund. All other revenues are reported as nonoperating
revenues. Operating expenses are those expenses that are essential to the primary
operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
B. Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus (Continued)

Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
The City reports the following enterprise funds as major proprietary funds:

¢ Harbor Tidelands Fund — To account for the operations of smallboat harbor facilities
available to the general public, including related pier activitie se of this fund is
restricted under the City Tideland Trust Agreement with the S 0 ifornia.

available to the general public, including related pier a e use of this fund is

e Harbor Uplands Fund — To account for the operations of@ t harbor facilities
iti
subject only to the decisions of the City Council.

o Wastewater Fund — To account for the capité
The charges are designed to reimburse the Cl ewater system for the capital
and maintenance and operations costs negessa providing wastewater capacity
to system users. These charges are asso@iated with the expansion of the system
required over time to address |nc wastewater flow generated by new
development.

ha ge and a sewer user fee.

Fiduciary Fund Financial Statement

Fiduciary Funds are using mlc resources" measurement focus and the
accrual basis of accountif reports a private-purpose trust and a custodial
fund. Private-purpose tr \j are used to report trust arrangements under which

principal and income ividuals, private organizations, or other governments.
Custodial funds accolintfgr aSsets held by the city for other governments or individuals

in a custodial pix\
C. Cash, Cas x ts, and Investments

The Cig available cash for investment purposes. The City's cash and cash
ent

are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
with original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.
N and cash equivalents are combined with investments and displayed as Cash and

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 31, Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools, highly liquid market investments
with maturities of one year or less at time of purchase are stated at amortized cost. All
other investments are stated at fair value. Market value is used as fair value for those
securities for which market quotations are readily available.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

C. Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments (Continued)

The City participates in an investment pool managed by the state of California, titled
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which has invested a portion of the pool funds in
Structured Notes and Asset-Backed Securities. LAIF's investments are subject to credit
risk with the full faith and credit of the state of California collateralizing these
investments. In addition, these Structured Notes and Asset#agked Securities are
subject to market risk as to change in interest rates.

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 40, Deposit and Inge ent Risk Disclosures,
certain disclosure requirements, if applicable, are provid (o] osit and investment
risk in the following areas:

e Interest Rate Risk
e Credit Risk
» Overall
» Custodial Credit Risk
» Concentration of Credit Risk

e Foreign Currency Risk
For purposes of the statemen S s of the proprietary fund types, cash and cash

t
equivalents include all investents, the City operates an internal cash management
pool which maintains the ge\ haracteristics of a demand deposit account.

. Restricted Cash an es nts

L 2
Certain restri nd investments are held by fiscal agents for the redemption of
bonded debt, fo isition and construction of capital projects, or to serve as collateral
for debt. C vestments are also restricted for deposits held for others within the
enterpri

Cemrain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and

are Tfecorded as prepaid items. The cost of prepaid items is recorded as
expenditures/expenses when consumed rather than when purchased.

| s

. Interfund Transactions

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements
outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other
funds" (i.e., the current portion of interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e.,
the noncurrent portion of interfund loans)." Any residual balances outstanding between
the governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the
governmental-wide financial statements as "internal balances."
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. Capital Assets

In the Government-Wide Financial Statements, capital assets, which include land,
buildings, right-to-use buildings, improvements, equipment, furniture, subscriptions and
infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities. Capital assgts are recorded at
historical cost or estimated historical cost if actual cost is not avgil . Donated assets
and capital assets received in a service concession are valued aphel uisition value
rather than fair value. City policy has set the capitalization thr IdS¥for reporting capital
assets at the following:

General Capital Assets ,0

Infrastructure Capital Assets 253000

Buildings, Paring Structures, and Parking Lots 00,000

The City has chosen the Modified Approach for reporting of the Street Pavement

Subsystem infrastructure assets, and as It no depreciation is recorded for that
system; instead, all expenditures ma e assets, except for additions and

improvements, are expensed in the r . For all other assets, depreciation is
recorded on a straight-line basis ov%

ul lives of the assets as follows:
Buildings and Imprgv nt 51045 Years
Equipment 510 20 Years
4 to 20 Years

Vehicles
Infrastructure 5to 60 Years
2

The City defi rastructure as the physical assets that allow the City to function.
These assets inClud

e Stre te
. ite'ame s such as parking and landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct
s buginess
derground utilities

Each major infrastructure system can be divided into subsystems. For example, the
street system can be divided into concrete and asphalt pavements, concrete curb and
gutters, sidewalks, medians, etc. Subsystem detail is not presented in these financial
statements; however, the City maintains detailed information on these subsystems.

(50)

69



CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
G. Capital Assets (Continued)

In May 2020, a physical assessment of all pavement segments was conducted to assess
the existing surface condition of each of the individual pavement segments. Upon
completion of the study, a Pavement Condition Index (PCl) was calculated for each
segment in the City's pavement network to reflect the overall pavement condition.
Ratings ranged from 0 to 100. A PCI of 0 would correspond?tQbadly deteriorated
pavement with virtually no remaining life; a PCI of 100 would cQrfes to pavement
with proper engineering design and construction at the beginnigag, o life cycle. During
the year, the comprehensive survey is updated to refle vement's current
condition.

The following conditions were defined:

Condition Rating
Very Good 70-100
Good 50-69

Poor 25-49
Very Poor 0-24
In line with the Capital Improve e@am and as presented to the City Council on

January 16, 2018, City palicy,i ve an average PCI rating of 75 for all streets
beginning in fiscal year his®rating allows minor cracking and raveling of the
pavement along with mi ess that could be noticeable to drivers traveling at
posted speeds. For 20 nd 2022, the City's street system was rated at a PCI of
67, 70, and 69 o& thefa respectively.

ge

For a detaile N_‘ n of the Modified Approach, see the Required Supplementary
Informatlon is report.

For aII structure systems, the City elected to use the Basic Approach for
' ucture reporting. As such, the City records the assets at historical cost and

iates’them over their useful lives, and regularly evaluates them for impairment.
ndltures that extend the life of the asset are capitalized.

In the governmental fund financial statements, capital assets are not presented.
Consequently, capital assets are a reconciling item and are shown in the reconciliation
of the balance sheet of governmental funds to the statement of net position.

(51)
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H.

Interest Payable

In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable on long-term debt is
recognized as the liability is incurred for governmental activities and business-type
activities.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types d ecognize interest
payable, while proprietary fund and fiduciary fund types recogniZ€ théjinterest payable
when the liability is incurred.

Unearned/Unavailable Revenue

revenue has not yet been earned, and una ble§ revenue is recognized for
transactions in which revenue is measurable but available. Typical transactions
recorded as unearned revenues in the finangial statements are prepaid charges for
services, and grants received but not afped. Typical transactions recorded as
unavailable revenues in the financial are long term loans receivable, and

reimbursable grants that are not coll y's availability period.

In the financial statements, unearned revenue 'for transactions in which
gila

Compensated Absences Pay

for future absences, su cation and compensatory time, which are attributable to
services already ren reported as a current liability in the governmental funds
and only if theygha

<
Only the short-term Iiability% mpensated absences (the amount due to employees

retirements; n liability is reported in the government-wide financial
statements. The{sh rm liability is the amount that will be liquidated with current
financial re nd is expected to be paid during the next fiscal year. All of the
liability f pensated absences applicable to proprietary funds is reported in those
fu

on pay is payable to employees at the time a vacation is taken or upon termination
o] ployment. Employees may accrue from two to three times their annual accrual rate.
Upon®termination an employee will be paid for any unused accrued vacation pay. Sick
leave is payable when an employee is unable to work because of illness. Unused sick
leave is forfeited upon termination.

Claims and Judgments Payable
The short-term and long-term claims are reported as liabilities in the Self-Insurance
Program Internal Service Fund. The short-term liability which will be liquidated with

current financial resources is the amount of the settlement reached, but unpaid, related
to claims and judgments entered.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

L. Long-Term Debt

Government-Wide Financial Statements

Long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
appropriate activities. Bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the
bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable is geported net of the
applicable bond premium or discount. &

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements do not present long-term d
debt is a reconciling item and is shown in the reconci
governmental funds to the statement of net positio

equently, long-term
he balance sheet of

Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuan
current period. Bond proceeds are reportedgas ot
applicable premium or discount.

s, are recognized during the
financing sources net of the

. Pension Plans

For purposes of measuring the n@m liability, deferred outflows and inflows of
resources related to pensions, n expense, information about the fiduciary net

position and additions fo/d8@ucti from the fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same ﬁ they are reported by the CalPERS Financial Office.
For this purpose, bene nts (including refunds of employee contributions) are
recognized when c e and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.

Investments rg e at fair value. CalPERS audited financial statements are
publicly availa &
Publications

that can be obtained at CalPERS' website under Forms and

GASB 68'r that the reported results must pertain to liability and asset information
[ in defined timeframes. For this report, the following timeframes are used.

tion Date (VD) June 30, 2022
Measyrement Date (MD) June 30, 2023
Measurement Period (MP) July 1, 2022 to June 30, 2023
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
N. Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense, information about
the fiduciary net position of the City's plan (OPEB Plan), the assets of which are held by
California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT), and additions to/deductions from
the OPEB Plan's fiduciary net position have been determin an independent
actuary. For this purpose, benefit payments are recognized ntly due and
payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are rgpo at fair value.

Generally accepted accounting principles require that th
to liability and asset information within certain defj
following timeframes are used:

results must pertain
nes. For this report, the

Valuation Date (VD) June 30, 2022

Measurement Date (MD) June 30, 2023
Measurement Period (MP) , 2022 to June 30, 2023

Gains and losses related to change & liability and fiduciary net position are
recognized in OPEB expense syst over time. Amounts are first recognized in
OPEB expense for the year r loss occurs. The remaining amounts are
categorized as deferred outfl eferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and
are to be recognized in futu B expense.

ependlng on the source of the gain or loss:

jected and actual 5 Years

Expected average remaining service
lifetime (EARL) (8.5 years at July 1, 2022)

INhe Government-Wide Financial Statements, net position is classified in the following
categeries:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — This amount consists of capital assets net of
accumulated depreciation and reduced by outstanding debt attributed to the acquisition,
construction, or improvement of the assets.

Restricted Net Position — This amount is restricted by external creditors, grantors,
contributors, laws or regulations of other governments.

Unrestricted Net Position — This amount is all net position that does not meet the
definition of "net investment in capital assets" or "restricted net position."
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

P. Fund Balances

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are classified in the
following categories:

converted to cash, such as prepaid items and inventories, or it at are required to

Nonspendable — Nonspendable fund balances are items that are not expected to be
%nds.

be maintained intact, such as principal of an endowment or revol

Restricted — Restricted fund balances include amounts thaffc pent only for the
specific purposes stipulated by external resources providéts, as grant providers,
constitutionally, or through enabling legislation. Eff striCtions may be changed
or lifted only with the consent of resource provid

Committed — Committed fund balances include am that can be used only for the
specific purposes when the City Council p@sses a resolution that places specific
constraints on how the resources may be NWrhe City Council can modify or rescind
the resolution at any time through passa

Assigned — Assigned fund balangés rise amounts intended to be used by the

government for specific purpo re neither restricted nor committed. Intent is
expressed when the Cityy, Cainci proves which resources should be assigned to
expenditures of particular s during the adoption of the annual budget. The City
Manager uses that in o determine whether those resources should be

classified as assigngdior Upassigned for presentation in the City's fund financial
statements. L 3

Unassigned \ ned fund balance is a residual (surplus) classification used for

the Geners ly and includes amounts not contained in the other classifications.

Una33|g nts in the General Fund are technically available for any purpose. If a

nt find, other than the General Fund, has a fund balance deficit, it will be
negatlve amount in the unassigned classification in that fund.

Government-Wide Financial Statements and the Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

When an expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position are available, the City's policy is to apply restricted net position first.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Q. Spending Policy (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements

When expenditures are incurred for purposes for which all restricted, committed,
assigned and unassigned fund balances are available, the City's policy is to apply in the
following order, except for instances wherein an ordinance specifie@rce:

Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned \
R. Property Taxes Q
Under California law, property taxes are assesged an llected by the counties on up to

1% of assessed property value, plus other incgases approved by the voters. Property
taxes collected are pooled and then aIIoc( e cities based on complex formulas.

December 10 and April 10® Collection Date

S. Use of Estimates \

The preparati n%
accounting prinei

January 1 Lien Date
June 30 Levy Date
November 1 and February 1 Q Due Dates

basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
reguires management to make estimates and assumptions. These
estimates a ions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and the
disclosure ingent assets and liabilities. In addition, estimates affect the reported
amoun es. Actual results could differ from these estimates and assumptions.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
T. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate
section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net assets that applies to a
future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources
(expense/expenditure) until then. The City only has three items alify for reporting
in this category. One is the deferred charge on refunding repo i government-
wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on re ing, results from the
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacqui rice. This amount
is deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of tﬁ ng or refunded debt.
en

Secondly, the City also has deferred outflows rel ns, which arises only

under a full accrual basis of accounting. Accordi pension related items), is
reported only in the government-wide statement @ pOsition. This includes pension
contributions subsequent to the measurement date Ofth€ net pension liability and other
amounts (see Note 11), which are amortized by an actUarial determined period. Thirdly,
the City has deferred outflows related to stemployment Benefits (OPEB), which

include contributions subsequent to the mgeasurément date of the total OPEB liability and
other amounts:

In addition to liabilities, the siatem f financial position will sometimes report a
separate section for defegredyinl of resources. This separate financial statement
element, deferred inflows régources, represents an acquisition of net assets that
applies to a future peri \ so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that ti ity has several items that qualify for reporting in this
category: 2

1. UnavailabNﬁ e reported only in the governmental funds balance sheet. The
govern ds report unavailable revenues from grant revenues. These
amo e Meferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period when

ec available.

nsion and OPEB related deferred inflows are reported only on the statement of net

sition. The government reports deferred inflows of resources related to items
afising from certain changes in the net pension liability, net pension asset, net OPEB
asset or net OPEB liability. Deferred inflows and outflows of resources related to
changes in the net pension liability, net pension asset, net OPEB asset or net OPEB
liability are recognized systematically over time. Amounts are first recognized in the
year the change occurs. The remaining amounts are to be recognized in future
periods. The recognition period differs depending on the source of the change, and
the changes are currently amortized over 5 years or the average remaining service
life time.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

T. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources (Continued)

3. A deferred inflow of resources related to leases is reported for the value of lease
receivable payments to be recognized as an inflow of resources in a systematic and

rational manner over the term of the lease agreements.

U. New GASB Pronouncements Effective during Fiscal Year x
The following Government Accounting Standards Board (GAS ouhcements were

effective for and/or early implemented for the fiscal year ended’J 30, 2023:

In June 2022, the GASB issued GASB Statemeh ,’Accounting Changes and
g and financial
s. Included in the category of
financial reporting entity, which results
jor or nonmajor. The City adopted the

Error Corrections. This standard enhances
requirements for accounting changes and err
accounting changes is changes to or within t

requirements of the guidance effective 4uly 1,
this standard to the beginning of the jp&hi ion.
NOTE2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, UNTABILITY
*
Deficit Fund Balance X
The following funds had a défi nce as of June 30, 2024:
Major Funds: *
Other Intergoverr\& ts $ (6,733,249)

Nonmajor Funds;
Local Transp Article 3 (73,332)
Communityfbé 4@ ent Block Grant (22,425)
S€e unas:

ncy (318,327)
urance Program (16,227,925)
urpose Trust Fund (13,107,519)

The deficit fund balances are expected to be recovered through grant and other
reimbursement revenues. For the Private-Purpose Trust Fund, deficit will be recovered from

future payments from the County Redevelopment Property Tax Trust Fund.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Cash and investments are presented on the statement of net position as follows at June 30,

2024
Government-Wide Statement of Net Position
Fiduciary Funds
Governmental Business-Type Statement of
Activities Activities Total Nej iti Total

Cash and Investments $ 96,773,489 $§ 28,104,520 $ 124,878,009 $ 126,773,356
Restricted Cash and Investments

with Fiscal Agents 55,246 873 56,119 56,119

Total $ 96,828,735 $§ 28,105,393 § 124,934,128 $ 126,829,475

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments consisted of at June 30, 2024

Cash and Cash Equivalents:

Petty Cash 13,450
Demand Deposits - City 17,899,293
Demand Deposits - Successor Agency 1,656,515
Total Cash and Investments K 19,569,258
Investments:
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAl it 289,521
Local Agency Investment Fund)(L -

Successor Agency 1,959,343
Negotiable Certificates of D i 245,520
Money Market Mutual Fu 18,202,927
Corporate Bonds 8,363,570
U.S. Governmen iti 32,608,610
Federal Agency SecCuiti 45,535,230

Total Iny, 107,204,721
taklas Investments 126,773,979

Ca nvestments with Fiscal Agents 55,496
al $ 126,829,475

A. Cash Deposits

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for
funds required to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures.
Interest income earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated on an accounting
period basis to the various funds based on the period-end cash and investment
balances. Interest income from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited
directly to the related fund.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Investments

Under the provisions of the City's investment policy, and in accordance with California
Government Code, the following investments are authorized:

¢ United States Treasury Bills, Notes and Bonds

¢ Obligations issued by the Federal Government

e Bankers' Acceptances with a maturity of 180 days or less

¢ Time Certificates of Deposits

¢ Negotiable Certificates of Deposit

o Commercial Paper with a maturity of 270 days or less

e Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) limited tof$657@ 0 by LAIF

e Medium-Term Notes (5 year maximum) of Corporations or Depository
Institutions

e Mutual Funds

e Guaranteed Investment Contracts not tg.exéged $5 million annually

e Certificate of Deposit Placement Se S

e Collateralized Bank Deposits

e Supranationals

trust indentures, with dir the City Treasurer).

The City investment polic‘a% financial assets, investment activities and debt

issues of the City (including& which are invested by trustees appointed under debt
0

The City is a pgrtigipa AIF which is regulated by California Government Code

Section 1642 r oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The City's

investments wi nx June 30, 2024, include a portion of the pool funds invested in

Structured sset-Backed Securities.

Stri n{u — Debt securities (other than asset-backed securities) whose cash
a

W G eristics (coupon rate, redemption amount, or stated maturity) depend upon
A more indices and/ or that have embedded forwards or options.
Assét-Backed Securities — Generally mortgage-backed securities that entitle their
purchasers to receive a share of the cash flows from a pool of assets such as principal

and interest repayments from a pool of mortgages (for example, Collateralized Mortgage
Obligations) or credit card receivables.

As of June 30, 2024, the City and the Successor Agency had $2,248,865 invested in
LAIF, which had invested 0.204% of the pool investment funds in Structured Notes and
Mortgage-Backed Securities. The LAIF fair value factor of 0.996316042 was used to
calculate the fair value of the investments in LAIF.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
C. Deposit and Investment Risk

Credit Risk

The City's investment policy limits investments in medium-term notes (MTN's) to those
rated "A" or higher by Standard and Poor's (S&P) or "A2" or higher by Moody's. As of
June 30, 2024, all MTN's were rated "A2" or higher by Moody's. As gf June 30, 2024, the
City's Federal Agency investments were rated "AA+" by Moody' "Aaa" by S&P. All
securities were investment grade and were in accordance wi t nd City law.

Investments in U.S. government securities are not consi have credit risk;
therefore, their credit quality is not disclosed. As of June 30

ity's investments
in external investment pools are unrated. \
Custodial Credit Risk

The custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk the event of the failure of a
depository financial institution, a government will not able to recover deposits or will
not be able to recover collateral securities that in the possession of an outside party.

The carrying amounts of the City's cas%osi were $16,165,228 at June 30, 2024.
Bank balances at June 30, 202 e 19,913,905 which were fully insured or
collateralized with securities held by’t dging financial institutions in the City's name
as discussed below.

The California Govern
associations to secure tfie
Code states that co

security interest rs&
i )

for cash depos

The fair val @ pledged securities must equal at least 110% of the City's cash deposits.
Californi@ lawhalso allows institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust deed
portgagennotes having a value of 150% of the City's total cash deposits. The City may
@ ollateral requirements for cash deposits which are fully insured up to $250,000 by
f ederal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The City, however, has not waived the

gralization requirements.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The City's investment policy imposes restrictions on the maximum percentage it can
invest in a single type of investment. Investments in Federal Agencies have the implied
guarantee of the United States government. While all the City's investments are in
compliance with the City's investment policy as of June 30, 2024, in accordance with
GASB Statement No. 40, if a City has invested more than 5% of its total investments in
any one issuer, they are exposed to concentration of credit risk. Investments guaranteed

by the U.S. government and investments in mutual funds and external investment pools
are excluded from this requirement.

requires California banks and savings and loan
cash deposits by pledging securities as collateral. This
pledged in this manner shall have the effect of perfecting a
teral superior to those of a general creditor. Thus, collateral
ered to be held in the City's name.
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JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

C. Deposit and Investment Risk (Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk (Continued)
As of June 30, 2024, the City has invested more than 5% of its total investment value

with the following issuers:
% of Total
stments

Federal Home Loan Bank $ 18,2336 16%

Federal Farm Credit Bank 16%
Federal National Mortgage Association 4%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 13%

Total 49%

Interest Rate Risk

The City's investment policy limits investmeni§Ymaturities as a means of managing its
exposure to fair value losses arising fron&y g interest rates. The City's investment

policy states that at least 50% of the Ci portfolio shall mature in three years or less;
and at least 25% in one year or les exX€eption to these maturity limits shall be
the investment of the gross procee -exempt bonds. The City has elected to use
the segmented time distributi of disclosure for its interest rate risk. As of
June 30, 2024, the City hd8l tH&folloWing investments and remaining maturities:

Investment Maturities

Investment Types Year 1to 2 Years 2 to 3 Years 3to 5 Years Fair Value
External Investment Poo‘—
Local Agency Investmen
Fund $ 2,248,864 $ -8 - % - § 2248864
Negotiable Certificate of
Deposits 245,520 - - - 245,520
U.S. Treasury N 6,912,140 21,097,560 4,598,910 - 32,608,610
Federal Age
Federal €arm C k 2,987,460 - - 4,896,800 7,884,260
edegal H Loan Bank 6,946,820 - 11,286,800 - 18,233,620
gal Hom an
gage Corporation - - 9,515,900 4,978,050 14,493,950
deral National Mortgage
Asseciation 4,923,400 - - - 4,923,400
Money Market 18,202,927 - - - 18,202,927
Corporate Bonds 1,938,880 4,424,830 1,999,860 - 8,363,570
Total Investments $ 44.406.011 $ 25522390 _$ 27401470 _$ 9874850 _$ 107,204,721
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 3 CASH AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)
C. Deposit and Investment Risk (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurements and Application, establishes a fair
value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair
value. This hierarchy consists of three broad levels: Level 1 inputs, consist of quoted
prices (unadjusted) for identical assets and liabilities in active m at a government
can access at the measurement date, Level 2 inputs consist of i S r than quoted

prices that are observable for an asset or liability, either direct indigectly, and Level 3
inputs have the lowest priority and consist of unobservable i n asset or liability.
Fair Value Hierarchy

The City categorizes its fair value measure

established by generally accepted accounting prin

valuation inputs used to measure the fair val

prices in active markets for identical assetS} Level 2 inputs are significant other
observable inputs.

observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are sig&
The following table presents the b f the assets measured at fair value on a

recurring basis as of June 30, 2024

in -~ the fair value hierarchy
he hierarchy is based on the
asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted

* Fair Value Measurement Using
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Investments by Fair Value Level;

U.S. Treasury Notes 32,608,610 $ -3 - $ 32,608,610
Federal Farm Credit Ba 7,884,260 - 7,884,260
Federal Home L a’B n 18,233,620 - 18,233,620
Federal Home L a
Corporation 14,493,950 - 14,493,950
Federal Nati e
Associatio - 4,923,400 - 4,923,400
Money k 18,202,927 - - 18,202,927
poraté,Bon - 8,363,570 - 8,363,570
atiabl rtificates of Deposit - 245,520 - 245,520
Total nvestments by
Fair Value Level $ 50811537 _$ 54144320 _$ - 104,955,857
Investments Measured at Net
AssetWalue
Local Agency Investment
Fund (LAIF) 2,248,864
Total Investments $ 107,204,721

Investments classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using prices
quoted in active markets for those securities. Investments classified in Level 2 of the fair
value hierarchy are valued using specified fair value factors. Federal Agency Securities
classified in Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy are valued using institutional bond quotes.
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RECEIVABLES

The following is a summary of receivables net of allowances for uncollectible amounts at

June 30, 2024:

Government-Wide
Statement of Net Position

Fiduciary
Funds

Governmental Business-Type Statement of
Activities Activities Net Positio Total
Accounts Receivable $ 2,835,686 $ 1,482,244  $ 1 4,423,259
Taxes Receivable 4,966,429 178,672 5,145,101
Accrued Interest Receivable 453,922 321,953 798,064
Notes and Loans Receivable 2,405,808 - 2,405,808
Leases Receivable 5,812,597 69,830,037 75,642,634

Total

$ 16474442 _$ 71,812,906

At June 30, 2024, the Fund Financial Statements sha

A. Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable consisted of amou

course of operations. The total amount
nonmajor fund in the aggregate as o

Governmental Funds:
General Fund ®

Other Intergovernmental Gr:
Remaining Government
Total Governm Fu
L 4
Proprietary Fudgs:
Harbor Tidelan \
Harbor U

P,
Waste
OnMaj nterprise Funds

Other.
a rvice Funds
TotaPProprietary Funds

Total

(64)
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18 _§$ 88,414,866

dYWINg receivables:

ed in separate funds in the ordinary

acco

s receivable for each major fund and

2 , was as follows:

$

2,153,295
502,174
125,763

2,781,232

754,193
350,950
27,199
349,902
54,454

1,536,698

4,317,930
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE4 RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

B. Accrued Interest Receivable

Interest receivable consists of interest from investments pooled by the City and is
distributed among the funds according to their ending cash balances. The interest

receivable as of June 30, 2024, was as follows:

Governmental Funds:
General Fund
Remaining Governmental Funds
Total Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds:

Harbor Tidelands 154,763

Harbor Uplands 77,384

Wastewater 89,806

Total Proprietary Funds 321,953

Total K $ 775875

C. Taxes Receivable
At June 30, 2024, the City’ha g taxes receivable:
rnment Funds Proprietary Funds
Nonmajor
Governmental Wastewater Solid Waste
Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Types of Taxes: ’

Property Taxes 1,024,707 $ 189,895 $ 77,922 $ 100,750 1,393,274
Sales Taxes 2,023,464 - - - 2,023,464
Transient Occu a 679,167 - - 679,167
Utility Users T 679,791 - - 679,791
Franchise J@ax 196,552 - - 196,552
Transfe Xes 172,854 - - - 172,854
Taxes $ 4776535 $ 189.895 $ 77,922 $ 100,750 5,145,102
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 4 RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)
D. Notes and Loans Receivable

At June 30, 2024, the City had the following notes and loans receivable:

Government Funds

Low-Mod Nonmajor
General Income
Fund Housing Total
Home Rehabilitation Loans $ - 389,992 389,992
Housing Assistance Loans - - 311,227
Senior Housing Program - 1,688,973 1,688,973
Computer Loan Program 15,616 - 15,616
Total $ 15616 _$ 2,078,965 27 % 2,405,808

Home Rehabilitation Loans

At June 30, 2024, the City was owed, in its Low a erate Income Housing Asset
Special Revenue Fund, $389,992 for various h@me rehabilitation loans made by the City.
The terms of repayment vary. Because tes do not meet the City's availability

criteria for revenue recognition, the City C ified the revenue related to these loans
as deferred inflows of resources in t ernm

tal funds. Revenue is recognized in
the year of repayment. All loans arefe y trust deeds.

Housing Assistance Loan
At June 30, 2024, the Cik& owed, in its Community Development Block Grant
1
ry

Special Revenue Fund for various housing assistance loans made by the
City. The terms of re . Because the notes do not meet the City's availability
criteria for revenpe

as deferred i ofsesources. Revenue is recognized in the year of repayment. All
loans are secur t deeds.

5, the Agency loaned $2,200,000 to the Corporate Fund for Housing (a
nprofit public benefit corporation) for the McCandless senior housing

forgiven. Repayments will be made from residual receipts of the housing complex. The
loan is secured by the Agency Deed of Trust. At June 30, 2024, the loan receivable
included accrued interest of $1,688,973.

Computer Loan Program

The City has a computer loan program for employees to purchase computers. The
maximum loan amount per employee is $1,500 with a repayment term maximum of two
years. Repayments from the employees are made through payroll deductions. At
June 30, 2024, the loan receivable balance was $15,616.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTES5 LEASES

Leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. A lessee is required to

recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to-use lease asset, and a lessor is required
to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred inflow of resources.

ieces of land and

ra mencement

date. As of June 30, 2024, the City reported a lease reggiva of $75,642,634,

$5,812,597 for governmental funds and $69,830,037 for progri funds, respectively.

The lessees were required to make monthly payments i C r 2024 ranging from
$788 to $105,400. The leases have interest rates gingafrom 0.3150% to 3.5290%.

0 » 2024, was $73,983,046,
$5,716,656 for governmental funds and $68,266,380 roprietary funds respectively,
and the City recognized lease revenue of $5,724,9200$26
and $5,229,868 for proprietary funds, respecti lessees have various extension

6,194 for governmental funds
options, ranging from one 12-month optig 60-month options. Variable and other
ount receivable.

A. Leases Receivable and Deferred Inflows of Resources

The City entered into 40 leases as a Lessor for the use of varj
building. The terms range from 2 to 90 year beginning on the ¢
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 5 LEASES (CONTINUED)
A. Leases Receivable and Deferred Inflows of Resources (Continued)

The following is a schedule, by year, of minimum future lease rentals on noncancellable
operating leases as of June 30, 2024:

Governmental Activities

Minimum Future

Year Ending June 30, Lease Interes Rental Revenue
2025 $ 453,757 9%, 551,450
2026 462,856 03 553,888
2027 472,187 556,374
2028 429,571 506,747
2029 137,236 7288 209,524
2030 - 2034 597,44 308,173 905,618
2035 - 2039 273,261 385,000
2040 - 2044 263,325 385,000
2045 - 2049 252,505 385,000
2050 - 2054 240,723 385,000
2055 - 2059 227,893 385,000
2050 - 2064 213,923 385,000
2065 - 2069 198,710 385,000
2070 - 2074 182,145 385,000
2075 - 2079 164,106 385,000
2080 - 2084 240,537 144,463 385,000
2085 - 2089 261,926 123,074 385,000
2090 - 2094 L 4 285,217 99,782 384,999
2095 - 2099 310,580 74,420 385,000
2100 - 2104 338,198 46,802 385,000
2105 - 210 368,271 16,729 385,000

?10 6,407 9 6,416

o\ $ 5,812,597 $ 3.252.419 $ 9,065,016

Business-Type Activities

Minimum Future

Lease Interest Rental Revenue

$ 4,115,917 $ 1,163,374 $ 5,279,291

4,165,906 1,105,325 5,271,231

2027 3,528,663 1,047,024 4,575,687
2028 2,182,206 997,210 3,179,416
2029 1,999,430 957,594 2,957,024
2030 - 2034 10,066,399 4,206,028 14,272,427
2035 - 2039 6,124,511 3,478,140 9,602,651
2040 - 2044 6,669,058 2,933,593 9,602,651
2045 - 2049 7,262,023 2,340,628 9,602,651
2050 - 2054 7,907,710 1,694,941 9,602,651
2055 - 2059 8,610,806 991,845 9,602,651
2050 - 2064 5,381,002 320,651 5,701,653
2065 - 2069 1,816,406 67,457 1,883,863
2070 - 2074 - - -
Total $ 69,830,037 $ 21,303,810 $ 91,133,847
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 5 LEASES (CONTINUED)
B. Lease Payable and Right to Use Lease Assets

On July 1, 2021, City of Redondo Beach, California, entered into a 102-month lease as
Lessee for the use of 1922 Artesia Boulevard — Community Services Dept Building —
Chuka. An initial lease liability was recorded in the amount of $2,245,558. As of June 30,
2024, the value of the lease liability is $1,501,429. The City of Redondo Beach,
California, is required to make monthly fixed payments of $20,798. Jbe City is using an
implicit interest rate of 0.4570% for this lease. The City has one&xtension option of 60
months should it choose to exercise it. The buildings esti d“aseful life was 102
months as of the contract commencement.

intd0 a 54 month lease as

On February 1, 2024, City of Redondo Beach, CA
bility was recorded in the
e lease liability is $410,147.

Lessee for the use of workstation equipment. An gffitial lea
amount of $550,897. As of June 30, 2024, the value of
The City is required to make annual fixed paymentsSefg$140,750. The City is using an
implicit interest rate of 1.5132% for this lease\\The workstation equipment useful life is

54 months as of the contract commence e City has the option to purchase the
Equipment for $385 should it choose to

The right to use leased assets at Jufie 4, include the following:

P

’S Amount of
Leased Capital Accumulated
Lease Un S Assets Amortization
Community Service D uilding $ 2,245,558 $ 792,550
550,897 57,385

$ 2796455 $ 849,935

Workstation E uﬁrm\

Future pr'r@n interest requirements to maturity for the lease liabilities are as
follows:

Governmental Activities

Principal Interest Total
Year Ending June 30, Payments Payments Payments
2025 $ 393,892 $ 12,528 $ 406,420
2026 401,907 9,294 411,201
2027 410,068 6,002 416,070
2028 278,010 2,651 280,661
2029 283,958 1,363 285,321
2030 143,741 192 143,933
Total $  1911,576 $ 32,030 $ 1,943,606
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NOTE 6

NOTE 7

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUBSCRIPTIONS

As of June 30, 2024, the City has 17 subscription-based information technology
arrangements (SBITA) for the use of various software. The City is required to make principal
and interest payments through fiscal year 2030. An initial lease liability was recorded in the
amount of $1,298,779. As of June 30, 2024, the value of the subscription liability was
$1,173,532. The subscriptions have interest rates ranging from 1.7103% to 3.6310%. The
value of the subscription asset at June 30, 2024 is $2,101,699 with accumulated
amortization of $662,306. &

The subscription assets at June 30, 2024, include the following:

Accumulated
Amortization

$ 662,306

Asset Class

Software

Future principal and interest requirements to maturity for the subscription liability are as
follows:

overnmental Activities
cipal Interest Total
ents Payments Payments

Year Ending June 30,

2025 * 383,974 $ 31,679 $ 415,653
2026 345,408 21,357 366,765
2027 \ 213,940 11,374 225,314
2028 151,001 5,572 156,573
202 79,210 1,830 81,040
2 3 - - -
\ $ 1173533 S 71812 _$ 1245345
INTER r& ACTIONS
A. nment-Wide Financial Statements
Interial Balances

At June 30, 2024, the City had the following internal receivables and payables for
covering cash shortfalls:

Internal
Balances
Receivable
Governmental
Activities

Internal Balances Payable:

Business-Type Activities $ 1,292,629
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 7 INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

A. Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued)

Transfers
The City had the following transfers as of June 30, 2024

Transfers

Transfers Out:
Governmental Activities

B. Fund Financial Statements

Due to/from Other Funds
The City had the following due to/from other fupds as une 30, 2024:

Enterprise Funds

General ernmental Harbor
Due to Other Funds Fund Funds Tidelands Total
Governmental Funds:
Other Intergovernmental
Grants % 68,008 $ - 8 - $ 5,868,098
Low-Mod Income Housing \ 1,213 861,213

Other Governmental Funds ,934,477 4,677,893 175,000 6,787,370
Enterprise Funds:
Harbor Tidelands
\ 4

544,986 - 544,986

Transit 922,643 - - 922,643
Total \ 3 9586431 _$ 5222879 _$ 175,000 _$ 14,984,310

The $5,868 @ jue to other funds in the Other Intergovernmental Grants Fund is to
cover ative h balances.

861,243 due to other funds in the Low-Mod Income Housing Fund is due to the
eral Fund for housing compliance services.

Of the $6,787,370 due to other funds in Other Governmental Funds, $4,677,893 is due
to the Capital Improvement Projects fund to cover project expenditures, $109,478 is due
to the General Fund for expenditures made on behalf of the Public Financing Authority,
$175,000 is for Kincaids rental income passed through to the Harbor Tidelands Fund,
$1,726,139 is due to the General for expenditure made on behalf of the Housing
Authority, and $25,528 and $73,332 are due to the General Fund to cover negative cash

balance in the Community Development Block Grant fund and Local Transportation
Article 3 fund, respectively.

(71)



NOTE 7

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
B. Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Due to/from Other Funds (Continued)

The $544,986 due to other funds in the Harbor Tidelands Fund is to cover the
obligations of the Public Financing Authority (PFA) including a loan payoff and any

excess of the Kincaid's Restaurant rental income.
Transfers \

The City had the following transfers as of June 30, 2024

General Govern Enterprise
Transfers Out Fund Funds Total
Governmental Funds:
General Fund $ $ 13,973,838

Other Governmental Funds
Enterprise Funds:
Harbor Uplands 1,653,179
Total $ 1.653.179

Of the $13,973,838 transfer from
service payments.
g
The $2,140,580 transfer fro@major governmental funds to the Other Enterprise

2,140,580 2,951,946

- 1,653,179
3 2140580 _$ 18,578,963

ral Fund, $13,973,833 was to fund debt

Fund for a transit subsi

The $1,653,1794ra

to reimburse \&

the Harbor Tidelands Enterprise Fund to the General Fund

NOTE8 CAPITALA

Th ected to use the "Modified Approach" as defined by GASB Statement No. 34 for
infra sture reporting for its street pavement system. As a result, no accumulated
depreciation or depreciation expense has been recorded for this system. A more detailed

discussion of the "Modified Approach" is presented in the Required Supplementary
Information section of this report. All other capital assets including other infrastructure
systems were reported using the Basic Approach whereby accumulated depreciation and
depreciation expense have been recorded.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

At June 30, 2024, the City's capital assets consisted of the following:

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Nondepreciable Assets:
Land $ 18,681,425 20,773,255 $ 39,454,680
Construction in Progress 24,968,092 10,903,1 35,871,229
Infrastructure - Streets 54,054,036 - 54,054,036
Total Nondepreciable Assets 97,703,553 31,676,3 29,379,945
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and Improvements 78,556,190 ) 127,566,326
Right-to-Use Buildings 2,796,455 - 2,796,455
Right-to-Use Subscriptions 2,101,699 - 2,101,699
Furniture and Equipment 13,883,87 ,121,730 15,005,605
Automotive Equipment 21,145,210 ,077,406 25,222,616
Infrastructure 102,696,119 33,634,671 136,330,790
Total Depreciable Assets 87,843,943 309,023,491
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements 23,793,297 56,091,348
Right-to-Use Buildings , - 849,936
Right-to-Use Subscriptions 62,306 - 662,306
Furniture and Equipment ,788,260 1,002,891 11,791,151
Automotive Equipment 2 3 14,233,405 2,276,422 16,509,827
Infrastructure 64,533,787 15,067,614 79,601,401
Total Accumulated Depr ion 123,365,745 42,140,224 165,505,969
Total Deprecia@e 97,813,803 45,703,719 143,517,522
Total Capital N $ 195,517,356 77,380,111 $ 272,897,467

Q\

(73)

92



CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of changes in the capital assets for governmental activities
during the fiscal year:

Balance at
June 30, 2023 Balance at
As Restated* Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2024
Nondepreciable Assets:
Land $ 16,522,947 $ 1,486,478  $ -3 000 $ 18,681,425
Construction in Progress 36,310,370 9,630,901 (490,789) 8 0) 24,968,092
Infrastructure - Streets 54,054,036 - - 54,054,036
Total Nondepreciable
Assets 106,887,353 11,117,379 (490,789) 8107390) 97,703,553
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and Improvements 58,523,343 240,060 9,792,787 78,556,190
Right-to-Use Buildings 2,245,558 - - 2,245,558
Right-to-Use Subscriptions 1,422,465 788,039 81805) - 2,101,699
Furniture and Equipment 13,730,204 174,497 29) 17,603 13,883,875
Right-to-Use Furniture and Equipment - 550,897 - - 550,897
Automotive Equipment 19,603,617 4,653,1 1,516) - 21,145,210
Infrastructure 102,696,119 - - 102,696,119
Total Depreciable
Assets 198,221,306 (3,258,750) 19,810,390 221,179,548
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements 29,849,247 - - 32,298,051
Right-to-Use Buildings 528,367 4,184 - - 792,551
Right-to-Use Subscriptions 525,124 (108,805) - 662,306
Furniture and Equipment 596,463 (38,429) - 10,788,260
Right-to-Use Furniture and Equipment 57,385 - - 57,385
Automotive Equipment 2,174,752 (3,111,516) - 14,233,405
Infrastructure 1,823,881 - - 64,533,787
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 7,890,593 (3,258,750) - 123,365,745
Total Depreciabl,
Assets, Net 79,487,404 (1,483,991) - 19,810,390 97,813,803
*The beginning has been restated to reflect adjustments to construction in progress
from a prior €@ Note 17 for more information.
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NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of governmental activities for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, as follows:

General Government:
General Government $ 2,547,347
Public Safety 336,407

Public Works 2,712,1
Cultural and Leisure Services 502,8

Internal Service Funds:
Vehicle Replacement
Building Occupancy
Information Technology
Self-Insurance Program
Emergency Communications
Maijor Facilities Repair

Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense $ 7,890,593

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The following is a summary of change$ii apital assets for business-type activities for
the year ended June 30, 2024:
*
ce
02 Balance at
estated” Additions Deletions Transfers June 30, 2024
Nondepreciable Assets:
Land L 3 520,323,255 $ -3 - 8 450,000 $ 20,773,255
Construction in Progres: 10,374,372 4,500,802 (114,443) (3,857,594) 10,903,137
Total Nondeprecial
Assets 30,697,627 4,500,802 (114,443) (3,407,594) 31,676,392
Depreciable Assets:
Buildings and | nts 45,184,647 - - 3,825,489 49,010,136
Furnituzgesand ipme 1,094,505 27,225 - - 1,121,730
Auty qui nt 3,698,852 644,560 (266,006) - 4,077,406
In 33,634,671 - - 33,634,671
jotal Depreciable
Assets 83,612,675 671,785 (266,006) 3,825,489 87,843,943
Less Accumulated Depreciation for:
Buildings and Improvements 22,589,621 1,203,676 - - 23,793,297
Furniture and Equipment 989,771 13,120 - - 1,002,891
Automotive Equipment 2,277,921 264,507 (266,006) - 2,276,422
Infrastructure 14,611,721 455,893 - 15,067,614
Total Accumulated
Depreciation 40,469,034 1,937,196 (266,006) - 42,140,224
Total Depreciable
Assets, Net 43,143,641 (1,265,411) - 3,825,489 45,703,719

Business-Type Activities
Capital Assets, Net $ 73841268 _$ 3,235,391 $ (114.443) _$ 417895 _$ 77,380,111

*The beginning balance has been restated to reflect the transfer of assets from a prior year.
See Note 17 for more information.

NOTE 8 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED)
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NOTE 9

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

Depreciation expense for business-type activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024,
was charged as follows:

Harbor Tidelands $ 565,103
Harbor Uplands 382,990
Wastewater 728,479
Other Nonmajor Enterprise Funds 260,624
Total Depreciation and Amortization Expense $ 1,937,196
In the governmental fund financial statements, capital asse not presented.
Consequently, capital assets are a reconciling item and are showndi, th onciliation of

the governmental funds balance sheet to the government-wide stm f net position.

\

ble transactions for the year

COMPENSATED ABSENCES PAYABLE

The following is a summary of compensated absence
ended June 30, 2024:

Amounts Due

Balance at Balance at Within One
June 30, 2023 itions Deletions June 30, 2024 Year
Governmental Activities:
Compensated Absences Payable $ 3,789,527 %ﬁi 414§ (2,882,066) $ 4,045,875 $ 1,011,469

Business-Type Activities:
Compensated Absences Payable 5
Total

The long-term portion of Xated absences payable has been accrued for the
governmental activities e government-wide financial statement. Also, compensated

absences are geneﬁKui d by the General Fund. There is no fixed payment schedule

350,557 (398,204) 501,277 125,319
$ (3280270) _$ 4547152 _$ 1,136,788

3488971

to pay these liabil .

&
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 10 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year ended June 30,

2024
Amounts Due
Balance at Balance at Within One
June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024 Year
Governmental Activities:
CFA 2019A Lease Revenue
Refunding Bonds $ 25955000 $ - 8 (605,000) $ 625,000
Unamortized Bond Discount (647,448) - 24,902 -
CFA Lease Revenue Bonds
Series 2021A 200,523,915 - (6,933,276) 6,983,716
Leases (See Note 5.B.) 1,754,910 550,897 (394,231) -
Subscriptions (See Note 6) 985,983 746,539 383,975
Total Governmental
Activities $ 228572360 _$ 1,297,436 $ $ 7,992,691
Business-Type Activities:
Wastewater Revenue Refunding
2014 Series A $ 4,735,000 $ $ 4,395,000 $ 355,000
Unamortized Bond Premium 288,815 262,560 -
CFA Lease Revenue Bonds -
Series 2021A 18,126,085 (626,724) 17,499,361 631,284
Total Business-Type
Activities $ 23149900 - (992979) _$ 22,156,921 $ 986,284

Community Financing Authority (CF%ease Revenue Refunding Bonds

The Community Financing Authori efunding revenue bonds dated February 2019,
totaling $28,015,000. The pro? of theé bonds were used to refund the various leaseback
contingencies and finance x se of a sublease between the City and Redondo
Fisherman's Cove Compa nds bear interest at rates between 4.00% and 5.00%

and interest is payable ch May 1 and November 1, commencing November 1, 2019.
The bonds are p se rental payments. Principal is due annually beginning on

May 1, 2020, in nging from $350,000 to $1,585,000. The bonds mature on
May 1, 2049. T e subject to optional and mandatory early redemption provisions.
As of June 3 , the balance outstanding was $25,350,000, with an unamortized

discount o 2

Th | reQuirements to amortize the outstanding bond indebtedness as of June 30,
2024Nficluding interest, are as follows:
Year Ending June, 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $ 625,000 $ 1,030,038 $ 1,655,038
2026 640,000 1,010,506 1,650,506
2027 665,000 989,706 1,654,706
2028 685,000 968,094 1,653,094
2029 710,000 944,975 1,654,975
2030 - 2034 3,960,000 4,296,425 8,256,425
2035 - 2039 4,830,000 3,426,237 8,256,237
2040 - 2044 5,930,000 2,329,212 8,259,212
2045 - 2049 7,305,000 957,314 8,262,314
Total $ 25,350,000 $ 15,952,507 $ 41,302,507

NOTE 10 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

The following is a summary of the 2019A Lease Revenue Refunding unamortized discount
outstanding at June 30, 2024:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024
$  (647.448) _$ - % 24902 § _ (622.546)
Wastewater Revenue Bonds 2014, Series A
On March 25, 2014, the City issued $7,230,000 of Wastewater Re efunding Bonds
for the purpose of refunding $7,230,000 of then-outstanding 2004 s ter Revenue
Refunding Bonds. The purpose of the bonds was to finance in Ygprovements and

F 'The serial bonds in
variable interest rate
nt of $2,435,000 mature

related facilities that constitute part of the Wastewater Enterprij
the amount of $4,795,000 mature through May 1, 2029 an

after May 1, 2015 are subject to optional redempt| gvisions. The term bonds are
subject to optional and mandatory redemption visions¥ The bonds are payable solely
from and secured by a pledge of and lien upo the net revenues of the Wastewater
Enterprise Fund.

As of June 30, 2024, the balance out as 4,395,000, with an unamortized bond
premium of $262,560.

The annual requirements to % ize outstandlng bond indebtedness as of June 30,
2024, including interest, are & ;

Year Ending Jun Principal Interest Total
2 $ 355,000 $ 188,488 $ 543,488
2 \ 375,000 170,738 545,738
395,000 151,988 546,988
405,000 139,150 544,150
2 430,000 118,900 548,900
03 034 2,435,000 299,600 2,734,600
Total $ 4,395,000 $ 1,068,864 $ 5.463,864

The follQwing is a summary of the 2014 Revenue Bond Series A unamortized premium
outstanding at June 30, 2024:

Balance at Balance at
June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024
$ 288,815 $ - $ (26,255) $ 262,560
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JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 10 LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Community Financing Authority (CFA) Lease revenue Bonds Series 2021A

In July 2021, the Redondo Beach Community Financing Authority (CFA) issued
$226,180,000 Lease Revenue Bonds Series 2021A (federally taxable) to fund a portion of
the City's obligation to the California Public Employees' Retirement System. The bond will
be payable from base rental payment made by the City to the Authority as rental for portion

of certain street located in the City. The bonds include $115,865, serial bonds with
ing in amount of
u $51,785,000

principal due on May 1 of each year starting in 2023 until 2026 a
$7,530,000 to $9,485,000. The bonds also include term bonds in the
and 58,530,000 due May 1, 2041 and 2049 respectively. Inter ayable on the bonds
range from 0.415% to 3.068% payable semiannually.

Principal erest Total
,044 $ 13,100,044

Year Ending June, 30,
2025 $

2026 408,056 13,103,056
2027 ,306,406 13,101,406
2028 5,181,998 13,101,998
2029 5,039,754 13,099,754
2030 - 2034 22,540,718 65,510,718
2035 - 2039 16,644,262 65,514,262
2040 - 2044 9,039,890 58,959,890
2045 - 2049 45,000 2,510,238 32,755,238
Total 090,000 $ 77,156,366 $ 288,246,366

In the event of default, the
which have not come d
the Leased Property T

'\r medy of acceleration of any Base Rental Payments
right for the Authority to terminate the Lease and re-let

emedy provided for in the Lease is to exercise any action at

desirable to collect the amounts due under the Lease.

law or in equity nXs\
In addition, th@ porting a deferred charge on refunding as a deferred outflows of
o)
i

resources. ing is a summary of the amortization of the deferred charge for the
fiscal in ne 30, 2024:

Balance at
June 30, 2024

Balance at
June 30, 2023

$ 282785 _$ - 3 (25,708) _$ 257,077

Additions Deletions

Deferred lows of Resources:
Deferred Loss on Refunding
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 11 RISK MANAGEMENT

The City is exposed to risks of losses related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters; and currently
reports all of its risk management activities in its Self-Insurance Program Internal Service
Fund.

administered by a third-party agent, AdminSure. The self-insurance ge for each claim
is limited to $750,000. Excess coverage of up to $50,000,000 for ea is provided by
the Public Risk Innovations, Solutions, and Management (PRISMgy, aMyinsurance pool, in
which a consortium of counties and cities has agreed to shafe niSks and losses. As of
June 30, 2024, the estimated claims payable for workers' ¢ Qo was $14,669,120,
which included claims incurred but not reported (IBN rrent year's portion of the
claims was $611,066.

The City has adopted a self-insurance workers' compensation ,program, which is
o

For general liability claims, the City is also self-insured 500,000 for each occurrence.
The self-insurance program is administered by a third-party agent, AdminSure. Each claim
in excess of the self-insured retention of up t 0,000 is covered by the CSAC-EIA. As
of June 30, 2024, the estimated claims payable fo neral liability was $9,733,982, which

included IBNR. The current year's portio s9592,11. Governmental activities claims and
judgments are generally liquidated by tr%r | Fund.

'Y Liability on
June 30, 2024
General Liability $ 9,733,982

Workers' Compensation 14,669,120

Total Claims Qay $ 24,403,102
Due Within on Y \\ $ 1,203,177
Due in More th ear 23,199,925
Tot a yable $ 24,403,102
Th ing 1S a summary of the changes in the claim liability over the past two fiscal

years:@€hanges in the reported liability resulted from the following:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Fiscal Year Balance Increase Decrease Balance One Year
2022 - 2023
Workers' Compensation $ 16,533,937 § 1,331,205 § (4,595,226) $ 13,269,916 § 456,300
General Liabilities 7,704,242 7,423,908 (7,476,680) 7,651,470 292,264
Total $ 24238179 _$ 8755113 _$ (12.071906) _$ 20921386 _$ 748.564
2023 - 2024
Workers' Compensation $ 13269916 § 1,964,702  $ (565,498) $ 14,669,120 $ 611,066
General Liabilities 7,651,470 9,334,231 (7,251,719) 9,733,982 592,111
Total $ 20921386 _$ 11298933 _$ (7.817.217) _$ 24403102 _$ 1,203,177
(80)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 11 RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Settled claims have not exceeded any of the City's coverage amounts in any of the last
three fiscal years and there were no reductions in the City's coverage during the year. The
estimated claims payable for workers' compensation and general liability is based on
estimates provided by the third-party administrator, the City Attorney, the Risk Management
staff, and the City's actuary.

NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS \

A. Pension Plans @

Plan Description

The Plans are agent, multiple-employer defined4g [
the California Public Employees' Retirement Syste PERS). A full description of the
pension plans regarding number of employees,covergggbenefit provisions, assumptions
(for funding, but not account purposes), and faembership information are listed in the
June 30, 2022, Annual Actuarial Valuati ort (funding valuation). Details of the
benefits provided can be obtained in Afpendix B\ of the actuarial valuation report. The

actuarial valuation report and C uditéd financial statements are publicly
available reports that can be obtain

ERS' website, at www.calpers.ca.gov.
Benefits Provided *
CalPERS provides service et ent and disability benefits, annual cost of living

adjustments and death foengfitShto plan members, who must be public employees and
beneficiaries. Benefi based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full

ensfon plans administered by

time employ bere with five years of total service are eligible to retire at age 50
with statutorily enefits. All members are eligible for nonduty disability benefits
after 10 ye ervice. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, th rvivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The
cost of fliv justments for each plan are applied as specified by the Public

' Retirement Law.

Miscellaneous

Tier 1* Tier 2 * Tier 3
On or After
May 1, 2012
Prior to and Before On or After
Hire Date May 1, 2012 January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit Formula 2% @ 55 2% @ 60 2% @ 62
Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years Service 5 Years Service 5 Years Service
Benefit Payments Monthly for Life Monthly for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement Age 50-63 50-63 52-67
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible
Compensation 1.426% - 2.418% 1.092% - 2.418% 1.0% - 2.5%
Required Employee Contribution Rates 7.00% 7.00% 7.75%
Required Employer Contribution Rates 10.34% 10.34% 10.34%
Required Employer UAL Contribution $ - $ - $
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

A. Pension Plans (Continued)

Benefits Provided (Continued)

Tier 1 * Tier 2 * Tier 3

On or After
January 1, 2013

Prior to and Befor:
Hire Date May 1, 2012 January

Benefit Formula Police - 3% @ 50 Police Police and Fire
Fire - 3% @ 55 2.7% @ 57

Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 Years Service 5 rs 5 Years Service
Benefit Payments Monthly for Life o for Life Monthly for Life
Retirement Age 50-55 50885 50-57
Monthly Benefits, as a % of Eligible

Compensation 2.4% - 3% A% - 3% 2% - 2.7%
Required Employee Contribution Rates 9.00% 13.00%
Required Employer Contribution Rates 23.340% 23.340%

Required Employer UAL Contribution $ - $

As of the valuation date of June 30
benefit terms of the Plan:

ing employees were covered by the

Miscellaneous Safety

Inactive Employees or Bene# iariegCurrently

Receiving Benefits \ 542 325
Inactive Employees Enti tout Not Yet

Receiving Beneﬁ(s 433 62

Active Employees 281 143
Total \\ 1,256 530

of the California Public Employees' Retirement Law (PERL) requires
loyer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual
by the actuary and shall be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in
ate. The total plan contributions are determined through the CalPERS' annual
arial valuation process. The actuarially determined rate is based on the estimated
amount necessary to finance the costs and benefits earned by employees during the
year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The employer
is required to contribute the difference between the actuarially determined rate and the
contribution rate of employees. Employer contribution rates may change if plan contracts
are amended. Payments made by the employer to satisfy contribution requirements that
are identified by the pension plan terms as plan member contribution requirements are
classified as plan member contributions.

For the year ended June 30, 2024, the City made $7,326,864 of employer contributions
to the pension plans ($2,347,150 miscellaneous plan and $4,979,714 safety plan).

(82)

101



CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Pension Plans (Continued)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Total Pension Liability

The June 30, 2022 valuation was rolled forward to determine the June 30, 2023 total
pension liability based on the following actuarial methods and assumptions:

Miscellaneous Safety

Valuation Date June 30, 2022 un , 2022
Measurement Date June 30, 2023 30, 2023
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal % Age Normal
Asset Valuation Method Market Value of et et Value of Assets
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 6.90% 6.90%

Inflation 2.30% 2.30%

Salary Increases (1) 3.30% t&14.20% 3.30% to 10.90%

Mortality Rate Table (2) Derive alPERS membership data for all funds

Postretirement Benefit Increase The | tract COLA or 2.30% until Purchasing

ROW ectioh Allowance floor on purchasing power
D vﬁ .30% thereafter

(1) Annual increases vary byycategory,@ntry age, and duration of service.

(2) The mortality table used eloped based on CalPERS-specific data. The probabilities
of mortality are base they 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of Actuarial
Assumptions. Mort i
Scale MP-2020 p

refer to the@2024, €
CalPERS weBsite®

xpected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined
3 ing-block method in which expected future real rates of return (expected
s, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each
asset class.

rience study report from November 2021 that can be found on the
w.calpers.ca.gov.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS took into account both
short-term and long-term market return expectations. Using historical returns of all of the
funds' asset classes, expected compound (geometric) returns were calculated over the
next 20 years using a building-block approach. The expected rate of return was then
adjusted to account for assumed administrative expenses of 10 Basis points.
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Pension Plans (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return (Continued)
The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

Assumed
Asset Real Return
Asset Class (1) Allocation 1,2

Global Equity - Cap-Weighted 30.00% 4.54%
Global Equity - Noncap-Weighted . 3.84%
Private Equity 7.28%
Treasury 0.27%
Mortgage-Backed Securities 0.50%
Investment Grade Corporates 1.56%
High Yield 2.27%
Emerging Market Debt 2.48%
Private Debt 3.57%

3.21%

-0.59%

Real Assets

Leverage

(1) An expected price inflation of 2.30 @« this period.
i

(2) Figures are based on the’20 lity Management study.

Discount Rate

The discount rate used.fto
of cash flows u*d
members willqe

re the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection
mine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan
e current member contribution rates and that contributions
ade at statutorily required rates, actuarially determined. Based
, the Plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the
d rate of return on plan investments was applied to all periods of
nefit payments to determine the total pension liability.

[) ili
Subsequent Events

Ther&were no subsequent events that would materially affect the results presented in
this disclosure.
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Pension Plans (Continued)

Changes in the Net Pension Liability

The following tables show the changes in net pension liability recognized over the
measurement period for the Miscellaneous and Safety Plans:

Plan Total Plan Fiduci Plan Net
Pension Liability Net Positi Pension Liability
Miscellaneous Plan (a)

Balance - June 30, 2022 - Measurement Date $ 240,496,017 $ 232, $ 8,207,623

Changes Recognized for the
Measurement Period:

Service Cost 3,441,8 - 3,441,839
Interest on the Total Pension Liability 16,219, - 16,219,473
Changes of Benefit Terms (2) 339,22 - 339,225

Differences between Expected

and Actual Experience - (707,830)
Net Plan to Plan Resource Movement (14,324) 14,324
Contributions from the Employer 2,014,388 (2,014,388)
Contributions from the Employees 1,571,290 (1,571,290)
Net Investment Income 13,829,787 (13,829,787)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds

of Employee Contributions 3,567,007) (13,567,007) -
Administrative Expense - (170,814) 170,814

Net Changes during 2022-23 'S 5,725,700 3,663,320 2,062,380
Balance - June 30, 2023 - Measurem& 1)_8% 246,221,717 $ 235951714 $ 10,270,003
Plan Total Plan Fiduciary Plan Net
Pension Liability Net Position Pension Liability

(a) (b) (c)=(a)-(b)
urement Date $ 421,286,399 $ 398,696,709 $ 22,589,690

6,407,011 - 6,407,011
28,719,706 - 28,719,706
168,350 - 168,350
ifferences between Expected
nd Actual Experience 4,346,921 - 4,346,921
Plan to Plan Resource Movement - 14,324 (14,324)
Contributions from the Employer - 4,682,522 (4,682,522)
Contributions from the Employees - 2,209,903 (2,209,903)
Net Investment Income - 23,582,718 (23,582,718)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds
of Employee Contributions (25,555,133) (25,555,133) -
Administrative Expense - (293,183) 293,183
Net Changes during 2022-23 14,086,855 4,641,151 9,445,704

Balance - June 30, 2023 - Measurement Date (1) _$ 435,373,254 3 403,337,860 3 32,035,394

(1) The fiduciary net position includes receivables for employee service buybacks, deficiency reserves, fiduciary self-
insurance and OPEB expense. As described in the previous section of this note, this may differ from the plan assets
reported in the funding actuarial valuation report.

(2) In 2022, SB 1168 increased the standard retiree lump sum death benefit from $500 to $2,000 for any death occurring

on or after July 1, 2023. The impact is included in the changes of benefit terms.
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Pension Plans (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension liability for the Plans as of the measurement
date, calculated using the discount rate of 6.90 percent, as well as what the net pension
liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that js 1 percentage-point

Discount Discount
Rate - 1% Rate + 1%
(5.90%) (7.90%)

Miscellaneous Plan $ (15,131,406)

Safety Plan (12,824,173)
Total $ (27955579

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

The plan fiduciary net position disclose GASB 68 accounting valuation report

may differ from the plan assets reporte the Tupding actuarial valuation report due to

several reasons. First, for the acco atiofis, CalPERS must keep items such as

deficiency reserves, fiduciary self- e and OPEB expense included as assets.

These amounts are excluded f ng purposes in the funding actuarial valuation.
m early Comprehensive Annual Financial Report
es. Detailed information about each pension plan's
in the separately issued CalPERS financial reports.

ional information.

For the meas x riod ended June 30, 2023 (the measurement date) and for the
reporting per June 30, 2024 (the reporting date), the City incurred a pension
expense ,554 and $15,861,738 the miscellaneous and safety plans,

respect'{
A une80, 2024, the following were the reported deferred outflows of resources and
red inflows of resources related to all pension plans:

Miscellaneous Safety
Deferred Deferred Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources Resources Resources
City Pension Contribution
Subsequent to Measurement Date $ 2,347,150  $ -3 4979,714  $ -
Difference Between Expected
and Actual Experience - (1,052,782) 3,029,672 (845,753)
Change in Assumptions 1,009,614 - 4,752,553 -
Net Difference Between Projected
and Actual Earnings on Pension
Plan Investments 12,702,364 - 22,624,028 -
Total $ 16059128 _$ (1,052,782) _$ 35385967 _$ (845,753)
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
A. Pension Plans (Continued)

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position (Continued)

Contributions subsequent to the measurement date are reported as deferred outflows of
resources and will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year
ended June 30, 2025. Other amounts reported as deferred outflo r deferred inflows
of resources related to pensions will be recognized as pension e as follows:

Miscellane
Deferr Deferred
(0] Outflows
s) (Inflows)
Measurement Period Ended June 30, Reésolikees of Resources
2025 2,995,291 $ 10,698,759
2026 100,685 6,028,656

2027 7,196,867 12,179,561
2028

366,353 653,524
Total

* $ 12,659,196 $ 29,560,500
B. Other Postemployment Benefits %&

Plan Description and Eligibility
In addition to the pensioﬂ @escribed above, the City provides certain health
insurance benefits, in & with memorandums of understanding, to retired
employees through t ifofnia Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust (CERBT) Fund,
which is an agent IPle-employer plan administered by CalPERS. The City provides
medical insur; fomemployees in accordance with agreements reached with various
bargaining gro N City shall pay the single retiree medical premium rate, for
qualified reti ,§or¥a medical insurance plan in which the retiree is enrolled from
among tho ical plans provided by the City. These contributions of the City for such
medicaﬁ shall cease on the date the retiree becomes eligible to enroll in the
3|

dicare program and/or any Medicare supplemental plans. Membership of the
gonsisted of the following at June 30, 2023 (the measurement date).

Number of
Employees
Active Employees 400
Inactives Currently Receiving Benefits 184
Inactives Entitled to But Not Yet Receiving
Benefits 330
Total 914
(87)
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

B. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Contributions

The required contribution of the City is based on a percentage of PERSable payroll. For
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 the City's contributions were $1,970,280
($1,560,280 of premiums and a $410,000 implicit subsidy).

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Net OPEB%ia

The City's net OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, the total OPEB
liability used to calculate the net OPEB liability was dete{ d on the following

actuarial methods and assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2023

Contribution Policy City contributes full a determined contribution as a
percentage of cgvered oll

Discount Rate and 6.25% at Jupe 30, 2023

Long-Term Expected Rate 6.25% at dén 022

of Return on Assets Expected@it utions projected to keep sufficient

pla ts'1Q, pay@ll benefits from trust

General Inflation 2.5

Mortality, Retirement, Disabil"ty, 2000-2019 Experience Study
Termination
Mortality Improvement \ rtality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021

Salary Increases ggregate — 2.75% annually

® Merit — CalPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study
Medical Trend Non-Medicare — 8.5% for 2025, decreasing to an ultimate

rate of 3.45% in 2076

Medicare — N/A

Increases 3.5% annually
rticipation for Currently covered — 100%, 90%, 60%, 50% for employees
enefit receiving 100%, 75%, 50%, 25% City paid premium

respectively

Not currently covered — 90% of above rates

PEMMCA Medical Participation Currently covered — 10% for 2021, increasing to ultimate
rate of 50% in 2033
Not currently covered — 90% of above rates

Life Insurances Participation Future retirees: 10%
Change of Assumptions Update to medical trend assumptions
Changes of Benefit Items None
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return
The expected real rates of return by asset class are as followed:

Target
Allocation Expected
CERBT - al Rate
Asset Class Component Strategy of Return
Global Equity 49% 4.56%
Fixed Income o 1.56%
TIPS -0.08%
Commodities % 1.22%
REITs % 4.06%
(1) Assumed Long-Term Rate of Inflation 2.50%
(2) Expected Long-Term Net Rate of Return,
Rounded to the Nearest Quarter Percent: 6.25%
The long-term expected real rates m@a e presented as geometric means.

Discount Rate 'S

The discount rate used toweasure the total OPEB liability was 6.25 percent. The
projection of cash flo o determine the discount rate assumed that City
contributions will be tes equal to the actuarially determined contribution rates.
Based on those®ss , the OPEB plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be
available to I& rojected OPEB payments for current active and inactive
employees and efieiaries. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB
plan invest @"rﬂ applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine

the tota bility.
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

Changes in the OPEB Liability

Total OPEB Fiduciary Net OPEB
Liability Net Position Liability
(a) (b) (c)=(a)-(b)
Balance at June 30, 2023 (Measurement
Date June 30, 2022) $ 22,122,970 $ 9,13 $ 12,988,987
Changes Recognized for the
Measurement Period:
Service Cost 752,978 752,978
Interest 1,382,435 - 1,382,435
Benefit Changes - - -
Actual Versus Expected Experience 545,6, - 545,675
Assumption Changes 575, - 575,958
Contributions - Employer - 1,822,393 (1,822,393)

Net Investment Income 765,828 (765,828)

Benefit Payments (1,513,984) -

Administrative Expense (9,436) 9,436
Net Changes 1,064,801 678,261

Balance at June 30, 2024 (Measurement

Date June 30, 2023) $ 10,198,784 $ 13,667,248

hanges in the Discount Rate
PEB liability of the City if it were calculated using

The following presents the‘
discount rate that is& ge point lower or one percentage point higher than the
e

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liabilit

current rate for the m nt period ended June 30, 2023.

Current

) 4
\\ 1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
@ (5.25%) (6.25%) (7.25%)
[

$ 15,823,845 $ 13,667,248 $ 11,777,238

Net OPE
& the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rates
Il

ca

than

owing presents the net OPEB liability of the City if it were calculated using health
ost-trend rates that are one percentage point lower or one percentage point higher
e current rate for the measurement period ended June 30, 2023.

Current
Healthcare Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
Net OPEB Liability $ 11,000,220 $ 13,667,248 $ 17,210,599
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NOTE 12 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)
B. Other Postemployment Benefits (Continued)

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

CalPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements
and required supplementary information. Copies of the CalPERS' annual financial report
may be obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P ﬁSacramento,

California 95814.

OPEB expense of
)28 measurement date),
OPEB from the following

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources R
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the City ;(
0,

$1,073,630. As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2024
the City reported deferred outflows of resource
sources:

D efe rred Deferred
Outflows Inflows
of Resources of Resources
OPEB Contributions Subsequent to Measureme
Date 1,970,280 $ -
Differences Between Expected and Actual
Experience 481,478 (2,931,496)
Changes of Assumptions 1,363,594 (724,001)
Net Difference Between Prolecﬁ ctu
Earnings on OPEB Plan Invest 577,209 -
Total $ 4,392,561 3 (3,655,497)

s deferred outflows of resources related to contributions

The $1,970,280%
subsequent to Nﬁ ent date will be recognized as a reduction to net OPEB liability
e 30, 20245. Other amounts reported as deferred inflows of

in the year , .
resources to"OPEB will be recognized as expense as follows:

Deferred
Outflow
(Inflows)
Year Ended June 30, of Resources
2025 $ (436,912)
2026 (419,782)
2027 (33,988)
2028 (325,119)
2029 (237,726)
Thereafter 220,311
Total $ (1,233,216)
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NOTE 13 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Lawsuits

The City is a defendant in various lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is
not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the City's legal counsel that resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the

City.

B. Federal and State Grant Programs

The City participates in Federal and State grant programs. The
to audit. No cost disallowance is expected as a result of ﬁ
nag be

may be disallowed, if any, by the granting agencies
The City expects such amounts, if any, to be im

C. Commitments

&

ograms are subject
xpenditures which
termined at this time.

The following material construction commi tS\existed at June 30, 2024:

Expenditures

Contract to Date as of Remaining
Project Name Amount June 30, 2024 Commitments
Portofino Way Sewer Pump Station $ 7,526,868 $ 2,497,100 $ 5,029,768
Manhattan Beach Blvd Resurfaci ject 3,968,958 1,341,394 2,627,564
Seaside Lagoon Revitalizatio \ 3,112,534 564,877 2,547,657
Bicycle Transportation Plan 2,352,630 - 2,352,630
International Boardwalk 1,249,100 - 1,249,100
Fire Pump Com uﬁ ti ent 1,143,254 - 1,143,254
Dominguez Park N 1,519,619 707,561 812,058
NOTE 14 PO &E DIATION OBLIGATIONS
The artment of Toxic Substances Control (DTSC) filed a regulatory Notice of Violation

against®he City regarding the Redondo Beach Police Department's gun range concerning
issues with contamination from lead bullet fragments. Cleanup, fines, assessments, and
settlements incurred by the City for this DTSC action were approximately $282,000. This
liability has been accrued in the General Fund, and the City does not anticipate any
recoveries reducing the liability, nor any further liability from this DTSC investigation as the

DTSC has closed the matter.

Neighboring property owners adjacent to the gun range also filed civil claims for bodily injury
and property damage due to alleged lead exposure. This matter is currently in mediation
and in preparation for arbitration. Defense costs are being covered by several of the City's
historical insurance policies and the related insurance carriers defending under a

reservation of rights.
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NOTE 15

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

POLLUTION REMEDIATION OBLIGATIONS (CONTINUED)

Cleanup and settlements currently are estimated to be $150,000, using assumptions based
on similar cleanup and settlements previously paid in the DTSC matter. Plaintiffs' demands
are significantly higher. The pollution remediation obligation is an estimate and is subject to
revision because of price increases or reductions, changes in technology, changes in
evidence, or changes in applicable laws or regulations. Similarly, bodily injury claims are
estimated based on current evidence (or lack thereof) presented by the,various plaintiffs and
are subject to revision if additional admissible evidence is presente g preparation for
arbitration.

SUCCESSOR AGENCY @

Dissolution of California Redevelopment Agencie

cities in California had established a redeveloptent agency that was included in the
unit (since the City Council, in many
encies).

The Bill provides that upon dissolution velopment agency, either the City or another
unit of local government will agre as the "successor agency" to hold the assets
until they are distributed to other URits tate and local government. If the City declines to
accept the role of successor agencyother local agencies may elect to perform this role. If
no local agency accepts th successor agency, the Governor is empowered by the
Bill to establish a local " local authority" to perform this role. On January 10, 2012

the City Council me®an d a Successor Agency in accordance with the Bill as part of
the City's resoluti\&
e

12-01.
After enactme w, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in
the State o cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject
to thegsGon of a hewly established oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to
eable obligations in existence at the date of dissolution (including the completion

unfinished projects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual
commitipents).

A. Long-Term Debt

In future fiscal years, successor agencies will only be allocated tax revenue in the
amount that is necessary to pay the estimated annual installment payments on
enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all enforceable
obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full.
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NOTE 15 SUCCESSOR AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Dissolution of California Redevelopment Agencies (Continued)
A. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to review the propriety of
any transfers of assets between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that
occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public body that received guch transfers is not
contractually committed to a third party for the expenditure or brance of those
assets, the State Controller is required to order the available as toetransferred to
the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bi

In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (@ m d by the California
Supreme Court on December 29, 2011) all redey€lops agencies in the State of
California were dissolved and ceased to operate €S allentity as of February 1, 2012.
Prior to that date, the final seven months of the a ofythe redevelopment agency is
reported in the governmental funds of the City, After date of dissolution, activities of
the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a fiduciary trust fund (private
purpose trust fund) in the fiduciary statem e City.

In accordance with the provision@ mbly’ Bill X1 26 (Bill) and the California

Supreme Court's decision to uphol the obligations of the former redevelopment
agency became vested with t tablished for the successor agency upon the
date of dissolution, Febru@a 2012. Former tax increment revenues pledged to fund
the debts of the former redev ment agency will be distributed to the Successor
Agency subject to the r

The debt of thQ\Kso gency as of June 30, 2024 is as follows:
Amounts Due

ment of such revenues as provided by the Bill.

Balance at Balance at Within One

June 30, 2023 Additions Deletions June 30, 2024 Year
Successor c
g rral L 1983
re t $ 4,683,632 $ - % 867,944  $ 3,815,688 $ 430,832
DeferrabLoan - 1984
ncrement 5,602,499 - 509,162 5,093,337 714,443
CityLoan - South Bay Center 2,715,000 - 595,000 2,120,000 645,000

Total $ 13,001,131 $ - 3 1972106 _$ 11029025 _$ 1,790,275
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NOTE 15 SUCCESSOR AGENCY (CONTINUED)

Dissolution of California Redevelopment Agencies (Continued)
A. Long-Term Debt (Continued)

1983 Tax Increment Deferral — On November 15, 1983, the Agency and the County of
Los Angeles (County) entered into an agreement for reimbursement of tax increment
funds. It was recognized that the South Bay Center Project Area needed to utilize a
substantial portion of the annual tax increment in the earl
redevelopment activities. Therefore, the County taxing entities a d
tax increment reimbursement from the Agency. This deferral i t

repaid only from the Agency's share of future pledged tax jn€r . There is no fixed
payment schedule to repay this loan and the loan is noginter earing. The balance
outstanding at June 30, 2024, was $3,815,688.

1984 Tax Increment Deferral — On February 1 the Agency and the County
entered into an agreement for reimbursement of tax Mgfement funds. It was recognized
that the Aviation High School Project Area needed to utilize a substantial portion of the
annual tax increment in the early years to its redevelopment activities. Therefore,
the County taxing entities agreed to defek receip§of tax increment reimbursement from
the Agency. This deferral is debt ency’to be repaid only from the Agency's
share of future pledged tax incremept e is no fixed payment schedule to repay this
loan and the loan is nonintere@ he balance outstanding at June 30, 2024, was

$5,093,337. L 4

South Bay Center Ci
advanced $8,660,00

— On July 1, 1996, the Public Financing Authority
mer Redevelopment Agency for improvements within the
pment Project Area. This advance was made through the

South Bay Cenfe
Authority's pu z&) he Agency's 1996 tax allocation bonds and bears interest at
8.95% per a f June 30, 2024, the balance outstanding was $2,120,000.

B. Advan %ity
theé§2014-

2015 fiscal year, the Successor Agency Oversight Board adopted
tions approving the repayment of loans from the Low and Moderate Income
ing fund of the former Redevelopment Agency for legally required payments to the
Supplemental Educational Revenue Augmentation Fund (SERAF) for Fiscal Years 2009-
2010 and 2010-2011. As of June 30, 2024, the outstanding balance was $535,731.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 16 RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A. Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment
by grantor agencies. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already collected, may
constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that may
be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this timg, although the City
expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. K

. Successor Agency

2023 (and subsequent years in which the SuccessopAge is T operation) are subject

Deductions (expenses) incurred by the Successor Agen‘ﬁ ear ended June 30,
: i

to review by various State agencies and the Cgli h the Successor Agency
resides. If any expenses incurred by the SuccessORA are disallowed by the State
agencies or County, the City, acting as the SuccesSe@Agency could be liable for the

repayment of the disallowed costs from either§its own funds or by the State withholding

remittances normally paid to the City. T
disallowed by the State agencies or Co
the Successor Agency expects such

NOTE 17 RESTATEMENT ’S
Net Position and Fund Bala of*July 1, 2023 were restated as follows:
Other
’ Governmental Business-Type Harbor Tidelands  Harbor Uplands Wastewater General Intergovernmental
Activities Activities Enterprise Fund _Enterprise Fund_ Enterprise Fund Fund Grants
Net Position/Fund Balance - Beginning ar, a!
Previously Reported, July 1, 2023 $ 54,191,573 § 82449722 § 24411236 $ 23,056,218 $ 33,700,013 § 33,188,418 $ (6,053,354)
Increase(Decrease) in Net Position/Fun ce
S

Correction of an Error:
Capitalized Habor Dreadi pditire - (490,188) (490,188)
Construction in Progress [Repqutéd In M€orrect Opinion Unit (575,200) 575,200
Modified Approach Infi ure Rgporting (5,428,943)
Reimbursement. d gra e

S
Writg pcol e developer receivable - Marine Ave. (1,246,492)

575,200

251,307
(1,246,492)

unt, if any, of expenses that may be
t be determined at this time, although
y, to be immaterial.

(251,307)

A. Correction of an Error in Previously Issued Financial Statements

T accodnting tre nt for 3rd party managed leases
on/Fund B; ce - Be ing of Year, as
Restated, J) ,2023 $ 46940938 _$ 82534734 _§ 23921048 _$ 23056218 _$ 34275213 _$ 32193233 _$ 6.304.66

During fiscal year 2024, the City determined that certain harbor dreading expenditures
incurred as maintenance to restore navigation depth rather than improvement or
enhancements were erroneously capitalized in prior periods. Therefore, the business-type
activities and Harbor Tidelands Enterprise Fund’s capital assets were overstated by
approximately $490,000 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023 and is presented as a
correction of an error in the Habor Tidelands Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

Changes in Net Position and in the Statement of Activities
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 17 RESTATEMENT (CONTINUED)

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the City identified a classification error in the
financial statement presentation of capital improvement expenditures. Although $575,200 in
expenditures were properly expensed in the correct fund, they were erroneously reported
under the wrong opinion unit in the financial statements. As a result, Business-Type
Activities and the Wastewater Enterprise Fund were understated, while Governmental
Activities were overstated by the same amount as of June 30, 2023.

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the City of Redon
comprehensive review of its capital asset reporting under the
infrastructure assets, specifically its Streets Pavement System. Ag
City identified several infrastructure projects previously capite
progress (CIP) that were determined to be preservation an
the criteria of the modified approach. In accordang i
infrastructure assets reported under the modified
expenditures that preserve or maintain these assets
incurred rather than capitalized. As a result, a pri
remove capitalized costs from beginning bal
cumulative effect of this adjustment resulte
governmental activities as of July 1, 2023 bywapproximately $5.4 million. The adjustment did
not impact total fund balances but c the{classification of infrastructure-related
expenditures to align with the City’s modifi roach policy.

ach conducted a
approach for
is review, the

construction in

nce activities under

Statement No. 34,

e not depreciated, and

be expensed in the period

=h

ces of governmental activities. The
ecrease to beginning net position of

The City recorded a prior pegriodyiadj ent to correct the classification of certain grant
expenditures. The City conduc omprehensive review of their other intergovernmental
grants fund during the fisca d 2024. The City identified approximately $251,000 in
historical expenditures t n recorded in the Grants fund but were not submitted for
reimbursement durifag grant periods. As the associated grants have been closed
out and no furthefygei ment is expected, the City has reclassified these expenditures
to the General Fundyto“eflect their proper financial reporting. The reclassification did not
affect the total fjovi ntal fund balances but corrected the presentation of expenditures

between th afits Fund and General Fund.
Dug fiS@al year ended June 30, 2024, the City of Redondo Beach reviewed the

fina ctivity associated with the Marine Avenue Hotel project, including the developer-
funde serve account held at Western Alliance Bank. As part of this review, the City
identified*a receivable balance of approximately $1.25 million recorded in prior years as a
developer receivable. Upon further evaluation, it was determined that the developer
drawdowns from the reserve account are unlikely to be repaid, and no formal repayment
obligation exists under the terms of the agreement. Accordingly, the City recorded a prior
period adjustment to eliminate the receivable and restate the beginning fund balance of the
affected governmental fund. This adjustment reflects the City’s reassessment of the nature
of the arrangement, which is now considered a non-recoverable guarantee payment rather
than a reimbursable advance. The adjustment did not impact current year revenues or
expenditures, but corrected the presentation of assets and fund balances to more accurately
reflect the City’s financial position
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE 17 RESTATEMENT (CONTINUED)

During fiscal year 2024, the City conducted a comprehensive review of its lease
management practices related to the Concord lease arrangement. This review revealed that
certain transactions, including cash deposits, receivable balances and tenant deposits that
had not been properly recorded in prior periods.

Specifically, the City had not:
* Recognized a deposit receivable and deposit liability associated with Concord lease
cash deposits.
* Reflected expenditures incurred by the third-party on behalf o
financial records, resulting in an understatement of both experdi

City and its
s and liabilities.

nning fund balances
d Uplands Enterprise
gasePaccounting standards and

As a result, the City recorded a prior period adjustment to ¢
and properly reflect the financial position of both the
funds. These corrections ensure compliance with app
improve the accuracy of the City’s financial reporting.
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

BUDGETARY INFORMATION

Through the budget, the City Council sets the direction of the City, allocates its resources
and establishes its priorities. The Annual Budget assures the efficient and effective uses of
the City's economic resources, as well as establishing that the highest priority objectives are
accomplished.

The Annual Budget serves from July 1 to June 30, and is a ,vehicle that openly

communicates these priorities to the community, businesses, vendogs, loyees and other
public agencies. Additionally, it establishes the foundation of effectivgfiinacial planning by
providing resource planning performance measures and controls it the evaluation
and adjustment of the City's performance.
The City follows these procedures in establishing the &Ia reflected in the basic
financial statements:
1. The City Council approves each year's budget sub by the City Manager prior to
the beginning of the new fiscal year.
2. The City Council's policy is to adopt an afin e-item budget for the general, special
revenue, debt service, and capital project§)funds.
Public hearings are conducted prior{fo j ption by the Council.
Supplemental appropriations, ed during the period, are also approved by the
Council. Intradepartmenta t chlanges are approved by the City Manager.

5. Expenditures may not e
level of control.
2

opriations at the departmental level, which is the legal

Encumbrance ac gyunder which purchase orders, contracts, and other commitments
for the expenditu% ies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation, i d as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the general,
special reve ebi service, and capital projects funds. Unexpended and unencumbered
appropiiati o) se governmental funds automatically lapse at the end of the fiscal year.
@ cegyoutstanding at year-end are reported with restricted, committed, assigned,

assigned fund balances. They do not constitute expenditures or estimated
liabilitieég, Budgets were legally adopted for all governmental funds with the exception of the
Parking "Authority Debt Service Fund, the Pier Parking Structure Rehabilitation Capital
Projects Fund, and Major Facilities Reconstruction Capital Projects Fund.

The following are the budget comparison schedules for General Fund, Other
Intergovernmental Grants Special Revenue Fund and Low-Mod Income Housing Special
Revenue Fund.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

NOTE1 BUDGETARY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, the following departments have excess
expenditures over appropriations:

Excess on
Expenditure
Over
Expenditures Appropriati Appropriations
General Fund:
Police $ 43,713,755 $ 42,922 791,612
Financial Services 5,049,343 3,108, 1,941,030
Low-Mod Income Housing:
Cultural and Leisure Services 279,000 279,000
Gas Tax:
Public Works 1,462,19 437,396 24,799
Street Landscaping and Lighting District
Public Works 2,548,429 2,527,908 20,521
Housing Authority:
Housing and Community
Development 015,8 7,702,744 1,313,081
Capital Improvement Projects
Public Works 54 145,556 4,098
Open Space Acquisition
General Government * 3,937 - 3,937
Public Financing Authority
Housing and Community \
295,562 273,975 21,587

Deveopment@\\®
Qﬁ
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

GENERAL FUND

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year, As Restated

Resources (Inflows):
Taxes
Interdepartmental
Licenses and Permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for Services
Use of Money and Property
Fines and Forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Transfers In
Subscription Financing
Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
General Government:
Mayor and City Council
City Clerk
City Treasurer
City Attorney
City Manager
Human Resources
Financial Services
Public Safety:
Police
Fire
Housing and Community Development:
Community Development
Waterfront and Economic Development
Cultural and Leisure Services: 2™
Community Services
Library
Public Works
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement
Interest and Fiscal
Transfers Out
Total Charges

N\

riations

Budgetary Fund Balance - En Year

Variance with

(103)

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 32,193,233 $ 32,193,233 $ 32,193,233 $ -
76,464,074 77,079,429 80,645,193 3,565,764
8,747,688 13,809,642 13,821,750 12,108
2,372,809 2,412,453 (26,224)
160,000 160,000 26,830
9,362,827 8,705,866 1,372,730
3,155,630 3,243,743 2,021,558
1,446,200 1,312,392 (81,833)
3,141,822 3,033,578 156,330
- 1,770,345 (117,166)

- 619,252 619,252
137,044,283 14 151,270,030 7,549,349
820,932 853, 729,054 124,125
1,468,677 1,507,462 1,078,182 429,280
385,677 413,782 320,400 93,382
,388,105 3,962,674 425,431

225,122 1,097,458 127,664

,616,791 2,255,398 1,361,393
3,108,313 5,049,343 (1,941,030)
42,922,143 43,713,755 (791,612)

19,416,662 18,897,115 519,547

\ 3,852,048 3,713,844 3,174,082 539,762
329,109 295,089 279,379 15,710
7,593,004 7,862,393 7,630,688 231,705
4,676,050 4,493,998 4,388,799 105,199
9,085,823 8,489,532 7,608,906 880,626
1,147,000 4,465,330 235,704 4,229,626
773,014 - 593,041 (593,041)
- - 15,322 (15,322)

- 14,857,972 13,973,838 884,134
108,842,727 121,629,717 115,003,138 6,626,579
$ 28,201,556 $ 22,090,964 $ 36,266,892 3 14,175,928
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

OTHER INTERGOVERNMENTAL GRANTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year, As Restated

Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental
Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

General Government
Public Safety
Public Works
Capital Outlay
Debt Service:

Principal Retirement

Interest and Fiscal Charges

Total Charges to Appropriations

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ (6,304,661) (6,304,661) $ (6,304,661) $ -
12,823,248 15,953,758 10,292,835 (5,660,923)
6,518,587 9,649,097 3,988,174 (5,660,923)
40,588 1,547,701 7 4 792,953

278,380 913,650 91, 522,129

78,410 358,346 ,126 28,220
11,506,458 39,319,695 77,283 30,142,412
- 58,989 (58,989)
- 8,754 (8.754)

11,903,836 10,721,421 31,417,971
$ (5,385,249) 3 (6.733247) _$ _ (37.078,894)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LOW-MOD INCOME HOUSING
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 3,497,714 $ 3,497,714 $ 3,497,714 $ -
Resources (Inflows):

Use of Money and Property - - 54,897 54,897
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Housing and Community Development 150,000 261,826 221,667

Cultural and Leisure Services - - (279,000)

Total Charges to Appropriations 150,000 261,826 (57,333)

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 3,347,714 3 3,235,888 3 112,230
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 3,441,839 $ 3,349,243  $ 3,267,559 $ 3,426,450 $ 3,397,192
Interest 16,219,473 15,836,385 15,785,975 15,398,568 14,990,021
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience (707,830) (3,768,503) (1,273,036) (1,088,566) 4,185,447
Changes of Benefit Terms 339,225 - - - -
Changes of Assumptions - 6,057,682 - - -
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (13,567,007) (13,055,631) (12,251,572) (11,856,917) (11,341,781)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 5,725,700 8,419,176 5,528,926 5,879,535 11,230,879
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 240,496,017 232,076,841 226,547,915 209,437,501
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 246,221,717 240,496,017 232,076,841 220,668,380
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 2,014,388 70,759,414 6,313,61 5,141,337
Contributions - Employee 1,571,290 1,393,334 1,370,9, 1,461,551
Plan to Plan Resource Movement (14,324) - - -
Net Investment Income 13,829,787 (18,874,022) 7,811,724 9,905,031
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (13,567,007) (11,856,917) (11,341,781)
Administrative Expense (170,814) (222,338) (108,939)
Other Miscellaneous Income (Expense) - - 355
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 3,663,320 3,115,543 5,057,554
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 232,288,394 157,714,145 152,656,591
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 235,951,714 192,185,019 160,829,688 157,714,145

Plan Net Pension Liability (Assets) -

Ending (a) - (b) $ 10,270,003 $ 39891822 _$ 65718227 _$ 62,954,235

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the

Total Pension Liability 82.81% 70.99% 71.47%
Covered Payroll $ 26,9 $ 18792136 $ 19,503,029 $ 20,914,206 $ 21,343,149
Plan Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll .55% 43.68% 204.54% 314.23% 294.96%

L 4
Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:

The figures above generally inclu liaBility impact that may have resulted from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or

before the Measurement Date. ers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred

after the Valuation Date are n cl N the figures above, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

In 2022, SB 1168 i he dard retiree lump sum death benefit from $500 to $2,000 for any death occurring on or after July

s included in the changes of benefit terms.

Changes of Assumptions:
There were no assumption changes for measurement date 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022 measurement
date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS
took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all
asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term.
The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition, demographic
assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of
Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement
dates 2015 through 2016, and 7.50% for measurement date 2014.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (CONTINUED)
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 3,370,814  § 3,296,064 $ 2,658,781  $ 2,537,587 $ 2,874,216
Interest 14,225,068 13,844,417 13,391,115 12,947,817 12,419,054
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience (291,950) 808,043 (717,631) (58,913) -
Changes of Benefit Terms - - - - -
Changes of Assumptions (1,050,285) 11,132,579 - (3,072,251) -
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (10,849,928) (10,173,782) (9,282,593) (8,784,656) (7,872,679)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 5,403,719 18,907,321 6,049,672 3,569,584 7,420,591
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 204,033,782 185,126,461 179,076,789 168,086,614
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 209,437,501 204,033,782 185,126,461 175,507,205
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 4,408,505 4,018,170 3,517,59 2,678,754
Contributions - Employee 1,456,828 1,404,270 1,361, 1,301,991
Plan to Plan Resource Movement (355) - 4 -
Net Investment Income 12,226,183 14,967,632 7,656 3,161,165 21,314,935
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (10,849,928) (10,173,78, 2,598) (8,784,656) (7,872,679)
Administrative Expense (227,625) (200,8: 5,184) (158,175) -
Other Miscellaneous Income (Expense) (432,265) - - - -
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 6,581,343 10,015,407 ,713,338) (1,712,785) 17,423,001
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 146,075,248 9,773,179 141,485,964 124,062,963
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 152,656,591 136,059,841 139,773,179 141,485,964
Plan Net Pension Liability (Assets) -
Ending (a) - (b) $ 56,780,910 $ 49066620 _$ 39303610 _$ 34021241
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability 8 73.50% 78.05% 80.62%
Covered Payroll & 156,7 $ 19,613,902 $ 19,222,807 $ 17,124,613  $ 17,538,911
Plan Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 1.70% 295.50% 255.25% 229.52% 193.98%

) 2

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:

The figures above generally inclu I
before the Measurement Date.

after the Valuation Date are n c

ility impact that may have resulted from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or
ers of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred
the figures above, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

Changes of Assumptions:
There were no assumption changes for measurement date 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022 measurement
date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS
took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all
asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term.
The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition, demographic
assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of
Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement
dates 2015 through 2016, and 7.50% for measurement date 2014.
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MISCELLANEOUS PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS

AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll

Notes to Schedule - 2024:
Valuation Date:

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method
Assets Valuation Method
Discount Rate

Projected Salary Increases
Inflation
Payroll Growth

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
$ 2,347,150 $ 1,995,492 $ 6,865,116 $ 5,895,512
(2,347,150) (1,995,492) (70,759,414) (6,314,575) (5,895,512)
3 - 3 - _$ (63.894,298) _$ -
$ 21,519,482 $ 20,726,906 $ 18,792,136 $ 1 20,914,206
10.91% 9.63% 376.54% 28.19%
June 30, 2021 &

Entry Age Norma 2thod
Level percentage o yroll, closed
Fair Value ssets
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS (CONTINUED)
MISCELLANEOUS PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year
Actuarially Determined Contribution

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contributions

Contribution Deficiency (Excess)
Covered Payroll

Contributions as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
$ 5140690 $ 4399141 § 401805 $ 3,517,053 § 2,783,258
(5,140,690) (4,399,141) (4,018,056) (3,517,053) (2,783,258)
$ - 3 - $ - 3 - 3
$ 21,343,149 $ 20,156,748 $ 19,613,902 $ 2,807 $ 17,124,613
24.09% 21.82% 20.49% 8.30% 16.25%

Q\
‘2@

O
\
&

QY
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
SAFETY PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN

AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 6,407,011 $ 6,249,142  § 5,458,828 § 5,883,763 § 5,753,947
Interest 28,719,706 27,763,771 27,413,478 26,796,647 25,990,861
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 4,346,921 (1,796,249) (1,214,915) 968,299 9,616,039
Changes of Benefit Terms 168,350 - - - -
Changes of Assumptions - 11,089,291 - - -
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (25,555,133) (23,950,891) (23,233,659) (22,018,409) (20,998,140)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 14,086,855 19,355,064 8,423,732 11,630,300 20,362,707
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 421,286,399 401,931,335 393,507,603 361,514,596
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 435,373,254 421,286,399 401,931,335 381,877,303
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 4,682,522 155,865,005 12,912,30 10,499,397
Contributions - Employee 2,209,903 1,976,975 1,789,9, 1,753,382
Plan to Plan Resource Movement 14,324 - - -
Net Investment Income 23,582,718 (32,498,996) 564 12,249,408 15,582,752
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (25,555,133) (23,950,89 ,688) (22,018,409) (20,998,140)
Administrative Expense (293,183) (185,31 ,533) (347,134) (170,963)
Other Miscellaneous Income (Expense) - - - - 559
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 4,641,151 101,206,775 91,785 3,560,737 6,666,987
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 398,696,709 9,798,149 246,237,412 239,570,425
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 403,337,860 297,489,934 249,798,149 246,237,412
Plan Net Pension Liability (Assets) -
Ending (a) - (b) $ 32035394 $ 104441401 $ 143709454 _$ 135639891

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the
Total Pension Liability

Covered Payroll

Plan Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage

Notes to Schedule:

Benefit Changes:
The figures above generally include

before the Measurement Date. Howeve
after the Valuation Date are not in

In 2022, SB 1168 increased sta
1, 2023. The impact, i

Changes of Assump
There were no assump
date), the accounting disc

64%
L 2 @ss

pact that may have resulted from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or
of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred
figures above, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.

15,212,797

74.02%

$ 18,079,966

63.48%

$ 18,508,977

64.48%

$ 18,388,027

etiree lump sum death benefit from $500 to $2,000 for any death occurring on or after July
i ded in the changes of benefit terms.

changes for measurement date 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022 measurement
t rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS

took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all
asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term.
The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition, demographic
assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of
Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement
dates 2015 through 2016, and 7.50% for measurement date 2014.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (CONTINUED)
SAFETY PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost $ 5,468,356  $ 5065945 $ 4,352,710 % 4,369,526 $ 4,500,890
Interest 24,611,566 23,940,703 23,438,824 22,764,197 21,930,219
Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience 817,752 (493,558) (769,075) 854,509 -
Changes of Benefit Terms - - - - -
Changes of Assumptions (1,235,646) 19,087,843 - (5,276,514) -
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (20,097,705) (18,716,805) (17,877,775) (17,197,393) (16,352,903)
Net Change in Total Pension Liability 9,564,323 28,884,128 9,144,684 5,514,325 10,078,206
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 351,950,273 323,066,145 313,921,461 298,328,930
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) 361,514,596 351,950,273 323,066,145 308,407,136
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 9,310,708 8,431,955 7,448,334 5,790,913
Contributions - Employee 1,887,216 1,592,490 1,457,23 , 2,003,854
Plan to Plan Resource Movement (559) - (2,745) -
Net Investment Income 19,399,983 23,744,382 1, 020 5,030,896 34,672,500
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of
Employee Contributions (20,097,705) (18,716,805 7 (17,197,393) (16,352,903)
Administrative Expense (358,575) (317,989 ,109) (251,346) -
Other Miscellaneous Income (Expense) (680,940) - - - -
Net Change in Fiduciary Net Position 9,460,128 14,734,033 5,831) (4,529,416) 26,114,364
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 230,110,297 23,332,095 227,861,511 201,747,147
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 239,570,425 215,376,264 223,332,095 227,861,511

Plan Net Pension Liability (Assets) -

Ending (a) - (b) $ 121944171 $ 107.689.881 $ 90589366 _$ 80,545,625

Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the

Total Pension Liability 66,27 66.67% 71.14% 73.88%

Covered Payroll » 94 $ 16,424,748  $ 15,770,385  $ 15,122,058  $ 14,418,451

1 2,
Plan Net Pension Liability (Asset) as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 72% 741.81% 682.86% 599.05% 558.63%
Notes to Schedule: *
Benefit Changes:
anydiabi

The figures above generally include impact that may have resulted from voluntary benefit changes that occurred on or

before the Measurement Date. H rs of Two Years Additional Service Credit (a.k.a. Golden Handshakes) that occurred

after the Valuation Date are not the figures above, unless the liability impact is deemed to be material by the plan actuary.
h
incl

tandard retiree lump sum death benefit from $500 to $2,000 for any death occurring on or after July
d in the changes of benefit terms.

In 2022, SB 1168 incregse
1, 2023. The impac

Changes of Assumptio
There were no assumptio anges for measurement date 2023. Effective with the June 30, 2021 valuation date (2022 measurement

date), the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.15% to 6.90%. In determining the long-term expected rate of return, CalPERS
took into account long-term market return expectations as well as the expected pension fund cash flows. Projected returns for all
asset classes are estimated, combined with risk estimates, and are used to project compound (geometric) returns over the long term.
The discount rate used to discount liabilities was informed by the long-term projected portfolio return. In addition, demographic
assumptions and the inflation rate assumption were changed in accordance with the 2021 CalPERS Experience Study and Review of
Actuarial Assumptions. The accounting discount rate was 7.15% for measurement dates 2017 through 2021, 7.65% for measurement
dates 2015 through 2016, and 7.50% for measurement date 2014.

(111)

129



CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS
SAFETY PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 4979714  $ 4682522 $ 14,283,371 $ 12,915,506 $ 11,860,372
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contributions (4,979,714) (4,682,522) (155,865,005) (12,915,506) (11,860,372)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ - 3 - _$ (141581634) _$ -3 -
Covered Payroll $ 18,160,046 $ 16,696,199 $§ 15,212,797  $ 8,079,966 $ 18,508,977

Contributions as a Percentage
of Covered Payroll 27.42% 28.05% 1024.57% 7 64.08%

Notes to Schedule- 2024:

Valuation Date: June 30, 2021

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine Contribution Rates:
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Nor thod
Amortization Method Level percentage ofjpayroll, closed
Assets Valuation Method Fair Value &f Assets

Discount Rate 6.90%
Projected Salary Increases Va
Inflation

Payroll Growth

investments and administrative expenses)
ge and Service
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF PLAN CONTRIBUTIONS (CONTINUED)
SAFETY PLAN — AGENT MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER PLAN
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

Fiscal Year 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 10,498,710 $ 9,310,585 $ 8,431,955 § 7,448335 $ 6,493,477
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contributions (10,498,710) (9,310,585) (8,431,955) (7,448,335) (6,493,477)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ -8 -8 - % - %
Covered Payroll $ 18,388,027 $ 17,552,942  $ 16,424,748  $ 5,770,385 $ 15,122,058
Contributions as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 57.10% 53.04% 51.34% 42.94%

>
Q\
‘Z>
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Fiscal Year 2024 2023 2022 2021
Total OPEB Liability:
Service Cost $ 752,978 $ 732,825 $ 869,592 $ 854,481
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 1,382,435 1,351,025 1,620,655 1,592,234
Difference Between Expected and Actual
Experience 545,675 - (3,732,173) -
Changes in Assumptions 575,958 - 700,641 (359,831)
Changes in Benefit Terms - - -
Benefit Payments (1,513,984) (1,688,875) (1,741,685) (1,620,198)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability 1,743,062 394,975 (2,282,970) 466,686
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 22,122,970 21,727,995 24,010,965 23,544,279
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) 23,866,032 22,122,970 24,010,965
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 1,822,393 2,024,400 2,214,831
Net Investment Income 765,828 (1,612,311) 300,557
Benefit Payments (1,513,984) (1,688,875) (1,620,198)
Administrative Expense (9,436) (9,132)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,064,801 1, 886,058
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 9,133,983 10,448 6,841,221
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 10,198,784 3 7,727,279
Plan OPEB Liability (Assets) - Ending (a) - (b) $ 13,667,248 _$ 12,988, _ 11,309,443 $ 16,283,686
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 42.73% 41.29% 47.95% 32.18%

Total OPEB Liability

Covered Payroll $ 37,783,818 $ 37,142,464 $ 38,202,693
Plan OPEB Liability (Asset) as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 34.38% 30.45% 42.62%

periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018

(1) Historical information is required only for the’
ation will be displayed up to ten years as information becomes

was the first year of implementation. Future yea
available.

Notes to Schedule: None L 3
Changes of Assumptions:

Updated medical trend assumption made for measurement date June 30, 2023. The discount rate was updated based
on newer capital market ass @ of measurement date June 30, 2022. ACA excise tax was removed as of
‘i" disc

measurement date June 30 ount rate was changed from 6.75 percent to 6.25 percent for the measurement
period ended June 3
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS (CONTINUED)
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Fiscal Year 2020 2019 2018
Total OPEB Liability:
Service Cost $ 911,766 $ 885,210 $ 560,000
Interest on the Total OPEB Liability 1,635,748 1,581,920 1,521,000
Difference Between Expected and Actual
Experience (147,110) - (3,502,000)
Changes in Assumptions (1,415,841) - 2,900,000
Changes in Benefit Terms - - 2,593,000
Benefit Payments (1,523,667) (1,868,747) (2,002,000)
Net Change in Total OPEB Liability (539,104) 598,383 2,070,000
Total OPEB Liability - Beginning 24,083,383 23,485,000 21,415,000
Total OPEB Liability - Ending (a) 23,544,279 24,083,383 234

Plan Fiduciary Net Position:

Contributions - Employer 2,217,998 2,191,008
Net Investment Income 497,289 469,710
Benefit Payments (1,523,667) (1,868,747)

Administrative Expense (5,691)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 1,185,929
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 5,655,292 4, 4,818,000
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) 6,841,221 4,873,000
Plan OPEB Liability (Assets) - Ending (a) - (b) $ 16,703,058 3 18,428 09 3 18,612,000
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the 29.06% 23.48% 20.75%

Total OPEB Liability

Covered Payroll $ 36,708,000 $ 35,816,000
Plan OPEB Liability (Asset) as a Percentage

of Covered Payroll 50.20% 51.97%

periods for which GASB 75 is applicable. Fiscal Year 2018

(1) Historical information is required only for the’
ation will be displayed up to ten years as information becomes

was the first year of implementation. Future yea
available.

Notes to Schedule: None L 3
Changes of Assumptions:

Updated medical trend assumption made for measurement date June 30, 2023. The discount rate was updated based
on newer capital market ass @ of measurement date June 30, 2022. ACA excise tax was removed as of
‘i" disc

measurement date June 30 ount rate was changed from 6.75 percent to 6.25 percent for the measurement
period ended June 3
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Fiscal Year 2024 2023 2022 2021
Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 1,970,280 $ 1,822,393 $ 2,024,144 $ 1,975,728
Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contributions (1,970,280) (1,822,393) (2,024,144) (1,975,728)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 3 - 3 - $ - $ -
Covered Payroll $ 43,856,027 $ 40,375,037 $ 37,783,818 $ 37,142,464
Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 4.49% 4.51% 586Y% 5.32%
(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is ica iscal Year 2018
was the first year of implementation. Future years’ information will be displayed up to te rsas, information becomes
available.

Methods and Assumptions Used to Determine 2024 Contribution Rates:

Valuation Date June 30, 2021

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Norl

Amortization Valuation Method Level percent of p

Amortization Valuation Period ge remaining fixed period for 2023/24

Assets Valuation Method

Discount Rate

Inflation .
Mortality alPERS 2000-2019 Experience Study
Mortality Improvement ortality projected fully generational with Scale MP-2021

Qﬁ
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS (CONTINUED)
AS OF JUNE 30, FOR THE LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS (1)

Fiscal Year 2020 2019 2018

Actuarially Determined Contribution $ 2,214,831 $ 2,217,998 $ 1,802,000

Contribution in Relation to the Actuarially

Determined Contributions (2,214,831) (2,217,998) (705,000)

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 3 - $ - $ 1,097.000

Covered Payroll $ 32,202,693 $ 38,823,317 $ 36,708,000

Contributions as a Percentage of Covered Payroll 6.88% 5.71% 1

(1) Historical information is required only for the measurement periods for which GASB 75 is &iscal Year 2018
was the first year of implementation. Future years’ information will be displayed up to te rsas, information becomes
available.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY STREETS INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34, the City is required to account for and report infrastructure
capital assets. GASB Statement No. 34 defines infrastructure assets as "long-lived capital assets that
are stationary in nature and normally can be preserved for a significantly greater number of years than
most capital assets..." Major infrastructure systems include the street system, storm water system,
sewer system, and ftraffic control system. Each major infrastructure system can be divided into
subsystems. For example, the street system can be divided into concrete and asphalt pavements,
concrete curb and gutters, sidewalks, medians, etc. Subsystem detail is not presented in these basic
financial statements; however, the City maintains detailed information on these subsystems.

The City has elected to use the "Modified Approach" as defined by GASB gSiat t No. 34 for
infrastructure reporting for its Streets Pavement System. Under GASB Siatemeémt No. 34, eligible
infrastructure capital assets are not required to be depreciated under the foll@wi quirements:

¢ The City manages the eligible infrastructure capital assets using
characteristics of (1) an up-to-date inventory; (2) condition
using a measurement scale; and (3) estimated annual amou
an established condition assessment level.

t management system with
2nts’ which summarize results
ted to maintain and preserve

o The City documents that the eligible infrastructure c ets are being preserved approximately
at or above the established and disclosed condition‘@ssessment level.

The City commissioned a physical assessment of conditions as of June 30, 2020. The study
assisted the City by providing inspection da e evaluate pavement condition. This helped to
establish a City-defined target level of4pa ent§performance, while optimizing the expenditure of
limited fiscal resources. The entire pavemént network within the City is composed of approximately 125

centerline miles of paved surfaces. Tj i street system can be grouped by function class as
follows: 22 centerline miles of art 5%@enterline miles of collector, and 98 centerline miles of
residential.

In May 2020, a physical as \f\of all pavement segments was conducted to assess the existing
surface condition of eac individual pavement segments based on the ASTEM D6433-11

standards for Pavem&a ion Index (PCI). The PCI method only looks at distresses in the
Ci
en

pavement since treets are structurally adequate and have speed limits less than 45 mph.
Evaluating thedp sed on PCl is a widely used standard in the United States, internationally,
and commonly by adjacent cities. This change allows the City to easily compare street conditions
with comparable ad@jacent cities.

Upon completion of the study, the PCI was calculated for each segment in the City's pavement network
to reflect the overall pavement condition. Ratings range from 0 to 100. A newly constructed street will
have a PCI of 100, while a failed street will have a PCIl of 25 or less. The pavement condition is
primarily affected by the climate, traffic loads and volumes, construction materials and age. During the
year, the comprehensive survey is updated to reflect the pavement's current condition.

(118)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY STREETS INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

The following conditions were defined:

Condition Rating
Very Good 70-100
Good 50-69
Poor 25-49
Very Poor 0-24

In line with the Capital Improvement Program and as presented to City Counci
City policy is to achieve a citywide average rating of 75 PCI, by fiscal year
allows minor cracking and raveling of the pavement along with minor r
noticeable to drivers traveling at posted speeds.

The condition assessments for the most recent years since implem

ti

ar

anuary 16, 2018,
028. This rating
S at could be

follows:

Year PQI Rate Conditio % of Streets
2021 70 PCI Very Good 52%
Go 34%
Po 13%
r 1%
2022 69 PCI y Gog 49%
od 34%
Poor 16%
ery Poor 1%
2023 68 PCI ¢ Very Good 49%
\ Good 35%
Poor 16%
. Very Poor 0%
2024 Very Good 47%
Good 36%
Poor 17%
Very Poor 0%

The City ex $10,751,702 on street improvement projects for the fiscal year ended

June 30, 2024.
delayed deteriorati

$5,780,000.

(119)

e capital improvements expenditures enhanced the condition of many streets and
on others. The estimated expenditures required to maintain and improve
the overall condition of the streets from July 1, 2024 through June 30, 2025 is a minimum of
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY STREETS INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

A schedule of budget versus actual for the most recent years since implementation, which preserved
City streets at the current 68 PCI rating, is presented in the following:

Funded by
Capital

Improvement Funded by Total
Fiscal Year Final Budget Project Fund Other Funds Expenditures
2015-2016 $ 18,316,725 $ 349,942 $ 2,225,322 $
2016-2017 18,181,254 426,308 2,176,521
2017-2018 25,410,860 2,277,323 3,029,105 ,
2018-2019 28,101,756 858,836 1,567,341 2 47¢
2019-2020 25,722,992 983,290 5,101,794 :
2020-2021 25,883,121 1,303,631 3,707,000 Q €
2021-2022 35,923,606 1,329,143 2,556,4 85,545
2022-2023 40,322,463 2,107,750 12,428, 14,536,314
2023-2024 41,159,539 1,720,311 9,031,39 0,751,702
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As of June 30, 2023, 50% of City streets were rated below the targeted average condition level of 75
PCI. However, as noted above, the City is investing in these infrastructure assets as part of the five-
year Capital Improvement Program and will continue to rehabilitate and maintain its streets in order to

achieve this goal.

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
MODIFIED APPROACH FOR CITY STREETS INFRASTRUCTURE CAPITAL ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

General Fund Other Fund Total

Project Project # Budget Expenditures Expenditures Expenditures
Residential Street Rehabilitation 40190 $ 2,999,885 § 141,530 $ 223,378 $ 364,908
Citywide Curb Ramp Improvements 40399 385,504 - 148,283 148,283
Traffic Calming Project 40470 1,145,190 81,079 143,504
Bicycle Trans Plan Implementation 40510 772,469 - 36,619
Artesia/Aviation NB Rt Turn Lane 40780 1,795,175 - 261,989
PCH Study Recommendations 40800 2,037,111 - -
Kingsdale Resurfacing- 182nd/Grant Ave 40880 1,921,047 - 60,747
Bike Plan Grant - Beryl St. Bike Lanes 40940 136,829 - - -
Bike Plan Grant - N Catalina Bikelane 40941 414,370 - -
Bike Plan Grant - S Catalina/l Bikelane 40942 44,640 - -
Bike Plan Grant - Lilienthal Bikelane 40943 282,525 - - -
Bike Plan Grant - Torrance Blvd Bike Lane 40944 215,790 -
Bike Plan Grant - Citywide Bike Facilities 40945 853,340 - -
Inglewood at MBB Rt Turn Lane Feasibility 40960 2,736,911 - 153,945 153,945
Torrance Blvd & Francisca Traffic Signal Mod 41070 4,272 - 1,797 1,797
Artesia Blvd Improvements - Phase 1 41080 169,943 10,085 - 10,085
Grant Ave Signal Improvements 41090 262,471 216,441 478,912
Median Reno - PV Blvd/Prospect/MBB 41110 - - -
Beryl Resurfacing & Drainage - Prospect to Flag 41130 - 214 214
Citywide Slurry Seal Program 41140 385,601 339,520 725,121
Kingsdale Avenue Widening 41150 - 214,063 214,063
Manhattan Beach Boulevard Resurfacing 41160 - 970,363 970,363
Citywide Striping 41180 - 159,561 159,561
Artesia Blvd Resurfacing - Harper to Hawthorne ‘1 19 - - -
Citywide Traffic Signal Upgrades 41200 296,239 - 87,224 87,224
Torrance Blvd Resurfacing - PCH to Prospect 2,278,962 - 1,933,288 1,933,288
Anita/Herondo & PCH WB RT Turn Lane 2,500,000 - 176,328 176,328
NRB Bikeway Ext - Felton to Inglewood 1,000,000 - 723 723
NRB Bikeway Ext - Inglewood Design 1,735,000 - 1,492,155 1,492,155
Sidewalk Improvements & Repairs ’ 443,599 346,441 - 346,441
Traffic Signal Comm & Network System 4,628,641 - 2,408,911 2,408,911
Dow/Vail/Johnston Bicylce Implementaiton Pla 143,500 - - -
Residential Street Reconstruction-Deferre: intel 750,000 - - -
Riviera Village Sidewalk Pavers 535,680 26,592 - 26,592
Artesia Intesection Safety Implementatio 380,825 - 83,417 83,417
Grant Ave Bulb-outs 375,000 375,000 - 375,000
Grant Ave Flash Crosswa 75,000 75,000 - 75,000
Alleyway Resurfacing w 565,000 - - -
Avenue | Resurfacing 68,206 16,512 - 16,512
Pave Emerald Between a to Lucia 311,472 -

Total

(121)

$ 41159539 _$ 1,720,311

$ 9,031,391 $ 10,751,702
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Parks and Narcotic
Recreation Seizure /
State Gas Tax Facilities Forfeiture

Proposition A

ASSETS

Pooled Cash and Investments $ 4,339,967 $ 126,843 $ 88,889
Receivables:

Accounts 2,608 -

Taxes 163,847 - -

Accrued Interest 20,289 -

Notes and Loans - - -

Leases -
Due from Other Governments 315,909
Due from Other Funds - -
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents - -

$ 2,395,331

Total Assets $ 4,842,620 126,843 $ 111,757

$ 2413413

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds

$ - $ 13,229

Total Liabilities - 13,229

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues L 2 - - .

Deferred Leases Related ltems - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resour: - - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Housing and Com opment - 126,843 -
Public Safety - - 98,528
Public Works 4,343,072 - -
Debt Service - - -
Low and Moderate Incomie Housing - - -
Assigned to:
Capital Projects - - -
Unassigned

2,413,413

Total Fund Balances 4,343,072 126,843 98,528

2,413,413

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 4,842,620 $ 126,843 $ 111,757

$ 2413413

(123)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Local
Transportation Air Quality
Proposition C Measure R Article 3 Improvement

ASSETS

Pooled Cash and Investments $ 4,109,221 $ 2,346,190 $ - $ 316,587
Receivables: \

Accounts - -

Taxes -

Accrued Interest 22,219 2,704 - 1,495

Notes and Loans - - - -

Leases - - - -
Due from Other Governments - - -
Due from Other Funds - - -
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents - - -

Total Assets $ 4131440 348,894 $ - $ 318,082

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

$ 89,149 $ $ 912

89,149 73,332 912

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues L 2 - - - .

Deferred Leases Related Items - - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resour: - - - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Housing and Com evelopment 3,770,737 2,259,745 - 317,170
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Debt Service - - - -
Low and Moderate Income Housing - - - -
Assigned to:
Capital Projects - -

Unassigned - - -
Total Fund Balances 3,770,737 2,259,745 (73,332) 317,170

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 4,131,440 $ 2,348,894 $ - $ 318,082
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Street
Landscaping Community
Storm Drain and Lighting Development Disaster
Improvement District Block Grant Recovery
ASSETS
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 269,070 $ 206,250 $ 16,848 $ 324,605
Receivables:
Accounts - - -
Taxes - 26,048 - -
Accrued Interest - - - -
Notes and Loans - - 227 -
Leases - - - -
Due from Other Governments - 23,559 -
Due from Other Funds - - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents - - -
Total Assets $ 269,070 232,298 $ 351,634 $ 324,605
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable ’$ - $ 232,298 $ 37,301 $ -
Due to Other Funds - - 25,528 -
Total Liabilities - 232,298 62,829 -
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues L 2 - - 311,230 -
Deferred Leases Related ltems - - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resour - - 311,230 -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Housing and Com evelopment - - - -
Public Safety - - - 324,605
Public Works 269,070 - - -
Debt Service - - - -
Low and Moderate Income Housing - - - -
Assigned to:
Capital Projects - - - -
Unassigned - - (22,425) -
Total Fund Balances 269,070 - (22,425) 324,605
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 269,070 $ 232,298 $ 351,634 $ 324,605
(125)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Housing Subdivision
Authority Park Trust Measure M Measure W
ASSETS
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 2,966,743 $ 3,695,241 $ 2,818,424 $ 731,754
Receivables:
Accounts - 150 -
Taxes - - - -
Accrued Interest - - 3, 3,625
Notes and Loans - - - -
Leases - - - -
Due from Other Governments - - -
Due from Other Funds - - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents - - -
Total Assets $ 2966,743 695,391 $ 2.831,803 $ 735,379

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

$ 387,563 $ 251,630 $ 116,963

387,563 251,630 116,963

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues L 2 - - - .

Deferred Leases Related ltems - - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resour - - - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Housing and Com evelopment - 3,307,828 - -
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - 2,580,173 618,416
Debt Service -
Low and Moderate Income Housing 1,240,604 - - -
Assigned to:
Capital Projects - - - -

Unassigned - - - -
Total Fund Balances 1,240,604 3,307,828 2,580,173 618,416

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 2,966,743 $ 3,695,391 $ 2.831,803 $ 735,379
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Pier Parking Maijor
Improvement Structure Facilities Open Space
Projects Rehabilitation Reconstruction Acquisition
ASSETS
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 4,909,739 $ 831 $ 365,565 $ 1,225,751
Receivables:
Accounts 117,643 - -
Taxes - - - -
Accrued Interest - - - -
Notes and Loans - - - -
Leases - - - -
Due from Other Governments - - -
Due from Other Funds 4,677,893 - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents - - -
Total Assets $ 9,705,275 831 $ 365,565 $ 1,225,751

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES

LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable
Due to Other Funds
Total Liabilities

$ - $ 16,588 $ -

- 16,588 -

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues L 2 - - - .

Deferred Leases Related ltems - - - -
Total Deferred Inflows of Resour - - - -
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Housing and Com evelopment - - - -
Public Safety - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Debt Service - - - -
Low and Moderate Income Housing - - - -
Assigned to:
Capital Projects 9,543,385 831 348,977 1,225,751

Unassigned - - -
Total Fund Balances 9,543,385 831 348,977 1,225,751

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 9,705,275 $ 831 $ 365,565 $  1,225751
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Debt Service Funds

Public Total Other
Financing Parking Governmental
Authority Authority Funds
ASSETS
Pooled Cash and Investments $ 4,580,152 $ 6,442 $ ,840,443
Receivables:
Accounts 5,362 - 763
Taxes - - 89,895
Accrued Interest 2,117 61 617
Notes and Loans - 311,227
Leases 1,027,142 1,027,142
Due from Other Governments 5,374,988 5,736,678
Due from Other Funds 544,986 - 5,222,879
Restricted Assets:
Cash and Investments with Fiscal Agents 55,246 - 55,246
Total Assets 11,589,99 6,503 $ 48,593,890
LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts Payable * ,385 $ - $ 2,190,159
Due to Other Funds 4,962,371 - 6,787,370
Total Liabilities \ ,984,756 - 8,977,529
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenues L 2 - - 311,230
Deferred Leases Related Iltems 1,003,403 - 1,003,403
Total Deferred Inflows of Re C 1,003,403 - 1,314,633
FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:
Housing and i evelopment - - 12,195,736
Public Safet: - - 423,133
Public Works - - 7,810,731
Debt Service 5,601,834 6,503 5,608,337
Low and Moderate ficome Housing - - 1,240,604
Assigned to:
Capital Projects - - 11,118,944
Unassigned - - (95,757)
Total Fund Balances 5,601,834 6,503 38,301,728
Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balances $ 11,589,993 $ 6,503 $ 48,593,890
(128)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Parks and Narcotic
Recreation Seizure /
State Gas Tax Facilities Forfeiture Proposition A
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 3,709,045 - - 1,828,888
Charges for Services - 27,200 -
Use of Money and Property 95,619 - 83,568
Fines and Forfeitures - - -
Miscellaneous 17,825 - - -
Total Revenues 3,822,489 27, 7,570 1,912,456
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government - - -
Public Safety - - 147,004 -
Housing and Community Development - - - -
Cultural and Leisure Services - - - -
Public Works 1,462,195 - - -
Capital Outlay 744 - - -
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - 23,144 -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - 2,211 -
Total Expenditures 06,551 - 172,359 -
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . 1,615,938 27,200 (84,789) 1,912,456
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers Out - - - (2,140,580)
Subscription Financing - - - -
Total Other Finangi ﬁ es) - - - (2,140,580)
NET CHANGE IN F ANC 1,615,938 27,200 (84,789) (228,124)
Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 2,727,134 99,643 183,317 2,641,537
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) - END OF YEAR $ 4.343,072 $ 126,843 $ 98,528 $ 2413413
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Local
Transportation Air Quality
Proposition C Measure R Article 3 Improvement
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 1,517,020 1,137,409 - 74,129
Charges for Services - - -
Use of Money and Property 159,870 64,920 - 9,625
Fines and Forfeitures - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - -
Total Revenues 1,676,890 1,202,329 - 83,754
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government - - -

Public Safety - - - -
Housing and Community Development - - - 48,071
Cultural and Leisure Services - - - -
Public Works - - - -
Capital Outlay 1,634, 7,104 72,425 -

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - - -
Total Expenditures 34,624 737,104 72,425 48,071

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 42,266 465,225 (72,425) 35,683

L 2
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE
Transfers In - - - -

Transfers Out

Subscription Financing - - - -

Total Other Financi urc es) - - - -

NET CHANGE IN F A 42,266 465,225 (72,425) 35,683

Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 3,728,471 1,794,520 (907) 281,487

FUND BALANCES (Deficit) - END OF YEAR $ 3,770,737 $ 2259745 3 (73.332) _$ 317,170
(130)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Street
Landscaping Community
Storm Drain and Lighting Development Disaster
Improvement District Block Grant Recovery
REVENUES
Taxes $ - 5 - 8 $ -
Intergovernmental - - -
Charges for Services 34,655 1,503,280 10
Use of Money and Property - - -
Fines and Forfeitures - - -
Miscellaneous - 3,000 19,788
Total Revenues 34,655 1,506,280 19,798
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government - - -
Public Safety - - 7,511
Housing and Community Development - - 106,014 -
Cultural and Leisure Services - - - -
Public Works - 2,348,429 - -
Capital Outlay - 275,178 -
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - - -
Total Expenditures - 2,548,429 381,192 7,511

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES 34,655 (1,042,149) 4,628 12,287

L 2
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE
Transfers In - 928,829 - -

Transfers Out

Subscription Financing - - - -
Total Other Financi urct es) - 928,829 - -
NET CHANGE IN F A 34,655 (113,320) 4,628 12,287
Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 234,415 113,320 (27,053) 312,318
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) - END OF YEAR $ 269,070 3 - 3 (22,425) _$ 324,605
(131)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Special Revenue Funds

Housing Subdivision
Authority Park Trust Measure M Measure W
REVENUES
Taxes $ - 3 - 3 -3 -
Intergovernmental 8,822,762 - 8 7 715,856
Charges for Services - - -
Use of Money and Property 76,866 - 920047 27,079
Fines and Forfeitures - - - -
Miscellaneous - 700,150 - -
Total Revenues 8,899,628 700,150 6,424 742,935
EXPENDITURES
Current:

General Government - - -

Public Safety - - -
Housing and Community Development 9,015,825 - - -
Cultural and Leisure Services - - - -
Public Works - - - 209,105
Capital Outlay 1,939,884 905,902 751,017

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement - - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - - -
Total Expenditures 15,825 1,139,884 905,902 960,122

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES * (116,197) (439,734) 470,522 (217,187)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE \

Transfers In
Transfers Out - - - -

Subscription Financing - - - -

Total Other Financi urc es) - - - -

NET CHANGE IN F A (116,197) (439,734) 470,522 (217,187)

Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 1,356,801 3,747,562 2,109,651 835,603

FUND BALANCES (Deficit) - END OF YEAR $ 1,240,604 $ 3,307,828 $ 2580173 3 618,416
(132)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Pier Parking Major
Improvement Structure Facilities Open Space
Projects Rehabilitation Reconstruction Acquisition
REVENUES
Taxes $ 143,274  $ - 8 - 8 -
Intergovernmental 811,366 - - -
Charges for Services 332,421 - -
Use of Money and Property - - - -
Fines and Forfeitures - - - -
Miscellaneous - - - 156,324
Total Revenues 1,287,061 - - 156,324
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government - - 3,937
Public Safety - - - -
Housing and Community Development - - - -
Cultural and Leisure Services - - - -
Public Works 149,654 - - -
Capital Outlay 2,70 - 285,017 143,757
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement , - - -
Interest and Fiscal Charges - - - -
Total Expenditures 62,738 - 285,017 147,694
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . (1,575,677) - (285,017) 8,630
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE
Transfers In - - - -
Transfers Out - - - -
Subscription Financing 10,500 - - -
Total Other Financi ﬁ es) 10,500 - - -
NET CHANGE IN F ALANC (1,565,177) - (285,017) 8,630
Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 11,108,562 831 633,994 1,217,121
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) - END OF YEAR $ 9,543,385 $ 831 $ 348,977 $  1,225751
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Debt Service Funds

Public Total Other
Financing Parking Governmental
Authority Authority Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ - $ -
Intergovernmental - -
Charges for Services - -
Use of Money and Property 558,451 316
Fines and Forfeitures - -
Miscellaneous - -
Total Revenues 558,451 6
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General Government - 3,937
Public Safety - - 154,515
Housing and Community Development 295,562 - 9,465,472
Cultural and Leisure Services - - -
Public Works - - 4,369,383
Capital Outlay - 9,391,848
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement , - 7,227,940
Interest and Fiscal Charges ,880096 - 5,883,179
Total Expenditures 70,826 - 36,496,274
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES
OVER (UNDER) EXPENDITURES . 2,812,375) 316 (12,015,744)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USE
Transfers In 13,856,375 - 14,785,204
Transfers Out (811,366) - (2,951,946)
Subscription Financing - - 10,500
Total Other Fina ﬁ es) 13,045,009 - 11,843,758
NET CHANGE IN F ANC 232,634 316 (171,986)
Fund Balances (Deficit) - Beginning of Year 5,369,200 6,187 38,473,714
FUND BALANCES (Deficit) - END OF YEAR $ 5601834 $ 6,503 $ 38,301,728
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STATE GAS TAX
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 2,727,134 $ 2,727,134 $ 2,727,134 $ -
Resources (Inflows):

Intergovernmental 3,720,671 3,720,671 3,709,045 (11,626)

Use of Money and Property 20,000 20,000 95,619 75,619

Miscellaneous 6,000 6,000 17,825 11,825

Transfers In - - -

Amounts Available for Appropriations 6,473,805 6,473,805 6,5 3 75,818
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Public Works 1,437,396 1,437,396 (24,799)

Capital Outlay 1,650,000 1,650,000 ‘ 905,644

Total Charges to Appropriations 3,087,396 3,087,396 0f 880,845

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 3,386,409 $ 3,36 3 956,663
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PARKS AND RECREATION FACILITIES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 99,643 $ 99,643 $ 99,643 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for Services 31,500 31,500 27,200 (4,300)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 131,143 131,143 126,843 (4,300)

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital Outlay 23,000 123,000 - 123,000
Total Charges to Appropriations 23,000 123,000 - 123,000

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 108,143 _$ 8,143
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
NARCOTIC SEIZURE / FORFEITURE
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 183,317 $ 183,317 $ 183,317 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Use of Money and Property 10,000 10,000 15,463 5,463
Fines and Forfeitures 20,000 20,000 72,107 52,107
Transfers In - 5,742 - (5,742)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 213,317 219,059 ,8; 51,828
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Public Safety 158,699 234,182 00 87,178
Capital Outlay - 563 - 563
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 144 (23,144)
Interest and Fiscal Charges 2,211 (2,211)
Total Charges to Appropriations 172,359 62,386
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 98,528 3 114,214
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PROPOSITION A
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 2,641,537 $ 2,641,537 $ 2,641,537 -
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 1,993,365 1,993,365 1,828,888 (164,477)
Use of Money and Property 30,000 30,000 83,568 53,568
Amounts Available for Appropriations 4,664,902 4,664,902 4,553,993 (110,909)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital Outlay - 75,000 75,000
Transfers Out - 1,331,582 (808,998)
Total Charges to Appropriations - (733,998)
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 4,664,902 3 (844.,907)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PROPOSITION C
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 3,728,471 $ 3,728,471 $ 3,728,471 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 1,653,444 1,653,444 1,517,020 (136,424)
Use of Money and Property 120,000 120,000 159,870 39,870
Amounts Available for Appropriations 5,501,915 5,501,915 5,405,361 (96,554)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Cultural and Leisure Services 566 - - -
Public Works 2,825 - -
Capital Outlay 1,680,000 5,404,996 3,770,372
Total Charges to Appropriations 1,683,391 5,404,996 3,770,372
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 3,818,524 3 3,673,818
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MEASURE R
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 1,794,520 $ 1,794,520 $ 1,794,520 $ -
Resources (Inflows):

Intergovernmental 1,240,083 1,240,083 1,137,409 (102,674)

Use of Money and Property 15,000 54,814 64,920 10,106

Amounts Available for Appropriations 3,049,603 3,089,417 2,996,849 (92,568)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Cultural and Leisure Services 562 - - -

Public Works 2,144 - -

Capital Outlay 1,285,000 2,877,848 2,140,744

Total Charges to Appropriations 1,287,706 2,877,848 2,140,744

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 1,761,897 3 2,048,176
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
LOCAL TRANSPORTATION ARTICLE 3
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Deficit - Beginning of Year $ (907) % (907) $ 907) $
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 80,698 - - -
Amounts Available for Appropriations 79,791 (907) (907) -
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital Outlay 80,698 145,541 5 73,116
Total Charges to Appropriations 80,698 145,541 ) 73,116
Budgetary Fund Deficit - End of Year $ (907) _$ (146,448) $ 73,116
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
AIR QUALITY IMPROVEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 281,487 $ 281,487 $ 281,487 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 88,000 88,000 74,129 (13,871)
Use of Money and Property 2,000 2,000 9,625 7,625
Transfers In - 45 - (45)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 371,487 371,532 \ (6,291)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Housing and Community Development 117,510 120,692 0 72,621
Capital Outlay 150,000 194,355 - 194,355
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 1,919 - 1,919
Interest and Fiscal Charges 1,420 - 1,420
Total Charges to Appropriations 270,849 48,071 270,315
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 100,638 _$ 317170 _$ 264,024
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

STORM DRAIN IMPROVEMENT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $

Resources (Inflows):
Charges for Services

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital Outlay

Total Charges to Appropriations

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

234,415 $ 234,415 234,415 $ -

30,000 36,000 34,655 (1,345)
264,415 270,415 269,070 (1,345)
200,000 228,425 228,425
200,000 228,425 - 228,425

64,415 $ 41,990 3 227,080
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
STREET LANDSCAPING AND LIGHTING DISTRICT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 113,320 $ 113,320 $ 113,320 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Charges for Services 1,523,600 1,523,600 1,503,280 (20,320)
Miscellaneous 7,000 7,000 3,000 (4,000)
Transfers In - 950,759 928,329 (21,930)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,643,920 2,594,679 2, R (46,250)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Public Works 2,351,660 2,527,908 ’ 42 (20,521)
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 56,005 56,005 - 56,005
Interest and Fiscal Charges 41,445 - 41,445
Total Charges to Appropriations 2,449,110 ,548,429 76,929
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 (805,190) - $ 30,679
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Deficit - Beginning of Year $ (27,053) $ (27,053) $ (27,053) $ -
Resources (Inflows):

Intergovernmental 285,916 338,096 358,820 20,724

Charges for Services - - 27,000 27,000

Amounts Available for Appropriations 258,863 311,043 358,867 47,724
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Housing and Community Development 140,071 183,282 77,268

Capital Outlay 131,920 472,227 197,049

Total Charges to Appropriations 271,991 655,509 274,317

Budgetary Fund Deficit - End of Year $ (13,128) _$ (344 4 $ 322,041
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
DISASTER RECOVERY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 312,318 $ 312,318 $ 312,318 $ -
Resources (Inflows):

Charges for Services 1,000 - 10 10

Miscellaneous 50,000 19,788 19,788 -

Amounts Available for Appropriations 363,318 332,106 10
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Public Safety 24,439 17,060 9,549

Total Charges to Appropriations 24,439 17,060 9,549

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 338,879 $ 315,046 3 9,559
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
HOUSING AUTHORITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 1,356,801 $ 1,356,801 $ 1,356,801 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 7,845,801 7,845,801 8,822,762 976,961
Use of Money and Property - - 76,866 76,866
Transfers In - 298 (298)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 9,202,602 9,202,900 10, 1,053,529
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Housing and Community Development 7,702,744 7,702,744 (1,313,081)
Total Charges to Appropriations 7,702,744 7,702,744 (1,313,081)
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 1,499,858 3 (259,552)

(147)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
SUBDIVISION PARK TRUST
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 3,747,562 $ 3,747,562 $ 3,747,562 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Miscellaneous 350,000 750,000 700,150 (49,850)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 4,097,562 4,497,562 4,447,712 (49,850)

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Capital Outlay 1,963,101 3,324,367
Total Charges to Appropriations 1,963,101 3,324,367
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 2,134,461 3 1,173,195

(148)

2,184,483
2,184,483

$ 2,134,633
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MEASURE M
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $

Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental
Use of Money and Property

Amounts Available for Appropriations

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital Outlay

Total Charges to Appropriations

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

2,109,651 $ 2,109,651 $ 2,109,651 $ -
1,405,427 1,405,427 1,284,377 (121,050)

30,000 30,000 92,047 62,047
3,545,078 3,545,078 3,486,075 (59,003)
1,450,000 3,361,336 2,455,434
1,450,000 3,361,336 2,455,434
2,095,078 $ 183,742 3 2,396,431
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE

MEASURE W
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 835,603 $ 835,603 835,603 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Intergovernmental 720,000 720,000 715,856 (4,144)
Use of Money and Property - - 27,079 27,079
Transfers In - 5,284 - (5,284)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,555,603 1,555,603 1, , (4,144)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Public Works 203,272 247,296 10 38,191
Capital Outlay 520,000 1,911,543 1,160,526
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 6,618 - 6,618
Interest and Fiscal Charges 4,897 - 4,897
Total Charges to Appropriations 734,787 960,122 1,210,232
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 820,816 618,416 3 1,206,088
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 11,108,562 $ 11,108,562 $ 11,108,562 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Taxes 180,000 180,000 143,274 (36,726)
Intergovernmental - 1,697,937 811,366 (886,571)
Charges for Services 332,421 332,421 332,421 -

Miscellaneous - -
Subscription Financing - -
Amounts Available for Appropriations 11,620,983 13,318,920

10,500

(933,797)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):

Public Works 170,930 145,556 (4,098)
Capital Outlay 2,203,334 11,380,09 8,677,507

Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 13,085 10,500 2,585
Interest and Fiscal Charges 9,683 - 9,683
Total Charges to Appropriations 2,397,032 2,862,738 8,685,677
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 9,223,951 70,505 3 9,543,385 3 7,751,880

N

N\
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
MAJOR FACILITIES RECONSTRUCTION

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024
Variance with
Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 633,994 $ 633,994 $ 633,994 $ -
Resources (Inflows):

Transfers In - 156,324 - (156,324)
Amounts Available for Appropriations 633,994 790,318 633,994 (156,324)

Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Capital Outlay 500,000 1,113,280 2 7 828,263
Total Charges to Appropriations 500,000 1,113,280 285, 828,263

Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 133,994 3 (322,962)

(152)

$ 671,939
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
OPEN SPACE ACQUISITION
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 1,217,121 $ 1,217,121 $ 1,217,121 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Miscellaneous - - 156,324 156,324
Amounts Available for Appropriations 1,217,121 1,217,121 1,373,445 156,324
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
General Government - - (3,937)
Capital Outlay - 593,972 450,215
Total Charges to Appropriations - 593,972 446,278
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year $ 1,217,121 $ 623,149 3 602,602
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE
PUBLIC FINANCING AUTHORITY
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Variance with

Final Budget
Budget Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Budgetary Fund Balance - Beginning of Year $ 5,369,200 $ 5,369,200 $ 5,369,200 $ -
Resources (Inflows):
Use of Money and Property 13,376,289 13,376,289 558,451 (12,817,838)
Transfers In - 2,463,119 13,856,375 11,393,256
Amounts Available for Appropriations 18,745,489 21,208,608 19,784,026 (1,424,582)
Charges to Appropriation (Outflow):
Housing and Community Development 273,975 273,975 (21,587)
Debt Service:
Principal Retirement 8,115,000 8,115,000 920,704
Interest and Fiscal Charges 6,638,052 6,638,052 757,084
Transfers Out - (1,015)
Total Charges to Appropriations 15,027,027 1,656,201
Budgetary Fund Balance - End of Year 3 3,718,462 3 231,619
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste Transit Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 2,223,530 $ 1,162,111 $ 3,385,641
Receivables:
Accounts 317,918 31,984 349,902
Taxes 100,750 - 100,750
Due from Other Governments - 82,675 82,675
Due from Other Funds - -
Restricted Assets:
Cash with Fiscal Agents - 63
Total Current Assets 2,642,198 1, 33 3,919,031
Noncurrent:
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortizatic 1,804,298
Total Noncurrent Assets 1,804,298
Total Assets 2,679,12 3,044,207 5,723,329
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Related Items 390316 270,564 660,880
Deferred OPEB Related ltems 28,354 64,210
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 426, 298,918 725,090
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 81,125 664,074 745,199
Accrued Interest L 2 5,110 4,471 9,581
Unearned Revenues 42,218 1,025 43,243
Due to Other Funds - 922,643 922,643
Due to Other Governments - 266,467 266,467
Accrued Compensated Absences 12,742 18,366 31,108
Long-Term Obligations - Due in ng e 42,644 37,314 79,958
Total Current Liabilities 183,839 1,914,360 2,098,199
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Compensated Ab; 38,222 55,090 93,312
Long-Term Debt - Due jgfMor ne Year 1,139,460 997,028 2,136,488
Net Pension Li 249,611 173,029 422,640
Net OPEB Li 111,565 88,223 199,788
Total Non iabilities 1,538,858 1,313,370 2,852,228
Total Liabilities 1,722,697 3,227,730 4,950,427
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Related Items 25,588 17,737 43,325
Deferred OPEB Related ltems 29,840 23,596 53,436
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 55,428 41,333 96,761
NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 25,224 1,767,374 1,792,598
Unrestricted 1,301,945 (1,693,312) (391,367)
Total Net Position $ 1,327,169 $ 74,062 $ 1,401,231
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste Transit Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Service Charges $ 6,824,240 $ 216,864 $ 7,041,104
Miscellaneous 166,532 243 166,775
Total Operating Revenues 6,990,772 217,107 7,207,879
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and General 41,246 578,447
Personnel Services 818,083 1,643,399
Contractual Services 5,416,740 9,320,936
Internal Service Charges 323,454 738,505
Depreciation Expense 2,084 260,624
Total Operating Expenses 6,601,607 12,541,911
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 389,165 (5,334,032)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental 3,343,088 3,370,294
Interest Expense (26,957) (57,866)
Total Nonperating Revenues (Expenses) 3,316,131 3,312,428
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (2,407,066) (2,021,604)
Transfers In 2,204,623 2,277,815
Transfers Out (73,192) (64,043) (137,235)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION ’\ 385,462 (266,486) 118,976
Net Position - Beginning of year 941,707 340,548 1,282,255
NET POSITION - END OF YEAR L 4 1,327,169 74,062 1,401,231
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
NONMAJOR ENTERPRISE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Solid Waste Transit Totals
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers and Users $ 6,995,332 $ 186,504 $ 7,181,836
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (6,061,241) (4,792,180) (10,853,421)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (809,542) (855,099) (1,664,641)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 124,549 (5,460,775) (5,336,226)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Cash Transfers Out (73,192) (64,04 (137,235)
Cash Transfers In 73,192 2,20 2,277,815
Payments Made to Other Funds - -
Principal Paid on Noncapital Debt Issues (42,336) (79,380)
Interest Paid on Noncapital Debt (30,886) (57,822)
Grant Subsidies 27,206 5,032,535
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities (46,016) 7,035,913
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (23,569) (615,740) (639,309)
Net Cash Used by Capital and Related
Financing Activities 23,669 (615,740) (639,309)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 54,9 1,005,414 1,060,378
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year 2,168,566 156,760 2,325,326
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF YEAR 'S 2,223,530 $ 1,162,174 $ 3,385,704
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING
Operating Income (Loss) $ 389,165 $ (5,723,197) $ (5,334,032)
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Incgge (¢
Cash Provided (Used) by Operatin
Depreciation 2,084 258,540 260,624
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts Receivable 5,676 (30,603) (24,927)
Taxes Receivable (1,116) - (1,116)
Deferred Outflow Pensi el s 80,117 108,226 188,343
Deferred Outflg; ted ltems (2,741) 219 (2,522)
Increase (Decrg w
Accounts Payable (365,623) (9,029) (374,652)
Unearned Revent - (469) (469)
Net Pension Liability 51,182 13,255 64,437
Net OPEB Liability 2,250 (6,099) (3,849)
Deferred Inflow Pension Related Items (34,661) (30,775) (65,436)
Deferred Inflow OPEB Related ltems (10,325) (11,060) (21,385)
Compensated Absences 8,541 (29,783) (21,242)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 124,549 $ (5,460.775) 3 (5,336,226)
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Vehicle Building Information
Replacement Qccupancy Technology
ASSETS
Current Assets:
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 10,884,641 $ 2,568,660 $ 2,050,911
Receivables:
Accounts 54,454 - -
Due from Other Funds - - -
Total Current Assets 10,939,095 2,568,660 2,050,911
Noncurrent:
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 6,881,730 115,183
Total Noncurrent Assets 6,881,730 115,183
Total Assets 17,820,825 2,683,843
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred Pension Related Items 245,707 563,441
Deferred OPEB Related Items 26,715 47,150
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 272,422 610,591
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable 174,661 433,511 301,311
Accrued Interest 10,585 15,505
Accrued Compensated Absences 26,227 16,431
Accrued Claims and Judgments - -
Long-Term Obligations - Due in One Year 88,334 275,018
Total Current Liabilities 558,657 608,265
Noncurrent Liabilities:
Accrued Compensated Absences 2 3 30,080 78,680 49,297
Accrued Claims and Judgments - - -
Long-Term Debt - Due in More than One Year 1,199,920 2,360,310 2,670,597
Net Pension Liability 157,133 381,370 360,327
Net OPEB Liability 83,123 190,688 146,704
Total Noncurrent Liabilities ’ 1,470,256 3,011,048 3,226,925
Total Liabilities 1,739,570 3,569,705 3,835,190
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCE
Deferred Pension Related ltems 16,108 39,094 36,937
Deferred OPEB Related ltems 22,232 51,002 39,238
Total Deferred | S Sou! 38,340 90,096 76,175
NET POSITION
Net Investment in C ets 6,786,377 115,183 1,308,982
Unrestricted 9,528,960 (433,510) (731,784)
Total Net Position $ 16,315,337 $ (318327) _$ 577,198
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH

COMBINING STATEMENT OF NET POSITION (CONTINUED)

INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Total Net Position

(159)

Self-Insurance Emergency Major Facilities
Program Communications Repair Totals
ASSETS
Current Assets: $ 9,743,683 $ 4,891,668 $ 662,052 $ 30,801,615
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Receivables: - - - 54,454
Accounts - - - -
Due from Other Funds 9,743,683 4,891,668 662,052 30,856,069
Total Current Assets
Noncurrent: 95,878 996,225 10,936,555
Capital Assets - Net of Accumulated Depreciation/Amortization 95,878 996,225 10,936,555
Total Noncurrent Assets
9,839,561 5,887,893 41,792,624
Total Assets
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES 584,418 - 2,524,240
Deferred Pension Related Items 45,797 - 245,976
Deferred OPEB Related Items 630,215 - 2,770,216
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities: 1,421,318 105,361 2,436,169
Accounts Payable 730 14,782 - 48,691
Accrued Interest 28,047 - 80,732
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,203,177 - - 1,203,177
Accrued Claims and Judgments 26,871 - 573,852
Long-Term Obligations - Due in One Year 2,681, 169,707 105,361 4,342,621
Total Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities: 2 3 - 84,137 - 242,194
Accrued Compensated Absences 3,199,925 - - 23,199,925
Accrued Claims and Judgments 162,780 3,266,019 - 9,659,626
Long-Term Debt - Due in More than One Year 505,388 483,735 - 1,887,953
Net Pension Liability 142,497 202,333 - 765,345
Net OPEB Liability ’ 24,010,590 4,036,224 - 35,755,043
Total Noncurrent Liabilities
26,641,907 4,205,931 105,361 40,097,664
Total Liabilities
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 17,681 12,771 - 122,591
Deferred Pension Related ltems 38,113 54,116 - 204,701
Deferred OPEB Related ltems 55,794 66,887 - 327,292
Total Deferred Inflg ou
NET POSITION 95,878 980,775 915,117 10,202,312
Net Investment in Capital As: (16,323,803) 1,233,657 662,052 (6,064,428)
Unrestricted
$ (16,227,925) $ 2214432 $ 1,577,169 $ 4,137,884
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Vehicle Building Information
Replacement Occupancy Technology
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Service Charges $ 4,862,726 $ 3,316,655 $ 4,243,192
Miscellaneous 216,228 695 140,750
Total Operating Revenues 5,078,954 3,317,350 4,383,942
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and General 1,581,921 1,583,562

Personnel Services 654,914 1,453,604
Contractual Services 17,291 343,514
Internal Service Charges 403,277 465,981

Depreciation and Amortization Expense 1,189,704 19,903
Total Operating Expenses 3,847,107 3,866,564

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) 1,231,847 4 (147,423)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Revenue - - -
Interest Expense (34,478) 985) (70,060)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 115,613 - -
Total Nonperating Revenues (Expenses) 81,135 63,985) (70,060)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (613,199) (217,483)
Transfers In 151,612 150,305
Transfers Out (151,612) (150,305)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (613,199) (217,483)
Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning of year \ 2 QS,OOZ,%S 294,872 794,681
NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR 16,315,337 $ (318.327) $ 577,198

) 2
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Self-Insurance Emergency Major Facilities
Program Communications Repair Totals
OPERATING REVENUES
Sales and Service Charges $ 1,822,687 $ 2,554,415 $ 111,132 $ 16,910,807
Miscellaneous 4,938,438 - - 5,296,111
Total Operating Revenues 6,761,125 2,554,415 111,132 22,206,918
OPERATING EXPENSES
Administrative and General 11,016,266 141,567 14,868,615
Personnel Services 1,140,252 2,031,389 6,327,360
Contractual Services 182,926 284,045 2,896,111
Internal Service Charges 349,668 720,467 2,497,069
Depreciation and Amortization Expense 5,491 233,011 1,791,770
Total Operating Expenses 12,694,603 3,410,479 28,380,925
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) (5,933,478) (856,064 (6,174,007)
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Interest Revenue 47,385 47,385
Interest Expense (4, 441) (261,325)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Capital Assets 115,613
Total Nonperating Revenues (Expenses) 42944 944 (88,361) - (98,327)
INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TRANSFERS (5,890,53; (944,425) 80,325 (6,272,334)
Transfers In 208,844 - 594,409
Transfers Out (208,844) - (594,409)
CHANGES IN NET POSITION (944,425) 80,325 (6,272,334)
Net Position (Deficit) - Beginning of year 3,158,857 1,496,844 10,410,218
NET POSITION (DEFICIT) - END OF YEAR $ 2,214,432 $ 1.577.169 3 4,137,884

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND
CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION (CONTINUED)
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

) 2
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Vehicle Building Information
Replacement QOccupancy Technology
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash Received from Customers and Users $ 5,087,766 $ 3,317,350 $ 4,383,942
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (1,988,715) (2,040,173) (2,852,958)
Cash Paid to Employees for Services (647,587) (1,438,233) (1,054,623)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 2,451,464 (161,056) 476,361

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING

ACTIVITIES
Cash Transfers Out (73,192) (151,612)
Cash Transfers In 73,192 151,612

Payments Made to Other Funds - -
Proceeds from Noncapital Debt -

Principal Paid on Noncapital Debt (42,336) (87,696)
Interest Paid on Noncapital Debt (4,276) (63,938
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital
Financing Activities (46,612) 414,395

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (2,251,939) - (783,347)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (36,200) - (86,939)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt - (59,291)
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets - -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
Financing Activities - (929,577)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Received - - -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities ’ - - -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND \

CASH EQUIVALENTS 201,417 (312,690) (38,821)
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year ’ 10,683,224 2,881,350 2,089,732
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF Y $ 10,884,641 $ 2,568,660 $ 2,050,911
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INC!

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERA ITIES

Operating Income (Loss) $ 1,231,847 $ (549,214) $ (147,423)
Adjustments to Reconcilé/Opetatin ome to Net
Cash Provided (Usg@ly'b grating ities:
Depreciation and Affie o 1,189,704 19,903 312,854
Loss on CIP write-off - - -
(Increase) Decrease In:
Accounts Receivable 8,812 - -
Deferred Outflow Pension Related Items 103,926 167,946 173,420
Deferred Outflow OPEB Related Items 746 (4,758) 5,426
Prepaid Expenses - - 11,910
Increase (Decrease) In:
Accounts Payable (53,280) 202,977 186,899
Claims and Judgments - - -
Net Pension Liability 9,657 58,991 49,519
Net OPEB Liability (7,529) 4,080 (26,856)
Deferred Inflow Pension Related Items (28,670) (58,789) (57,433)
Deferred Inflow OPEB Related Items (11,076) (17,563) (24,533)
Compensated Absences 7,327 15,371 (7,422)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 2,451,464 $ (161,056) $ 476,361
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Governmental Activities - Internal Service Funds

Self-Insurance Emergency Major Facilities
Program Communications Repair Totals
CACS;: ;2:!?;:?:? on:lnoC':Etlz ?nTeIr::rgCJ;Z:!IES $ 10,242,841 $ 2,554,415 $ 111,132 $ 25,697,446
Cash Paid to Suppliers for Goods and Services (12,808,362) (1,113,591) (79,183) (20,882,982)
Cash Paid to EmppF:oyees for Services (1.140,252) (2,026,566) . (6,307,261)
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities (3.705,773) (585,742) 31,949 (1:492,797)
CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Cash Transfers Out (10,456) (208,844) (594,409)
10,456 208,844 594,409
Cash Transfers In
e e e - -
L . P ) (6,048) (126,954) (488,387)
Principal Paid on Noncapital Debt (4,438) (88,114) (167,258)
Interest Paid on Noncapital Debt - - -
Nelt Cash Provi.d.e‘d (Used) by Noncapital (10,486) ( ) (9.405)
Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
o . . - (44,8 (413,660) (3,493,845)
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets
. . . - - - (123,139)
Principal Paid on Capital Debt (90,200)
Interest Paid on Capital Debt 115’613
Proceeds from Sale of Capital Assets -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
e. as. row. (.-). (Used) by Capital and Relate (44,899) (413,660) (3,591,571)
Financing Activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
. 47,385
Interest Received < o5 17 365
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Investing Activities -
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS (3,668,874) (845,709) (381,711) (5,093,773)
L 4
13,412,557 5,737,377 1,043,763 35,848,003
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year \ Ll o0, ,043, ,848,
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - END OF Y 3 5,743,683 $ 4,891,668 % %
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INC
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATINGAC
) $ (5,933,478) $ (856,064) $ 80,325 $ (6,174,007)
Operating Income (Loss)
Adjustments to Reconcilef@p ncom Net
Cash Provided (Used) by @pe Activities:
;Zprercci’;i; a(njin)mr’;izat g Activities 5491 233,011 30,807 1,791,770
Loss on CIP write-off 45,362 ) ) 45362
O coots Reconabl - - : 8812
Deferred Outflow Pension Related Items (‘:Zggggg (2(2;122; ) Eiii;g;
Deferred Outflow OPEB Related Items ' ' '
. - - - 11,910
Prepaid Expenses
| D In:
"C/:iifzrgtse;;ea:;; . (1,406,957) (94,254) (79,183) (1,243,798)
Claims and J):Jd ments 3:481,716 ) ) 3481716
Net Pension Liaiilit 459,659 177,771 - 755,597
Net OPEB Liabilit y 123,547 6,774 - 100,016
Y . 3,796 (10,778) - (151,874)
Deferred Inflow Pension Related Items
31,150 (17,738) - (39,760)
Deferred Inflow OPEB Related ltems 4823 20,099
Compensated Absences . : . -
Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ (3,705,773) $ (565,742) $ 31,949 $ (1,492,797
(163)
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Agenda
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Audit Scope

Audit Process

Audit Opinions and Results
Governance Communications
Upcoming GASB Standards
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Audit Scope

Report on the
City’s financial
statements

©2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

[

Required
governance
communications
letter

26

Report on internal
control over
financial reporting
and on compliance

and other matters

Single Audit:
Report on
compliance for each
major federal
program, report on
internal control over
compliance, and
report on the
schedule of
expenditures of
federal awards
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Audit Process

Override of internal
controls

Significant estimates

©2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

RISK-BASED APPROACH

Revenue recognition

Accounting for

capital assets




AUDIT OPINIONS

Unmodified opinions

©2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

AUDIT RESULTS

Financial statement
Three material weaknesses identified
* @Grant accounting

e Construction in progress
accounting

* Accounting for third-party
activity

Two significant deficiencies identified
* Deposits payable

* Financial statement closing

process - g % 186



Governance Communications

Overall

Accounting policy change — GASB 100
Audit standards change — SAS 143-145
No unusual transactions identified
Receipt of management
representation letter

Difficulties

Audit delays due to City staff turnover
No disagreements with management
No consultations with other
accountants identified

©2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Most Sensitive Estimates
OPEB liability and related deferred
outflows/inflows of resources (Note 12B)
Claims payable (Note 11)

Other

Uncorrected misstatements — None identified
Corrected misstatements - Material - 4
Material weakness in internal control over
financial reporting — Grant accounting,

construction in progress (CIP) accounting,
third-party activity accounting

Significant deficiencies in internal control
over financial reporting — deposits payable,
financial statement closing process
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Governance Communications

NEW ACCOUNTING CHANGES

What changed

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No.
100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections — An Amendment
to GASB Statement No. 62

Effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15, 2023

New requirements

Enhanced accounting and financial reporting for accounting changes and
error corrections to provide more understandable, reliable, relevant,
consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or
assessing accountability.

Impact
More time evaluating accounting changes and error corrections

More changes to the financial statement presentation and note
disclosures
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Governance Communications

Corrected misstatements:
Material:

Approximately, $3,400,000 in grant receivables and related unavailable revenues and
unearned revenues were written off or adjusted due to the old age of the receivables or
corrections of the accounting for grant project activities (Other Governmental Grants Special
Revenue Fund).

APproximater $32,300,000 of construction in progress was restated, reclassified, or written

off as either, projects had been completed, or the related project costs did not meet the City’s
capitalization policy which includes use of the modified approach for street infrastructure
(Government-wide Governmental Activities, Business-type Activities, and the Harbor Tidelands
and Harbor Uplands Enterprise Funds).

Approximately $1,500,000 in assets related to the Marine Ave Hotel agreements were written
down and related revenues and expenditures both needed to be increased by approximately
$2,600,000 to accurately report the activity pursuant to the agreements (General Fund).

Operating revenues and expenses related to rental activities administered by a contracted
third-party management company were both increased by approximately $3,300,000 to
accurately account for the managed activities. In addition, restatements to the balance sheet
were made to account for cash balance, commissions payable, lease deposits payable,
accounts receivable and accounts payable activity handles by the management company.
(Harbor Tidelands and Harbor Uplands Enterprise Funds)

©2024 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 189



Upcoming GASB Standards
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GASB 101 Compensated
Absences

Effective date Updated framework
December 31, 2024 .

Revaluate leave policies

e Liability must include any
accumulated leave that is
unused or used but unpaid

Footnote disclosures will
be enhanced

‘m ©2025 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

[ 4

Examples include

Sick leave not paid
at termination

Parental leave

Military leave and jury duty
that has commenced

CLA can help by

evaluating the standard
related to compensated
absences and assisting with
or evaluating in financial
statement disclosures

—c




GASB 102 Certain Risk
Disclosures

D

Effective date Increased footnote disclosures surrounding risk:
June 30, 2025

Limitations on raising revenues

Concentrations related to tax revenue or vendors

Debt or mandated spending — especially unfunded mandates

Impact of major employer leaving the community

Collective bargaining agreements

‘m ©2025 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

»

CLA can help by
assisting with or
evaluating financial
statement
disclosure updates




CLA can help by

GASB 103 FinanCiaI assisting with or
Reporting Module evaluating financial

statement
disclosure updates

D

Effective date Impacts financial statement presentation
June 30, 2026

Updated disclosure guidance for:
MD&A consistency
Clearer definition of unusual or infrequent items
Presentation of proprietary fund statements

Major component unit information

Budgetary comparison information

‘m ©2025 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP
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GASB 104 — Disclosure of Certain
Capital Assets

Likely effective date

June 30, 2026

»

‘m ©2025 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

D

Will clarify how
capital assets are
disclosed in financials:

Capital assets held for sale
and related pledged debt

Leased assets
Subscription assets
Right to use PPP assets

Other intangible assets

S

CLA can help by
assisting with or evaluating
financial statement
disclosure updates
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J—— Questions and Feedback

We appreciate the opportunity to serve you
and welcome any feedback relative to our
performance and to the engagement.

‘m ©2025 CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 195
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach, California

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Inmate Trust Fund of the City of
Redondo Beach as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024 and the related notes to the financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Inmate Trust Fund fund of the City, of Redondo Beach as of June 30, 2024, and
the changes in its financial position for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable“to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller Generalfof the United States. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in thejAuditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the City of Redondo Beach, and
to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Inmate Trust Fund and do not purport
to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of Redondo Beach, as of June 30, 2024,
the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion
is not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach, California

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance
and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

¢ |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevanteto the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circupistances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City @f'Redondo Beach's internal control. Accordingly, no
such opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of @ccountingypolicies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

o Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about City’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related
matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted the management's discussion and analysis that accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the financial
statements. Such missing information, although not a part of the financial statements, is required by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. Our opinion on the financial statements is not affected by this missing information.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach, California

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated REPORT
DATE, on our consideration of the City of Redondo Beach’s internal control over the Inmate Trust
Fund’s financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Redondo Beach’s internal
control over the Inmate Trust Fund’s financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering City of
Redondo Beach'’s internal control over the Inmate Trust Fund’s financial reporting and compliance.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Irvine, California
REPORT DATE
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH, CALIFORNIA
INMATE TRUST FUND

ASSETS
Cash and Investments

Total Assets

FUND BALANCE
Restricted

Total Fund Balance

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2024

(6)

84,416

84,416

84,416

84,416
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH, CALIFORNIA
INMATE TRUST FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

REVENUES
Interest Income
Total Revenues
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.

()

1,436

1,436

1,436

82,980

84,416
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NOTE 1

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH, CALIFORNIA
INMATE TRUST FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accompanying balance sheet and statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in
fund balance were presented in a format required by the City of Redondo Beach (the City)
Inmate Trust Fund (the Fund). The purpose of the financial statements is to present in
summary form the financial position and the revenues and expenditures of the Fund.

The accompanying financial statements are not intended to present the financial position or
results of operations of the City, taken as a whole.

Financial Reporting Entity

This Fund is a project within the City's General Fund. The purpose of the Fund is to
accumulate funds from revenues of pay telephones used in the jail facilities for the benefit,
education, and welfare of the inmates, as well as for the maintenance of the jail facilities.

Basis of Accounting and Measurement Focus

The Fund is accounted for on a spending orgeusrent financial resources measurement focus.
Operating statements of the Fund present inereases,(revenues and other financial sources)
and decrease (expenditures and other financialluses) in net current assets.

The Fund is accounted for using the modified/accrual basis of accounting wherein revenues
are recognized in the accountiagsperiod in“which they become measurable and available to
pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are recognized in the accounting period in
which the fund liability is incurred, if measurable.

Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds
required to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income
earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated on an accounting period basis to the
various funds based on the period-end cash and investments balances. Interest income
from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.

For more information on the City's cash and investments as of June 30, 2024, please see
the City of Redondo Beach's audited financial statements.

Fund Balances

In the Governmental Fund Financial Statements, fund balances are classified in the
following category:

Restricted — Restricted fund balances include amounts that can be spent only for the
specific purposes stipulated by external providers, constitutionally, or through enabling
legislation. Effectively, restrictions may be changed or lifted only with the consent of
resource providers.

8)
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NOTE 2

CITY OF REDONDO BEACH, CALIFORNIA
INMATE TRUST FUND
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2024

CASH AND INVESTMENTS
The Fund has the following cash and investments at June 30, 2024:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 84,416

The Fund does not own specifically identifiable securities and their cash is pooled with the
other funds of the City.

The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds, except for funds
required to be held by fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest income
earned on pooled cash and investments is allocated on an accounting period basis to the
various funds based on the period-end cash and investments balances. Interest income
from cash and investments with fiscal agents is credited directly to the related fund.

For more information on the City's cash and investments as of June 30, 2024, please see
the City of Redondo Beach's audited financial Statements.

©)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach
Redondo Beach, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, each major fundgpand the aggregate remaining fund information
of City of Redondo Beach, as of and for the year ended*June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the
financial statements, which collectively comprise the“City “of Redondo Beach’s basic financial
statements, and have issued our report thereon dated REPORT DATE.

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit«f the)financial statements, we considered City of Redondo
Beach’s internal control over financial, reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose’of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of City of
Redondo Beach’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
City of Redondo Beach’s internal control.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
may exist that were not identified. We identified certain deficiencies in internal control that we consider
to be material weaknesses and significant deficiencies.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material
misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a
timely basis.

We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and responses as
items 2024-001, 2024-002 and 2024-003 to be material weaknesses.
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Honorable Mayor and Members of the City Council
City of Redondo Beach

A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less
severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
responses as items 2024-004 and 2024-005 to be significant deficiencies.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City of Redondo Beach’s financial statements
are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under
Government Auditing Standards.

City of Redondo Beach’s Response to Findings

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures on the City of
Redondo Beach’s response to the findings identified in our audit and described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and responses. The City of Redondo Beach’s response was not subjected to the
other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial'statements and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely tosdescribe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and, not:to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing “Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and
compliance. Accordingly, this communication‘is not suitable for any other purpose.

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP

Irvine, California
REPORT DATE
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024-001 - Grant Accounting

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Condition: The City recorded a material journal entry of approximately $3.4 million to correct long-
standing balances in the Other Intergovernmental Grants special revenue fund, specifically related to
grants receivable and unavailable revenue. The adjustment was necessary to eliminate unsupported or
outdated balances that had accumulated over multiple reporting periods.

Criteria or specific requirement: The City’s management is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls for the proper recording of grant revenues and related receivables.

Effect: Amounts due from other governments, related unavailable revenues and beginning fund
balance in the Other Intergovernmental Grants special revenue fund were materially overstated.

Cause: The lack of effective monitoring and reconciliation procedures related to grant activity and staff
turnover.

Repeat finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend that the City update,theiinternal controls related to the recording of
grant activity to ensure the accuracy of affected account balances and the timeliness of monitoring and
reconciliations. Such controls should be documented, in”writing and disseminated to all staff involved
with grant activities and should include:

e Monthly reviews of grant activity ‘and receivable aging schedules,
o Documentation of reconciliations and,résolution of discrepancies,
e Oversight by finance and grant management to ensure compliance and accuracy.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

Management concurs with the finding. The City recognizes the importance of maintaining accurate and
timely reconciliations of grant-related receivables and unavailable revenue. Prior to receiving this finding, the
City had initiated actions that will correct the identified issue, including the development of a formal
reconciliation schedule and associated procedures and the assignment of dedicated staff to oversee grant
fund activity. Additionally, the City has initiated a comprehensive review of grant processes and procedures
which involve City staff in all Departments who use grant funding. This review will help to ensure a broad
understanding of grant management, and the responsibility associated with each role related to grants, with
the end goal of ensuring accuracy and compliance with grant accounting requirements. These procedures
will be documented and implemented in the upcoming fiscal year to ensure compliance with grant
requirements and to strengthen internal controls over financial reporting.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024-002 - Construction in Progress (CIP) Accounting

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Condition: The following misstatements were identified in the capital asset CIP schedules:

e Dredging costs incurred to maintain the navigability of the waterways (approximately $490,000
related to the prior year and $3,000,000 related to the current year) were improperly capitalized
in the Harbor Tidelands enterprise fund.

e Approximately $18,000,000 in completed project costs were removed from CIP of the
governmental activities since they had remained beyond their completion date and reclassified
to their appropriate capital asset classes.

e Approximately, $14,290,000 in street infrastructure project costs were removed from CIP of the
governmental activities since the costs related to preservation and maintenance costs which
should be not be capitalized under the modified approach for reporting infrastructure assets.

Criteria or specific requirements: Capital projects costs that do not enhance the use of an asset or
extend its useful life should not be capitalized and, therefare, not be included in CIP. Once CIP projects
are completed and the assets are placed in service, thé project costs should be transferred from CIP to
the appropriate capital asset class and depreciation shouldicommence. Governmental entities that
have elected to account for one or more of its netwerks orsubsystems of infrastructure assets under
the modified approach forego depreciation of thosefassets by committing to preserving and maintaining
a given network or subsystem of infrastructuré assets/ at a specific condition level. The costs of
preservation and maintenance at that condition level are expensed when incurred and not capitalized.

Effect: CIP and net position were overstated [for governmental activities and the Harbor Tidelands
enterprise fund.

Cause: Internal controls to ensure proper classification and timely capitalization of completed capital
projects were not functioning properly and staff turnover.

Repeat finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend that internal control policies and procedures over accounting and
reporting of CIP be reviewed, updated and documented in writing. In particular, the policies and
procedures update should address capitalization thresholds, costs eligible for capitalization, monitoring
of CIP activity and timely capitalization and removal of completed projects. In addition, the policies and
procedures should address accounting and reporting for street infrastructure assets under the modified
approach.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

Management concurs with the finding. The City is reviewing its capital asset accounting policies and
procedures and will implement additional controls to ensure timely and accurate classification of capital
projects. The City plans for staff training and updating the current system for capital asset reporting to
improve compliance with GASB 34 and strengthen internal controls over financial reporting.
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CITY OF REDONDO BEACH
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND RESPONSES
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

2024-003 — Accounting for Third-Party Activity

Type of Finding: Material Weakness in Financial Reporting and Ledger Controls

Condition: The City identified two key areas where financial activity was not being properly accounted
for in the City's general ledger:

1. Third-Party Managed Leases: Revenues and expenditures associated with properties
managed by third-party were being reported on a net basis, rather than gross, which obscures
the full scope of lease-related financial activity. Additionally, related balance sheet accounts
such as cash deposits held by third-party, unamortized leasing commissions, and tenant deposit
liabilities were either missing or inaccurately recorded.

2. Marine Avenue Agreement: The Authority Reserve Fund (AFR), held externally by the hotel’s
lender, was not tracked within the City’s general ledger accurately. Although the AFR receives
City contributions (funded by transient occupancy taxes generated by the agreement’s subject
properties) and hotel owner/operator draws, its activity was not shown appropriately in the City’s
financial system.

Criteria or specific requirement: Per Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) and
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) /Guidelines, entities must report gross revenues
and expenditures to ensure transparency and comparability. All material financial transactions,
including those managed externally or held off-ledger, must be recorded in the City’s general ledger.

Effect: Revenue, expenditures and various balance sheet accounts of the General Fund, Harbor
Tidelands Enterprise Fund and Harbor Uplands Enterprise Fund were understated.

Cause: Reliance on third-party management companies without sufficient oversight and
misinterpretation of accounting standards related to lease reporting and off-ledger agreements.

Repeat finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend the City establish procedures to ensure all lease-related
transactions and long-term financial agreements are fully recorded in the general ledger and strengthen
internal controls and oversight over third-party managed assets and off-ledger agreements to ensure
consistent and accurate financial reporting.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions: Management concurs with the finding
relating to unique third-party relationships. City staff has instituted process changes to address findings,
including recording identified revenues and expenditures on a gross basis. Staff is working closely with the
identified external third parties to monitor and provide a clear accounting of related activity in the City’s
general ledger.
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2024-004 — Deposits Payable

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Condition: We noted that some deposit payable accounts are not being reconciled timely resulting in
aged balances that lacked adequate supporting documentation. These accounts balances have not
been reviewed regularly, and no formal reconciliation procedures seem to be in place.

Criteria or specific requirement: Effective internal control systems should include procedures for the
periodic reconciliation of liability accounts, including deposits payable, to ensure accuracy and
completeness of accounting and financial reporting.

Effect: The lack of oversight of deposits payable increases the risk of errors, misstatements, or
potential misappropriation of funds.

Cause: Lack of monitoring the details of transactions involving deposit payable accounts and staff
turnover

Repeat finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend establishing aJormal reconciliation process for deposits payable
accounts that is performed regularly throughout_the year.yThe reconciliation should include reviewing
aged balances for validity, identifying transactions, involving deposits and clearing unsupported
amounts. The department overseeingtheservices requiring deposits should be maintaining the
documentation supporting the deposits and regular‘reconciliations and the finance department should
provide periodic oversight.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

Management concurs with the finding. The City will implement a reconciliation schedule for all deposits
payable accounts, including those identified in this finding for which long-standing balances without activity
exist, and assign staff to review and resolve aged balances. These procedures will be documented and
incorporated into the City’s year-end close process to strengthen internal controls and improve financial
reporting accuracy.
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2024-005 — Financial Statement Closing Process

Type of Finding: Significant Deficiency in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Condition: We observed that several unexpected journal entries were recorded after the delivery of the
final trial balance to us, suggesting that the financial statement closing process may benefit from
additional refinement to ensure completeness prior to the start of final audit fieldwork.

Criteria or specific requirement: Effective internal control over financial reporting includes timely and
well-documented closing procedures that ensure the completeness and accuracy of financial data prior
to the start of final audit fieldwork.

Effect: While these entries did not result in a material misstatement of the audited financial statements,
the volume and timing of the adjustments indicate opportunities to enhance the City’s internal controls
over the year-end closing process.

Cause: Certain adjustments and reconciliations were not finalized before the initial close, which
contributed to the need for post-close entries to update financial statement balances and staff turnover.

Repeat finding: No

Recommendation: We recommend:
e Reviewing and refining the year-end closing procedures to promote completeness, consistency,
and accuracy.
o Developing a formal checklist and timeline to'guide the closing process.
e Assigning clear responsibilities forkey closing tasks and reconciliations across the organization.
e Conducting a post-close review toidentify areas for improvement and reduce reliance on post-
close adjustments.

Views of responsible officials and planned corrective actions:

Management agrees with the recommendation and will take steps to strengthen the financial statement
closing process. The City plans to enhance its year-end procedures through improved documentation,
clearer task assignments, and the use of a structured checklist to support a more efficient and accurate
close.
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